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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC  
A Minnesota limited liability company  

2721 E. Franklin Ave.  
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406 

612-850-0029 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC offers individual unit franchises for the development and operation of 
a Los Campeones® gym business offering certain fitness services and related products (each a “Los 
Campeones business”). 

The total investment necessary to begin operation of a Los Campeones business ranges from $296,500 to 
$2,550,500.  This includes $50,000 that must be paid to us or our affiliate.   

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of your franchise agreement and other 
information in plain English.  Read this disclosure document and all accompanying agreements carefully.  
You must receive this disclosure document at least 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement 
with, or make any payment to, the franchisor or an affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise 
sale.  Note, however, that no governmental agency has verified the information contained in this 
document.

You may wish to receive your disclosure document in another format that is more convenient for you.  To 
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact Benjamin Loehrer at 2721 E. Franklin 
Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406, or 612-850-0029. 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don’t rely on the disclosure document 
alone to understand your contract. Read all of your contract carefully.  Show your contract and this 
disclosure document to an advisor, like a lawyer or an accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment.  The information in this disclosure document can help you 
make up your mind.  More information on franchising, such as “A Consumer’s Guide to Buying a 
Franchise,” which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document, is available from the 
Federal Trade Commission.  You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 
600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington, D.C. 20580.  You can also visit the FTC’s home page at 
www.ftc.gov for additional information.  Call your state agency or visit your public library for other 
sources of information on franchising. 

There may also be laws on franchising in your state.  Ask your state agencies about them. 

Issuance Date:  April 18, 2025 
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to 
find more information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, costs, 
profits or losses. You should also try to obtain this 
information from others, like current and former 
franchisees. You can find their names and contact 
information in Item 20 or Exhibit G. 

How much will I need 
to invest? 

Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the franchisor 
or at the franchisor’s direction. Item 7 lists the initial 
investment to open. Item 8 describes the suppliers you 
must use.

Does the franchisor 
have the financial 
ability to provide 
support to my business?

Item 21 or Exhibit A includes financial statements. Review 
these statements carefully. 

Is the franchise system 
stable, growing, or 
shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number of 
company-owned and franchised outlets. 

Will my business be the 
only Los Campeones 
business in my area? 

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the franchise 
agreement describe whether the franchisor and other 
franchisees can compete with you. 

Does the franchisor 
have a troubled legal 
history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the franchisor or its 
management have been involved in material litigation or 
bankruptcy proceedings. 

What’s it like to be a 
Los Campeones 
franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibit G lists current and former franchisees. 
You can contact them to ask about their experiences. 

What else should I 
know? 

These questions are only a few things you should look for. 
Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this disclosure 
document to better understand this franchise opportunity. 
See the table of contents. 
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What You Need To Know About Franchising Generally

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even 
if you are losing money.

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the franchisor to change 
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to 
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise 
business.

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the franchisor or a limited 
group of suppliers the franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than 
similar items you could buy on your own.

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some 
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, 
how you market, and your hours of operation.

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the 
franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory.

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may 
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to 
operate your franchise business.

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord 
or other creditors.

Some States Require Registration 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to 
register before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that 
the state recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To 
find out if your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency 
information in Exhibit D. 

Your state also may have laws that require special disclosures or amendments be 
made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check the State Specific Addenda. See 
the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific Addenda. 
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. Out-of-State Dispute Resolution. The franchise agreement requires you to 
resolve disputes with the franchisor by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in 
Minnesota. Out-of-state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a less 
favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost more to mediate, arbitrate, or litigate 
with the franchisor in Minnesota than in your own state. Certain states may require other 
risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific Addenda” (if any) to see whether your 
state requires other risks to be highlighted. 
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ITEM 1 

THE FRANCHISOR, AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS, AND AFFILIATES 

To simplify the language in this disclosure document, “we” means Los Campeones 
Franchising LLC, the franchisor.  “You” means the person who buys the franchise.  “You” also 
may refer to your shareholders if you are a corporation, your partners if you are a partnership, or 
your members if you are a limited liability company.  

The Franchisor 

We are a Minnesota limited liability company formed on June 16, 2020.  Our principal 
place of business is at 2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406, and our telephone 
number is 612-850-0029.  Our agents for service of process are disclosed in Exhibit D. 

We grant individual unit franchises for the operation of a Los Campeones® gym business 
under the name “Los Campeones” offering certain fitness services and related products (each a 
“Los Campeones business”).  We began offering franchises for Los Campeones businesses under 
this disclosure document in December 2020.  Except for our operation of the Los Campeones 
business in Tempe, AZ (as further described below), we have never operated the type of Los 
Campeones business that you will operate.  

We have not sold and do not sell franchises in any other line of business and, except as 
provided in this disclosure document, we have not and are not otherwise engaged in any other 
business activity.

Our Predecessors and Affiliates 

Our predecessor and affiliate is Los Campeones Gym, LLC (“Affiliate”), which has the 
same principal address as ours.  Affiliate assisted in developing the Los Campeones concept and 
began operating Los Campeones businesses in January 2010.  As of the issuance date of this 
disclosure document, Affiliate operates 6 Los Campeones businesses in Minnesota.  Affiliate also 
owns the Los Campeones® trademark.  As further described in Item 13, Affiliate has granted to us 
a license to use and sublicense the use of the Los Campeones® trademark, as well as certain other 
trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names, logos and commercial symbols (the 
“Marks”) to franchisees.  Pursuant to the minimum payment exemption under the FTC Franchise 
Rule and as part of a “test” program, Affiliate also sold one franchised Los Campeones business to 
a franchisee in Tempe, AZ in November 2018, but no longer offers or sells any franchises.  Affiliate 
subsequently assigned the franchise agreement for this business to us in December 2020, and we 
then reacquired this business in October 2022, and as of the issuance date of this disclosure 
document, our affiliate, Los Campeones NE, LLC (“Los Campeones NE”), which has a principal 
address of 1324 Quincy St NE, Minneapolis, MN 55413, operates this business.  In addition, as of 
the issuance date of this disclosure document, Los Campeones NE also operates one Los 
Campeones business in Minnesota, and has done so since June 2019.  Further, as of the issuance 
date of this disclosure document, our affiliate Los Campeones Unlimited, LLC (“Los Campeones 
Unlimited”), which has the same principal address as ours, operates one Los Campeones business 
in Minnesota, and has done so since December 2024.  Except as described above, Affiliate, Los 
Campeones NE, and Los Campeones Unlimited have not engaged in any other business activity. 

Except as otherwise described in above, we have no affiliates, predecessors or parents 
required to be disclosed in this Item 1.  
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Franchise Offered 

You will sign a “Franchise Agreement” to receive the right to own and operate a single Los 
Campeones business (the “Business”) at a location to which we have consented, offering the 
“Products” and “Services” we approve, and using our formats, designs, methods, specifications, 
standards, operating and marketing procedures and the Marks (collectively, the “System”).  Los 
Campeones businesses are gyms that focus on strength and conditioning, but also offer standard 
fitness equipment and machinery, to members, and also lease space or otherwise authorize trainers 
(“Trainers”) to offer and provide exercise and fitness sessions to members and/or non-members 
within the Business. 

Market and Competition 

Los Campeones businesses offer health and fitness services and related products.  The Los 
Campeones customer base primarily consists of adults who are looking for muscle gain and general 
exercise in a no-frills environment outside the norm of traditional fitness centers.  Los Campeones 
businesses have a hardcore vibe yet are inclusive to all types of people.

The market is well-developed, but still growing.  Your competition will include other 
franchised and company-owned gyms, health clubs, fitness centers, personal trainers, and fitness 
coaches. 

Laws and Regulations 

Your Los Campeones business will be subject to national, state and local regulations that 
apply to all businesses, such as the Americans With Disabilities Act, wage and hour laws, and 
business licensing requirements.  Because you will accept credit cards, you will also have to comply 
with any general laws and regulations relating to the acceptance of credit cards, including the 
Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) Data Security Standard (“DSS”).  Compliance with the PCI DSS 
is your responsibility.  You must also comply with data privacy laws that affect the safekeeping of 
member information, and regulations that apply to electronic marketing, like faxes, emails, text 
messaging and telemarketing.   

There are no national regulations that apply specifically to the operation of fitness centers.  
However, many states, and some municipalities, have laws and regulations that apply specifically 
to membership contracts, operations and licenses.  Many states limit the length of your customer 
contracts, provide for specific provisions to be included in those contracts, prescribe the format or 
type size for the contract, and/or provide customers the right to terminate their contracts.  State 
regulations may also require you to obtain a bond to protect pre-paid membership fees you collect.  
Some states and municipalities may also have enacted laws requiring fitness centers to have a staff 
person available during all hours of operation, and in some cases this person may be required to be 
certified in basic cardiopulmonary resuscitation, or have other specialized training.  In addition, 
some states have laws requiring a fitness center to have an automated external defibrillator (“AED”) 
and other first aid equipment on the premises, and some may require you to take other safety 
measures. You must also ensure that each Trainer has all necessary and proper certifications in 
accordance with our mandatory System standards and specifications. There may also be special 
permits required for you to operate some or all of your business.  

You should investigate whether there are other regulations and requirements that may apply 
in the geographic area in which you are interested in locating your Los Campeones business and 
should consider both their affect and cost of compliance. You are solely responsible for complying 
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with all federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and requirements that apply to your Los 
Campeones business. 

ITEM 2 

BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

Benjamin Loehrer – President  

Benjamin Loehrer has been our President since our inception in June 2020. Benjamin has also been 
the President of Affiliate in Minneapolis, MN since January 2010. 

ITEM 3 

LITIGATION 

No litigation is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 4 

BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item.

ITEM 5 

INITIAL FEES 

The “Initial Franchise Fee” for a single Los Campeones business is $50,000.  You must 
pay the Initial Franchise Fee to us when you sign the Franchise Agreement and it is not refundable 
under any circumstances.  The Initial Franchise Fee we charge is uniform.  In 2024, we collected 2 
$50,000 Initial Franchise Fees, and waived the Initial Franchise Fee for one franchisee whose 
owner was a longtime employee and who prepaid a certain amount of royalty payments. 
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ITEM 6 

OTHER FEES 

Type of Fee Amount (See Note 1) Due Date Remarks 
Royalty Fee 6% of Gross Sales  You must pay us the Royalty 

Fee on or before the 10th

calendar day of each month 
via electronic funds transfer.

(See Note 2) 

Technology Fee Our then-current Technology Fee.  

Currently, we do not charge a 
Technology Fee, but reserve the 
right to establish one upon 30 days’ 
prior written notice to you. 

Once established, at the same 
time and in the same manner 
as the Royalty Fee. 

We may establish and require that you 
pay to us a monthly Technology Fee 
associated with maintaining, developing, 
and/or updating any technology used in 
connection with the System as we deem 
appropriate, upon 30 days’ prior written 
notice to you.  If we establish a 
Technology Fee, it be for an amount of 
up to $100 per month.  Once established, 
we reserve the right to increase the 
amount of the Technology  Fee by up to 
10% each calendar year during the term 
of the Franchise Agreement upon written 
notice to you.

Initial Training 
Program 

Our then-current fee. 

Currently, we do not charge a fee 
for our initial training program, but 
reserve the right to charge a fee of 
up to $200 upon 30 days’ prior 
written notice to you.  Once 
established, we reserve the right to 
increase the amount of this fee by 
up to 10% each calendar year 
during the term of the Franchise 
Agreement upon written notice to 
you.

When incurred If you appoint a new Operating Principal 
or general manager, such individuals 
must attend our initial training program. 
We may charge you a reasonable fee for 
those new individuals.  You must also 
pay any related travel, room and board 
expenses. 

Supplemental or 
Refresher Training 

Our then-current fee. 

Currently, we do not charge a fee for 
supplemental or refresher training, 
but reserve the right to charge a fee 
of up to $200 upon 30 days’ prior 
written notice to you.  Once 
established, we reserve the right to 
increase the amount of this fee by up 
to 10% each calendar year during 
the term of the Franchise Agreement
upon written notice to you.

When incurred We may require your Operating 
Principal and any general manager to 
attend all supplemental and refresher 
training programs that we designate for 
up to 3 days each calendar year.  Upon 
your reasonable request, we may also 
provide additional onsite assistance to 
you. You must also pay any related 
travel, room and board expenses. 

Income and Sales 
Taxes 

We may collect from you the cost 
of all taxes arising from our 
licensing of intellectual property to 
you in the state where your 
Business is located, as well as any 
assessment on fees and any other 
income we receive from you.

When applicable, payable 15 
days after invoiced by us 

Only imposed if state collects these taxes 
or assessments 
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Type of Fee Amount (See Note 1) Due Date Remarks 
Approved Supplier/ 
Product Testing  

Our reasonable costs and expenses Payable when you request our 
approval of a proposed 
supplier or product 

We may require you to pay the actual 
cost of the inspection and evaluation, 
including the cost of our time spent 
evaluating the alternative product or 
supplier. 

Relocation Fee $2,000 Payable before we review the 
proposed new Business site 

Payable only if you relocate the 
Business. 

Transfer Fee $5,000 Before completion of transfer You pay this fee upon the transfer of 
your business, the Business, substantially 
all or all of the assets of the Business, the 
Franchise Agreement, or any interest in 
you. 

Renewal Fee $15,000 At least 30 days before the 
term of the Franchise 
Agreement expires

Maintenance 
Expenses

Will vary under circumstances. When incurred. (See Note 3) 

Costs and 
Attorneys’ Fees 

Will vary under circumstances When incurred We may recover costs and reasonable 
attorneys’ fees if you lose in a dispute 
with us.

Audit Cost of audit plus interest from due 
date 

15 days after receipt of report Payable only if audit shows an 
understatement of at least 2% of Gross 
Sales for any month

Late Fee 10% of total amount owed When due The late fee will apply if we do not 
receive the payment on or before the date 
due, or there are insufficient funds in 
your bank account to collect the payment 
by a transfer of funds on or after the date 
due

Interest on Late 
Payments 

Lesser of 18% per year or the 
maximum rate permitted by law 

When due Payable if you do not timely pay Royalty 
Fees, Technology Fees or other amounts 
owed to us or our affiliates

Indemnification Will vary under the circumstances As incurred. You must indemnify us, our affiliates 
and other related parties for any claims 
or liabilities in connection with your 
ownership and operation of the Business, 
or your breach of the Franchise 
Agreement.

Insurance Cost of insurance, plus a 5% 
administrative fee 

Payable before opening If you fail to obtain and maintain 
required insurance, we may immediately 
obtain insurance and you must promptly 
reimburse us for the cost of the 
insurance, together with late charges and 
an administrative fee equal to 5% of the 
insurance premium.
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Type of Fee Amount (See Note 1) Due Date Remarks 
Mystery Shopper or 
Compliance 
Assessment 
Program Expenses

Cost of third party mystery shopper 
or other compliance assessment 
services  

When incurred Payable if we establish a mystery 
shopper or compliance assessment 
program and seek reimbursement for 
third-party fees related to your Business.

Management 
Services 

Will vary under circumstances  When incurred If at any time the Operating Principal or 
general manager does not manage the 
Business, we immediately may appoint a 
manager to manage the Business for you 
and charge you a reasonable fee for these 
management services.

Post Termination 
and Associated 
Expenses 

You must pay for all costs 
associated with ceasing to be our 
franchisee or the de-identification 
of the Business.

As incurred. If you fail to perform certain post-term 
duties, like redecoration, we or our 
affiliates may, at our option, perform 
such duties at your expense.  

Notes: 

(1) Except where otherwise noted, all fees are payable to us, are non-refundable, and are 
uniformly imposed. 

(2) “Gross Sales” means the aggregate amount of all sales of all Services and Products, all 
leasing or other fees paid by Trainers to you, and the sale of all other goods and services, 
whether for cash, on credit or otherwise, made or provided at or in connection with the 
Business, including off-premises sales and monies derived at or away from the Business.  
The term “Gross Sales” does not include:  (1) any federal, state, municipal or other sales, 
value added or retailer’s excise taxes paid or accrued by you; or (2) adjustments for net 
returns on salable goods and discounts allowed to customers on sales.  Gross Sales will not 
be adjusted for uncollected accounts.  For purposes of the Royalty Fee, the sale is made at 
the earlier of delivery of the service or product, or receipt of payment.  

(3) You must at, your expense, maintain the condition and appearance of the Business 
(including adjacent parking areas and grounds), and refurbish and modify its layout, decor 
and general theme, as we may require to maintain the condition, appearance, efficient 
operation, ambience and overall image of Los Campeones businesses, as we may modify.  
You will replace worn out or obsolete fixtures, equipment, furniture, or signs, repair the 
interior and exterior of the Business, adjacent parking areas and grounds, and periodically 
clean and redecorate the Business.  If at any time in our reasonable judgment, the general 
state of repair, appearance or cleanliness of the Business premises (including parking areas 
and grounds) or its fixtures, equipment, furniture or signs do not meet our then-current 
standards, we will so notify you, specifying the action you must take to correct the 
deficiency.  If you fail, within 10 days after receipt of notice, to commence action and 
continue in good faith and with due diligence, to undertake and complete any required 
maintenance or refurbishing, we may (in addition to our termination rights under the 
Franchise Agreement) enter the Business premises and correct the deficiencies on your 
behalf, and at your expense. 
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ITEM 7 

ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

Type of Expenditure 
(See Note 1) 

Low 
Estimated 
Amount 

(See Note 2)

High 
Estimated 
Amount 

Method of 
Payment 

When Due 
To Whom Payment 

Is To Be Made 

Initial Franchise Fee 
See Note 3 

$50,000 $50,000 Lump Sum When you sign 
the Franchise 
Agreement

Us 

Rent and Security Deposit 
(3 months) 
See Note 4

$25,000 $300,000 As agreed upon As incurred Landlord 

Leasehold Improvements 
See Note 5

$20,000 $800,000 As agreed upon As incurred Landlord, various 
third parties

Equipment 
See Note 6

$150,000 $1,000,000 As agreed upon Before opening Various suppliers

Fixtures, Furniture, Signage 
See Note 7

$12,000 $150,000 As agreed upon Before opening Various suppliers

Initial Inventory, Supplies, and 
Uniforms  
See Note 8

$4,000 $30,000 As agreed upon As ordered Various suppliers

Management System $4,000 $12,000 As agreed upon As ordered Various suppliers

Initial Training Expenses 
See Note 9

$1,000 $3,500 As incurred Before opening Various third 
parties

Licenses, Permits and 
Professional Fees  
See Note 10

$500 $30,000 As incurred Before opening Local government 
agencies; various 
third parties

Insurance 
See Note 11

$10,000 $25,000 As incurred Before opening Various third 
parties

Additional Funds - 3 months  
See Note 12

$20,000 $150,000 As incurred As incurred Employees, 
suppliers

TOTAL
See Note 13

$296,500 $2,550,500  

Notes:  

(1) The typical size of a Los Campeones business is approximately 5,000 to 28,000 square 
feet.  For several items discussed below, your cost will increase as the number of square 
feet increases.  A variety of factors may impact the size of your Business such as landlord, 
municipality or zoning board requirements or restrictions and availability and cost of leased 
or purchased space.  This Table reflects your estimated initial investment for a single 
Business operated under a Franchise Agreement.  We do not offer direct or indirect 
financing for your initial investment.   

(2) Except where otherwise noted, all fees that you pay to us are non-refundable.  Third-party 
lessors, contractors and suppliers will decide if payments to them are refundable. 

(3) You will pay us the Initial Franchise Fee as more fully described in Item 5. 



2025 Los Campeones® FDD 13 

(4) Depending on the market conditions and other factors in your geographic area, the cost 
associated with the Business premises may vary from the estimates provided in this Item 
7.  Our estimates assume that you will lease the Business premises.  The exact cost or 
impact on your rental expense will depend on several factors, including the condition of 
the premises, whether you elect to do more than the minimum required renovations, the 
landlord’s agreement to reimburse you for certain improvements, the size and location of 
the premises for your Business and other economic factors.  If you purchase the land and 
building for your Business, you will incur significantly greater costs in developing your 
Business.   

(5) Assuming that you will lease the premises for your Business, you will need to make certain 
leasehold improvements to the leased premises to comply with our approved plans and 
specifications.  We anticipate that you likely will negotiate the cost of leasehold 
improvements as part of your rental expense. The exact cost or impact on your rental 
expense will depend on several factors, including the condition of the premises, whether 
you elect to do more than the minimum required renovations, the landlord’s agreement to 
reimburse you for certain improvements, the size and location of the premises for your 
Business and other economic factors.  The exact amount of rental expense will vary greatly, 
depending on the location of the Business premises, the size of the premises, the portion of 
rent representing the value of leasehold improvements at the Business premises, local 
market conditions and other factors.  You will incur greater start-up costs if you cannot 
negotiate the cost of leasehold improvements as part of your rental expense.  The low end 
of this estimate assumes that the premises does not require additional improvements, or 
that you are able to negotiate the cost of the improvements as part of your rental expense. 

(6) The cost of purchasing any equipment, machinery, and other items used in your Business 
may vary as a result of the characteristics of the Business site, price differences among 
suppliers and shipping distances from suppliers.  The low estimate assumes that the size of 
your Los Campeones business is approximately 6,500 square feet, whereas the high 
estimate assumes that your Los Campeones business is approximately 25,000 square feet.  

(7) This amount includes estimated expenses for furniture, fixtures and signage required at 
your Business. Local sign codes will dictate the type of exterior signage that is allowed on 
certain properties and in certain areas. Certain locations may not permit exterior signage.  
The low estimate assumes that the size of your Los Campeones business is approximately 
2,500 square feet, whereas the high estimate assumes that your Los Campeones business 
is approximately 12,000 square feet. 

(8) We may be an approved supplier for certain items (see Item 8 for additional information.)  
This amount does not reflect amounts needed to replenish inventory during the initial stage 
of operation.  You must also purchase uniforms for your staff members.

(9) Estimated training expenses include salaries, benefits, lodging, meals and travel expenses 
for up to 2 people to attend the initial training program. 

(10) This amount includes expenses related to legal and financial advisor fees, and local license 
and permit fees.  The low end of this estimate assumes that you may already possess any 
required licenses or permits and do not require assistance from legal and financial advisors. 

(11) This amount estimates the expenses you will incur for insurance premiums from the time 
you sign your lease through the first 3 months of Business operations. 
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(12) This amount estimates the expenses you will incur during the first 3 months of Business 
operations, including initial wages and fringe benefits (for staff only), taxes, repairs, 
utilities, bookkeeping services that you must purchase from our designated supplier (which 
we estimate will cost between $50 to $200 per month), and interest payments on any 
business loans as well as on any interim financing or construction loans. These amounts 
are estimates, and we cannot guarantee that you will not incur additional expenses in 
starting the business.  Your costs will depend on factors such as how much you follow our 
systems and procedures, your management skills and experience, local economic 
conditions, the local market for the Los Campeones business concept and products, the 
prevailing wage rate, competition, the amount of the initial investment you decide to 
finance, and the sales level reached during the initial period. 

(13) This total is an estimate of your pre-opening initial investment and the expenses you will 
incur during the first 3 months of Business operations.  This total is based on our experience 
in opening and operating Los Campeones businesses in and around Minneapolis, MN.  You 
should review this amount carefully with a business advisor before deciding to purchase 
the franchise.  These figures are estimates only and we cannot guarantee that you will not 
have additional expenses in starting or operating your Los Campeones business. 

ITEM 8 

RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

To ensure a uniform image and uniform quality of Products and Services throughout the 
System, you must maintain and comply with our quality standards. 

Designated Products and Services 

You must purchase for use or sale at your Business those authorized products and services 
used in or sold at or from Los Campeones businesses, and any other services or products we 
designate, from us, our designees or from other suppliers we approve.  For example, as of the 
issuance date of this disclosure document, you must purchase and use in the operation of your 
Business bookkeeping services from our designated supplier.  See Item 7, Note 12 for further 
information.  We, or our affiliates or designees may be the designated or sole source of supply for 
certain services and products.  As of the issuance date of this disclosure document, however, neither 
we nor our affiliates are the designated or sole source of supply for any products or services, 
although we and our affiliates reserve the right to become the designated or sole source of supply 
for any products or services in the future.  

Location of your Business 

You must locate a site for your Business that we consent to, and you may not sign a lease 
or enter into a purchase agreement to acquire any land or building for the site until we have given 
our consent in writing.  We approve locations on a case-by-case basis, considering items such as 
size, appearance and other physical characteristics of the site, demographic characteristics, traffic 
patterns, competition from other businesses in the area and other commercial characteristics, such 
as purchase price and financing if you are acquiring the land and buildings and rental obligations 
and other lease terms (including those that we require be in the lease) if you lease the premises for 
your Business.  You are not required to purchase, lease or sublease the Business premises from us 
or our affiliate.   
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Building Construction; Fixtures, Equipment, Furniture and Signs 

You must satisfy our specifications and standards in constructing and developing your 
Business.  We recommend that you use a site location specialist to assist you in finding potential 
sites for your Business.  We may, but are not required to, furnish to you prototypical drawings and 
specifications for your Business reflecting any requirements for dimensions, interior design and 
layout, image, building materials, fixtures, equipment, furniture, signs and decor. You must submit 
any to us for approval any proposed plans and specifications of the construction, design and layout 
of the premises for the Business. You must ensure that the plans and specifications comply with 
the Americans with Disabilities Act and all other applicable federal, state and local laws, 
ordinances, building code and permit requirements and lease requirements and restrictions.  In 
developing and operating your Business, you may purchase only the types of construction and 
decorating materials, fixtures, equipment, furniture and signs that we require and have approved as 
meeting our specifications and standards for quality, design, appearance, function and performance.  
We or our affiliate, may be an approved supplier of one or more of these items. 

Computer Hardware and Software 

We currently require you to purchase the Management System we designate (including the 
Proprietary Software) from our designated third-party supplier (currently, Twins Oaks Software) 
or other approved suppliers (if any).  See Item 11 for further information.   

Insurance 

You must purchase and maintain in force, at your expense, insurance at a minimum in the 
types of coverage and amounts we specify in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.  All 
insurance policies will: (1) be issued by an insurance carrier(s) acceptable to us and having an A.M. 
Best rating of A or higher; (2) name us and our affiliates, and their respective officers, directors 
and employees, and any other person or entity we designate as additional insured; (3) contain a 
waiver of the insurance company’s right of subrogation against us and our affiliates, and any other 
person or entity we designate as an additional insured; (4) require your insurance to be “primary” 
and “non-contributory” with any insurance carried by us or our affiliates, or any other person or 
entity we designate as an additional insured; (5) contain the above-mentioned insurance coverage 
for each Business that you operate; and (6) provide that we will receive 30 days’ prior written notice 
of a material change in or termination, expiration or cancellation of any policy (or such shorter 
period as the insurance carrier may require and as we may approve).   

Your insurance policies must currently include the following minimum requirements:  

1. Commercial general liability insurance with limits not less than $1,000,000 each 
occurrence and $3,000,000 in the aggregate;  

2. Umbrella liability insurance with a limit not less than $2,000,000; (iii) professional 
liability (errors and omissions) insurance, which must include coverage for 
contingent bodily injury, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 per claims and 
$1,000,000 in the aggregate;  

3. Workers compensation which meet the statutory limits in the state(s) where you 
are located and/or doing business; and  
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4. Any other insurance coverages or amounts as required by law or other agreement 
related to the Business.   

We periodically may, with prior written notice to you, increase the minimum liability 
protection requirements, and require different or additional kinds of insurance to reflect inflation 
or changes in standards of liability.  If at any time you fail to maintain in effect any insurance 
coverage we require, or to provide satisfactory evidence of such coverage, we, at our option, may 
obtain insurance coverage for you.  You agree to promptly sign any applications or other forms or 
instruments required to obtain any insurance and pay to us, on demand, all premiums and other 
costs we incur, together with an administrative fee equal to 5% of the insurance premium.  You 
will provide us with copies of the certificate of insurance, insurance policy endorsements and other 
evidence of compliance with these requirements as we periodically require at least 2 weeks before 
you take possession and commence development of the Business premises and at such other times 
as we may require. 

You must also ensure that each Trainer: (i) has personal injury, property damage, and 
general liability insurance coverage; and (ii) names you and us, and our respective affiliates, and 
any other person or entity you or we designate as an additional insured, as additional insured; and 
(iii) provides documentation evidencing current certifications and insurance coverages. 

Advertising and Promotional Approval 

We may develop, and make available to you, local media planning assistance.  If we do 
so, you must use our recommended media plan in promoting the Business or otherwise develop, 
and obtain our advance written approval for, an alternative media/promotion plan.  In addition, 
you will use only our approved advertising and promotional materials in promoting the Business.   

Supplier and Product Approval 

We will provide you with lists of designated and approved manufacturers, suppliers and 
distributors (“Approved Suppliers List”), and designated and approved products and services, 
including bookkeeping services, other inventory items, fixtures, furniture, equipment, signs, 
supplies and other items or services necessary to operate your Business (“Approved Supplies List”).  
The Approved Suppliers List may specify the specific manufacturer of a specific product or piece 
of equipment, in which case you can purchase those products only from a source identified on the 
Approved Suppliers List.  We, an affiliate of ours or a third-party vendor or supplier periodically 
may be the only designated or approved supplier for certain products.  The lists specify the suppliers 
and the products and services that we have designed or approved for use in the System.  We may 
revise these lists and provide you with a copy of approved lists as we deem advisable.  If you 
propose to use any product, services, material, fixture, equipment, sign or other item that we have 
not approved, or purchase any items from any supplier that we have not approved, you must first 
notify us in writing and must provide us with sufficient information, specifications, samples, 
photographs, drawings or other information to permit us to determine whether the product, service, 
material, fixture, equipment, sign or other item (or brand of such item) complies with our 
specifications, or the supplier meets our approved supplier criteria.  We will notify you of our 
decision within a reasonable time following our receipt of all information requested.  We reserve 
the right to charge you for the reasonable cost of the inspection and evaluation and the actual cost 
of the test we conduct.  We may re-inspect the facilities and products of any supplier or approved 
item and revoke our approval of any item or supplier failing to continue to meet any of our criteria.  
We will send written notice of any revocation of an approved supplier or supply.  As part of the 
approval process, we may require that a proposed supplier sign a supplier agreement covering such 
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items as insurance, product quality, trademark use, and indemnification.  Notwithstanding the 
above, for designated products, services, materials, fixtures, furniture, equipment, signs and other 
items, or for items for which we have designated the supplier or suppliers you must use, you may 
not request an alternative item or an alternative supplier for that item.  We do not provide material 
benefits to you based on your use of designated or approved sources of supply. 

We apply certain general criteria in approving a proposed supplier, including the supplier’s 
quality and pricing of products, ability to provide products/services that meet our specifications, 
responsiveness, quickness to market with new items, financial stability, credit program for 
franchisees, freight costs, and the ability to provide support to the System (merchandising, field 
assistance, education and training respecting sales and use of products and services).  If we establish 
specific supplier approval criteria, such criteria will be available to franchisees upon request. We 
will notify you in writing if we elect to revoke our approval of a supplier. 

During our fiscal year ended December 31, 2024, neither we nor our affiliates received any 
revenues from franchisees as the result of required purchases or leases from us or our affiliates.   

One or more of our officers have an interest in us and our affiliates.  No officer owns a 
material interest in any other supplier.  

Miscellaneous 

We may negotiate prices for numerous products for the benefit of the System, but not for 
any individual franchisee.  There is no purchasing or distribution cooperative in the System.  We 
may, however, attempt to receive volume discounts for the System.  

We (directly or through an affiliate) may derive revenue directly or in the form of rebates 
or other payments from suppliers, based directly or indirectly on sales of products, advertising 
materials and other items to franchisees, and from other service providers, which may or may not 
be reasonably related to services we or our affiliates provide to these third parties.  These payments 
may range from less than 1% up to 10% or more of the total purchase price of those items.  We and 
our affiliates will retain and use any such payments as we deem appropriate or as required by a 
particular manufacturer, supplier or distributor.   

We estimate that the purchase or lease of products, equipment, software, signs, fixtures, 
furnishings, supplies, advertising and sales promotions materials and other items meeting our 
specifications will represent approximately 50% to 80% of the cost to develop the Business and 
50% to 80%  of the cost to operate your Business. 
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ITEM 9 

FRANCHISEE’S OBLIGATIONS 

This table lists your principal obligations under the franchise and other agreements.  
It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these agreements 
and other items of this disclosure document.   

Obligation Section in Agreement 
Disclosure 

Document Item 
a.  Site selection and acquisition/lease Sections 2 and 6 of the Franchise Agreement Items 8 and 11 

b.  Pre-opening purchases/leases Section 6 of the Franchise Agreement Items 7, 8 and 11
c.  Site development and other pre-
opening requirements

Sections 6 and 7of the Franchise Agreement Items 8 and 11 

d.  Initial and ongoing training Sections 1, 3, 7, 14and 15 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Item 11 

e.  Opening Sections 6 and 7 of the Franchise Agreement Items 5 and 11 

f.  Fees Sections 3, 4, 6, 7, 9, 11, and 14 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 5, 6 and 7 

g.  Compliance with standards and 
policies/ Operations Manual 

Sections 3, 5-9, 14, and 15 of the Franchise 
Agreement 

Items 11, 12 and 16 

h.  Trademarks and proprietary 
information

Sections 1, 6, 8, 9, and 12 of the Franchise 
Agreement

Items 13 and 14 

i.  Restriction on products/services 
offered

Sections 2 and 9 of the Franchise Agreement Items 8 and 16 

j.  Warranty and customer service 
requirements

Section 9 the Franchise Agreement Items 11 and 16 

k.  Territorial development and sales 
quotas

N/A N/A 

l.  Ongoing product/service purchases Sections 6 and 9 of the Franchise Agreement Items 8 and 11
m.  Maintenance, appearance and 
remodeling requirements

Section 9 of the Franchise Agreement Items 8 and  11 

n.  Insurance Section 9 of the Franchise Agreement Items 6, 7 and 8
o.  Advertising Sections 5 and 9 of the Franchise Agreement Items 6, 7 and 11
p.  Indemnification Section 18 of the Franchise Agreement None
q.  Owner’s participation/management/ 
staffing

Section 9 the Franchise Agreement Items 11 and 15 

r.  Records and reports Section 10 of the Franchise Agreement Item 6
s.  Inspections and audits Section 11 of the Franchise Agreement Item 6 

t.  Transfer Section 14 of the Franchise Agreement Items 6 and 17 

u.  Renewal Section 3 of the Franchise Agreement Items 6 and 17
v.  Post-termination obligations Sections 13 and 17 of the Franchise Agreement Item 17 
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Obligation Section in Agreement 
Disclosure 

Document Item 
w.  Non-competition covenants Section 13 of the Franchise Agreement Item 17 

x.  Dispute resolution Section 19 of the Franchise Agreement Item 17

ITEM 10 

FINANCING 

We do not offer direct or indirect financing.  We do not guarantee your note, lease or 
obligation. 

ITEM 11 

FRANCHISOR’S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND 
TRAINING 

Except as listed below, we are not required to provide you with any assistance. 

Pre-Opening Assistance.  Before you open your Business, we will: 

1. Provide you with reasonable assistance in connection with the selection and evaluation of 
proposed Business sites, as we deem appropriate (Franchise Agreement – Section 6(A) and 
Exhibit C). 

2. Provide the initial training program described below to your “Operating Principal,” (as 
defined in Item 15) and general manager (Franchise Agreement – Section 7(B)). 

3. Provide you with access to the confidential Operations Manual.  You must keep the 
Operations Manual confidential and discontinue using it when the Franchise Agreement 
terminates (Franchise Agreement – Section 7(E)). 

4. Make available to you the Management System that we have selected for the System as 
described further below (Franchise Agreement – Section 6(E)). 

5. Provide you with lists of approved suppliers and approved products, equipment, or services 
necessary to operate your Business (Franchise Agreement – Section 6(C)). 

6. We may, but are under no obligation to, provide you with the services of one of our 
representatives to assist you in the opening and initial operations of the Business.  If we 
elect to provide such assistance, we have the right to determine the duration, time, and 
method (in person or through electronic means) at which our representative is available to 
you.  (Franchise Agreement – Section 7(C)). 

We are not required to provide you any assistance with conforming your Business to any 
ordinances or codes, hiring any employees, or providing you with any necessary 
equipment, signs, fixtures, opening inventory, and supplies. 
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Ongoing Assistance.  During the operation of your Business:

(1) We will provide advisory services relating to Business operations, including Products 
and Services offered for sale, selecting, purchasing and marketing other approved 
materials and items, marketing assistance and, and general administrative and 
operating procedures (Franchise Agreement – Section 7(C)).

(2) We will periodically provide you with updated and revised materials for the Operations 
Manual (Franchise Agreement – Section 7(D)). 

(3) We may offer further training programs and/or refresher courses at your expense, some 
of which may be mandatory.  (Franchise Agreement – Section 7(B)). 

(4) We may periodically make suggestions to you with regard to your pricing policies.  
You may decide whether or not to follow these suggestions.  We also have the right to 
establish maximum prices and/or minimum prices to be charged by you for the 
Products and Services you offer at the Business, to the extent permitted by law. 
(Franchise Agreement – Section 9(O)). 

Site Selection.  

If you already have a potential site for the Business, you may propose the location to us.  
We may consent to the site after we have independently evaluated it.  The site for the Business will 
be identified in Exhibit A to the Franchise Agreement.  If you do not have a proposed site, you will 
sign Exhibit C to the Franchise Agreement and will have 6 months following the date of the 
Franchise Agreement to identify a Business site acceptable to us.  You are solely responsible for 
locating and obtaining a site which meets our standards and criteria and that is acceptable to us.  
We may, but are not required to, provide you with our general site selection and evaluation criteria.  
We recommend that you use a site location specialist to assist you in finding potential sites for your 
Business.  If you sign Exhibit C to the Franchise Agreement and we cannot agree on a site for a 
Business within the 6-month period, we can terminate your Franchise Agreement. 

You must submit to us a complete site report (containing information that we may 
reasonably require) for the proposed Business site.  The general site and evaluation criteria which 
you should consider include demographic characteristics of the proposed location, traffic patterns, 
parking, the predominant character of the neighborhood, the proximity to other businesses 
(including other Los Campeones businesses), and other commercial characteristics, and the 
proposed location, size of premises, appearance and other physical characteristics.  We will notify 
you in writing within 30 days after we receive your complete site report and other materials we 
request whether the proposed site satisfies our site selection criteria.  Our review of a site for the 
Business does not represent any recommendation or guaranty as to the success of the proposed site.  
If you and we are unable to agree on a site for the operation of the Business, the opening of your 
Business may be delayed.   

Development Time.  

The typical length of time between our acceptance of the Franchise Agreement and the 
opening of your Business is expected to vary from 6 to 12 months.  This period may be longer or 
shorter, depending on the time of year, availability of financing, local construction delays, how 
soon you can attend training or other factors.   
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If you do not obtain a site acceptable to us within 6 months or open your Business within 
6 months following the date in which we consent to the site for the Business, then we may terminate 
the Franchise Agreement. 

Advertising.  

All advertising and promotion by you in any medium must be conducted in a professional 
manner and must conform to our standards and requirements as set forth in the Operations Manuals 
or otherwise.  We may develop, and make available to you, local media planning assistance.  If we 
do so, you must use our recommended media plan in promoting the Business or otherwise develop, 
and obtain our advance written approval to, an alternative media/promotion plan.  In addition, you 
will use only approved advertising and promotional materials in promoting the Business.  If you 
desire to use any advertising or promotional materials in promoting the Business which we 
previously have not approved, you must submit all materials to us for our approval before using 
any such materials, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld.  If we do not disapprove 
those advertising or promotional materials within 5 days after you submit those materials to us, 
then you may use the materials, although we reserve the right to disapprove those materials at any 
later time.   

You are not required to spend any minimum amount on advertising or marketing your 
Business.  However, you must use your best efforts to promote and advertise your Business and 
must participate in all advertising and promotional programs we establish in the manner we direct.  
You must, at your expense, participate in, and honor all provisions of any gift card and/or loyalty 
program that we have established or may establish.  You also must honor all coupons, discounts 
and gift certificates as we may reasonably specify in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.  
You must also participate in any mystery shopper program or compliance assessments we require.   

You are also not required to contribute to any marketing fund, and we currently do not 
intend to establish or maintain a marketing fund.  We are also not required to conduct any 
advertising for the franchise system or within your Protected Territory. 

You will not be required to participate in a local or regional advertising cooperative.  As 
of the issuance date of this disclosure document, we do not have an advertising council composed 
of franchisees. 

Website.   

We retain the sole right to advertise the System on the Internet and to create, operate, 
maintain and modify, or discontinue the use of, a website using the Marks.  We may, but are not 
required to, grant you the right to access and participate in our website or other online presence.  
We also reserve the right to create interior pages on our website that contain information about your 
Business and other franchised businesses.  If we do create such pages, we may require you to 
prepare all or a portion of the page for your Business, at your expense, using a template that we 
provide and/or by paying our designated supplier.  Any updates or modifications to such pages, 
whether required by us or requested by you, will be at your sole expense.  All such information, 
updates, or modifications will be subject to our approval prior to posting. 

We and/or our affiliates are the lawful, rightful and sole owner of the Internet domain name 
loscampeonesgym.com, as well as any other Internet domain names registered by us, and you 
unconditionally disclaim any ownership interest in such domain names and any Internet domain 
names colorably similar thereto.  You may not register any Internet domain names in any class or 
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category that contains words used in or similar to any brand name owned by us or our affiliates or 
any abbreviation, acronym, phonetic variation or visual variation of those words. 

With our prior written consent, which we have the right to deny, you may establish or 
maintain a separate profile on Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn, YouTube, Pinterest, Instagram, 
Snapchat, or any other social media and/or networking site for your Business.  If we grant such 
approval, you must: (i) provide us with each applicable domain name and/or social media profile; 
(ii) establish and operate such profile, site or presence in accordance with our mandatory System 
standards and any other mandatory policies we designate in the Operations Manual or otherwise in 
writing from time to time; and (iii) utilize any templates that we may provide to you to create and/or 
modify any such profiles, sites or presences. 

Except as we set forth in the Operations Manual or in writing, you may not, without our 
prior written consent, (1) link or frame our website; (2) conduct any business or offer to sell or 
advertise any Products or Services or similar products or services on the Internet (or any other 
existing or future form of electronic communication); or (3) use additional email addresses in 
operating the Business beyond those we have authorized.  

Management System.   

You will use in the Business the client management and reporting system, including all 
existing or future communication or data storage systems, components thereof and associated service, 
which we have developed or selected for the System (the “Management System”).  The Management 
System may include one or more proprietary or other software programs developed or customized 
for us (the “Proprietary Software”).  You must use the Proprietary Software from us or our designated 
third party supplier.  The Proprietary Software will remain the confidential property of us or our third 
party supplier.  You may be required to enter into our or our designee’s standard form software license 
agreement in connection with your use of any Proprietary Software.  We reserve the right to charge 
you a license fee related to your use of the Proprietary Software.  You will pay the then-current fee 
(if any) for the Proprietary Software at or before the Proprietary Software is delivered to you. 

As of the issuance date of this disclosure document, the required Management System 
includes: basic computer hardware, Microsoft Office 365, designated gym software (currently, 
Twin Oaks Software), QuickBooks, and such other hardware and software that we may designate 
in the future.  We estimate that initial cost for the Management System will range from $2,000 to 
$5,000. You must also pay any ongoing fees associated with our designated gym software, which 
may be based upon the number of members or visitors that your Business has.  

You must have Internet access with a form of high-speed connection as we require.  You 
will use an e-mail address we designate for communication with us.  We have the right to designate 
a single source from which you must purchase the Management System, any software or hardware 
components thereof or associated service, and we or our affiliates may be that single source.  You 
will be required to use and, at our discretion, pay for all future updates, supplements and 
modifications to the Management System, including any additions or modifications to any 
Proprietary Software.  We also may independently access financial information and customer data 
produced by or otherwise located on your Management System (collectively the “Client Data”).  
The Client Data is our sole and exclusive property, although you will be responsible for obtaining 
all customer consents necessary to allow us to use the Customer Data for various purposes as we 
may identify. We will periodically establish policies respecting the Customer Data.  You must 
comply with all laws and regulations relating to privacy and data protection, and must comply with 
any privacy policies or data protection and breach response policies we periodically may establish.  
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You cannot use the Customer Data for any purpose other than the operation of the Business 
consistent with our standards of use.  There are no contractual limitations on our right to access the 
information and data. 

You may be required to obtain ongoing maintenance and repairs respecting the 
Management System, as well as upgrades or updates respecting the Proprietary Software.  We 
estimate the cost of optional or required maintenance, updates and upgrades will be $0 to $500 per 
year.  There are no contractual limitations on the frequency and cost of additional maintenance or 
repair.  You must incorporate these upgrades and updates to the Management System.  We, our 
affiliates, and third-party suppliers are not currently required to provide any ongoing maintenance, 
repairs, upgrades or updates to you. 

Training.   

Before you open your Business, your Operating Principal and general manager must attend 
our initial training program at a location we designate. We currently plan to offer the initial training 
program once or more each calendar quarter, or as we determine is necessary during the upcoming 
year.  The initial training program may include online, classroom and on-the-job modules.  The 
initial training program includes instruction relating to Business operations, understanding the 
equipment usage and maintenance, customer service, marketing and sales programs and methods 
of controlling operating costs. The Operating Principal and general manager may be the same 
person. 

You may not open your Business unless the Operating Principal and general manager 
complete the initial training program to our satisfaction.  If we determine that the proposed 
Operating Principal or general manager is not qualified to manage the Business, we will allow you 
to select a substitute Operating Principal or general manager to complete the initial training 
program at an additional expense to you. 

As of the issuance date of this disclosure document, the initial training program consists 
of the following: 

TRAINING PROGRAM 

Subject 

Hours of 
Classroom 
Training 

Hours of On-the-
Job Training Location 

Operations manual 4
Minneapolis, MN or another location 
we designate

In-gym sales and operations 12
Minneapolis, MN or another location 
we designate

in-gym management practices 12
Minneapolis, MN or another location 
we designate

General in-gym 
cleaning/maintenance 

12
Minneapolis, MN or another location 
we designate

Training comprehension debrief 2-4
Minneapolis, MN or another location 
we designate

Total  6-8 36 
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The instructional materials for all training programs include the Operations Manual, 
handouts and visual aids, and will include lecture, classroom discussion, hands-on demonstration 
and/or practice training at a Los Campeones business.   

Benjamin Loehrer oversees the initial training program.  Benjamin has been our President 
since our inception, and has 20 years of experience in the fitness industry.   

We do not charge a fee for your initial Operating Principal and general manager to attend 
the initial training program.  You are, however, responsible for travel and living expenses that your 
Operating Principal and general manager incur while attending the initial training program.  
Additional general managers of the Business and other employees you designate may, but are not 
required, to attend our initial training program, provided that they attend the initial training program 
at the same time as the Operating Principal 

In addition, all new Operating Principals and general managers must complete our 
designated initial training program.  We may charge you a reasonable fee for those new or 
additional individuals who attend the initial training program. 

We may require that the Operating Principal and any general manager attend all 
supplemental and refresher training programs that we designate for up to 3 days each calendar year.  
We may decide the time and place of training and may charge you a reasonable fee for these 
supplemental and refresher training programs.  Upon your reasonable request, and subject to our 
availability, we may provide additional onsite assistance to you, and we may charge you a 
reasonable fee for this onsite assistance. We may also require you to pay any related travel, room 
and board expenses that we incur in providing onsite assistance to you. 

You are solely responsible for the compensation, travel, lodging and living expenses you 
and your employees incur in attending the initial training program, and supplemental or refresher 
training programs.  You also are solely responsible for paying your employees and providing all 
necessary insurance, including worker’s compensation insurance, for you and your employees, 
while you and your employees attend training or any franchise conventions or meetings.

 Operations Manual.  

During the term of the Franchise Agreement, we will allow you to access our Operations 
Manual (the “Operations Manual”).  The Operations Manual is currently 85 pages, and its table of 
contents is attached hereto as Exhibit C. 

ITEM 12 

TERRITORY 

You will receive a “Protected Territory” surrounding the location of your Los Campeones 
business,   

The size of your Protected Territory will generally consist of a 8-mile radius from your Los 
Campeones business.  The Protected Territory may be larger or smaller if your Los Campeones 
business is located in a less populated rural area or a densely populated urban area, respectively.  
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During the term of the Franchise Agreement, if you are complying with the provisions of 
the Franchise Agreement, we will not establish any other franchised or company-owned Los 
Campeones businesses in the Protected Territory.   

The location of the Business and the Protected Territory will be identified in Exhibit A to 
the Franchise Agreement.  If you do not have a site for your Business when you sign the Franchise 
Agreement, you will sign Exhibit C to the Franchise Agreement and will have 6 months after the 
date of the Franchise Agreement to find a site for the Business (acceptable to us) within the 
designated geographic area.  Our designation of the geographic area in Exhibit C to the Franchise 
Agreement does not confer any territorial rights upon you during the period in which you are 
attempting to identify and receive our approval of a site for the Business, and we and our affiliates 
reserve, during that period, all territorial rights within the geographic area, including without 
limitation the right to directly operate, or grant to other persons or entities the right to operate, Los 
Campeones businesses within the geographic area.  Once we approve a location within the 
geographic area established in Exhibit C, we and you will then sign Exhibit A (which identifies the 
Protected Territory for your Business).  Maintenance of your Protected Territory is not dependent 
upon achieving certain sales volumes, market penetration or other contingency.  Your Protected 
Territory will not be altered during the initial term of your Franchise Agreement, although it may 
be altered upon renewal of your franchise. 

You will not relocate the Business from the approved site without our prior written consent.  
If you relocate the Business, the “new” franchised location of the Business to which we consent, 
including the real estate and building, must comply with all applicable provisions of the Franchise 
Agreement and with our then-current specifications and standards for Los Campeones businesses.  
We will not unreasonably withhold our consent to the proposed relocation, provided we have 
received at least 90 days’ written notice prior to the closing of the Business at the existing approved 
site, you have obtained a site to which we have consented, and you agree to open the new approved 
site for the Business within 5 days after you close the Business at the prior approved site and comply 
with any other conditions that we may require.  If you must relocate the Business because the 
Business was destroyed, condemned or otherwise became untenantable by fire, flood or other 
casualty, you must reopen the Business at the new approved site in the Protected Territory within 
12 months after you discontinue operation at the existing approved site.  In addition, we will require 
you to pay us a fee equal to $2,000 for services we will provide in connection with any relocation 
of the Business before we will review a proposed new approved site.  There is no guarantee that an 
acceptable location will be available for relocation, and if you cannot relocate your Business within 
the Protected Territory and reopen your Business within the required time periods, the Franchise 
Agreement will terminate. 

We (for ourselves and our affiliates) reserve all rights not expressly granted to you in the 
Franchise Agreement, without compensation to you, including:  

1. To directly operate, or to grant other persons the right to operate, Los 
Campeones businesses at locations outside the Protected Territory; 

2. To promote, sell and distribute anywhere the Services and the Products 
authorized for sale at Los Campeones businesses under trademarks and service marks other 
than the Marks through similar or dissimilar channels of distribution; 

3. To promote, sell, distribute and license the Services and the Products 
authorized for sale at Los Campeones businesses as well as ancillary services and products 
under the Marks through dissimilar channels of distribution (i.e., other than the operation 
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of full-service Los Campeones businesses), including direct mail, wholesale activities, and 
by electronic means such as the Internet, and pursuant to conditions we deem appropriate 
within and outside the Protected Territory;  

4. To acquire exercise or fitness-related businesses or systems and operate 
such businesses or systems regardless of whether such businesses are located within or 
outside the Protected Territory, and to be acquired by any third party which operates 
exercise or fitness-related businesses or systems regardless of whether such businesses or 
systems are located within or outside the Protected Territory; and 

5. To promote the System and Los Campeones businesses generally, 
including on the Internet (or any other existing or future form of one or more electronic 
commerce) and to create, operate, maintain and modify, or discontinue the use of websites 
using the Marks. 

We recommend that you concentrate all advertising and other solicitation of customers 
inside the local geographic area of your Business. You may not offer, promote or sell any Products 
or Services through any other channels of distribution, including the Internet (or any other existing 
or future form of electronic commerce). You will not have the right to subfranchise or sublicense 
any of your rights under the Franchise Agreement.   

We do not grant to you any options, rights of first refusal or similar rights to acquire 
additional franchises within a particular territory. 

Except as disclosed, neither we nor any affiliate operates, franchises, or has any current 
plans to operate or franchise any business selling the Products and Services authorized for sale at a 
Los Campeones business under any other trademark or service mark.

ITEM 13 

TRADEMARKS 

The Franchise Agreement licenses you to use the Marks, which include the trademark Los 
Campeones®, as well as other trademarks, service marks, trade names, domain names, logos and 
other commercial symbols we and or Affiliate may use and register in the future for the System.  
We and Affiliate also claim common law trademark rights for the Los Campeones® trademark, 
and will claim common law trademark rights in all other Marks.   

The following schedule lists only the principal Marks that you are licensed to use, all of 
which are registered on the Principal Register of the United States Patent and Trademark Office:  
We or Affiliate has filed all required affidavits and renewals for the principal Marks.

Principal Trademark Registration No. Registration Date 
LOS CAMPEONES 5744201 May 7, 2019

LOS CAMPEONES (and Design) 5744202 May 7, 2019 

LOS CAMPEONES THE BEST GYM 
IN TOWN

5749502 May 14, 2019 

Affiliate owns the Marks.  Affiliate has licensed to us the right to use the Marks and to 
sublicense the use of the Marks to operate Los Campeones businesses under a trademark license 
agreement dated December 6, 2020 (the “Trademark License Agreement”).  Affiliate may 
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terminate the Trademark License Agreement if our misuse of the Marks materially impairs the 
goodwill associated with the Marks, if we violate any of Affiliate’s instructions concerning the 
quality of the Marks, or if we fail to perform any other obligation under the Trademark License 
Agreement, and we fail to cure such breach within 30 days.  If the Trademark License Agreement 
terminates, any then-existing sublicenses (franchises) will continue for the term of the sublicenses, 
provided that the franchisees comply with all other terms of their Franchise Agreements.  The 
Trademark License Agreement contains no other material limitations. 

We have the right to periodically change the list of Marks.  Your use of the Marks and any 
goodwill is to our and Affiliate’s exclusive benefit and you retain no rights in the Marks.  You also 
retain no rights in the Marks when the Franchise Agreement expires or terminates.  You are not 
permitted to make any changes or substitutions respecting the Marks unless we direct in writing.  
You may not use any Mark or portion of any Mark as part of any corporate or any trade name, or 
any modified form or in the sale of any unauthorized product or service, or in any unauthorized 
manner.  You may not use any Mark or portion of any Mark on any website without our prior 
written approval. 

There are currently no effective material determinations by the U.S. Patent and Trademark 
Office, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, the trademark administrator of any state or any 
court, or any pending infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding, or any pending material 
litigation, involving the principal Marks that are relevant to your use in any state.  There are 
currently no agreements in effect that significantly limit our or Affiliate’s rights to use or license 
the use of any principal Marks in any manner material to the franchise. 

You must notify us immediately in writing of any apparent infringement of or challenge to 
your use of any Mark, or any claim by any person of any rights in any Mark or any similar trade 
name, trademark or service mark of which you become aware.  You must not communicate with 
any person other than us and Affiliate and our counsel regarding any infringement, challenge or 
claim.  We and Affiliate may take any action we and Affiliate deem appropriate and have the right 
to exclusively control any litigation or other proceeding arising out of any infringement, challenge 
or claim relating to any Mark.  You will sign all documents, provide assistance and take all action 
as we and Affiliate may reasonably request to protect and maintain our and Affiliate’s interests in 
any litigation or other proceeding or to otherwise protect and maintain our and Affiliate’s interests 
in the Marks.  We and Affiliate are unaware of any infringing uses or superior rights that could 
materially affect your use of the principal Marks. 

You will have no obligation to and will not, without our prior written consent, defend or 
enforce any of the Marks in any court or other proceedings for or against imitation, infringement, 
any claim of prior use, or for any other allegation.  You will, however, immediately notify us of 
any claims or complaints made against you respecting the Marks and will, at your expense, 
cooperate in all respects with us and Affiliate in any court or other proceedings involving the Marks.  
Subject to our right of indemnification, we or Affiliate will pay the cost and expense of all litigation 
we and Affiliate incur, including attorneys’ fees, specifically relating to the Marks.  We and 
Affiliate and our legal counsel will have the right to control and conduct any litigation relating to 
the Marks. If we or Affiliate determine that a trademark infringement action requires changes or 
substitutions to the Marks, you will make these changes or substitutions at your own expense. 
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ITEM 14 

PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

There are no patents or copyrights currently registered or pending that are material to the 
franchise.  We and Affiliate do claim copyright ownership and protection for the Operations 
Manual as well as our and its advertising copy and design, written training materials and for certain 
other written materials we provide to assist you in operating your Business.  In addition, we treat 
certain portions of our training curriculum as trade secrets. 

There are no currently effective determinations of the Copyright Office (Library of 
Congress), USPTO, Board of Patent Appeals and Interferences, or any court, or any pending 
infringement, opposition or cancellation proceeding or any pending material litigation involving 
any patents or copyrights.   

We and Affiliate own certain proprietary or confidential information relating to the 
operation Los Campeones businesses, including information in the Operations Manual 
(“Confidential Information”).  You must keep confidential during and after the term of the 
Franchise Agreement the Confidential Information.  When your Franchise Agreement expires or 
terminates, you must return to us all Confidential Information and all other copyright material.  You 
must notify us immediately if you learn of an unauthorized use of the Confidential Information.  
We are not obligated to take any action and we will have the sole right to decide the appropriate 
response to any unauthorized use of the Confidential Information.  You must comply with all 
changes to the Operations Manual at your cost.  During the term of your Franchise Agreement, you 
and we will have joint ownership of customer data stored on your Management System.  As the 
customer data is Confidential Information, you must cease to use it when your Franchise Agreement 
expires or terminates. We will periodically establish policies respecting the Business customer data.  
For the avoidance of doubt, you may not use Confidential Information for the purpose of machine 
learning, augmented human intelligence development, training any artificial intelligence (“AI”) 
model, algorithm improvement, or similar data aggregation activities without our express written 
consent.  Such uses shall not be deemed related to the performance of the Franchise Agreement and 
are expressly prohibited.  You may not, without our prior written consent, input any Confidential 
Information into any generative AI platform, or disclose such information to any provider or source 
of generative AI services.  You must opt out of allowing any provider or source of generative AI 
to utilize Confidential Information for training of any AI model or for other purposes. 

ITEM 15 

OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE ACTUAL OPERATION 
OF THE FRANCHISE BUSINESS 

You must designate an individual we approve and who successfully completes our required 
training to be the operating principal (“Operating Principal”).  The Operating Principal is 
responsible for day-to-day Business operations.  The Operating Principal assumes his/her 
responsibilities on a full-time basis and may not engage in any other business or other activity that 
requires any significant management responsibility or time commitments, or that otherwise may 
conflict with his/her obligations.  In addition, at all times, the Business must be under the direct, 
on-site supervision of the Operating Principal or a general manager.  The Operating Principal and 
general manager may be the same person.  The Operating Principal and if applicable, any general 
manager, are not required to own an interest in you.   
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Each individual who owns any 10% or greater interest in the franchisee entity is considered 
a “Principal Owner” and must sign the Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations attached to the 
Franchise Agreement.  We may also require the spouse of any Principal Owner to sign the Guaranty 
Agreement.   These people agree to discharge all obligations of the franchisee entity to us under 
the Franchise Agreement and are bound by all of its provisions, including maintaining the 
confidentiality of Confidential Information described in Item 14 and complying with the non-
compete covenants described in Item 17.   

If at any time the Operating Principal or an approved manager does not manage the 
Business, we immediately may appoint a manager to manage the Business for you and charge you 
a reasonable fee for these management services. 

ITEM 16 

RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must offer and sell in and from your Business all, and only, those products and services 
that we have approved.  You must at all times maintain an inventory of approved Products and 
other items in such quantities and variety that we direct.  We may add new Products or Services 
that you must offer at or use in your Business.  Our right to modify the Products and Services to be 
offered at a Business is not limited.  You must also honor any customer’s valid membership to any 
other Los Campeones business in accordance with our System standards and specifications.  We 
may, upon written notice to you, establish, modify, or discontinue any policies or guidelines 
relating to reciprocity of members, memberships, or membership payments, and you must comply 
with such changes.  Our right to modify the Products and Services to be offered at a Business is not 
limited. 

ITEM 17 

RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

 THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

This table lists certain important provisions of the franchise and related 
agreements.  You should read these provisions in the agreements attached to this disclosure 
document. 

Provision
Section in Franchise 
Agreement or Other 

Agreement
Summary

a.  Length of the 
franchise term

Section 3 5 years. 

b.  Renewal or 
extension of the term 

Section 3 If you are in good standing, you can renew the Franchise Agreement 
for 1 additional 5-year term. 
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Provision
Section in Franchise 
Agreement or Other 

Agreement
Summary

c.  Requirements for 
you to renew or extend 

Section 3 Provide advance notice, comply with current franchise agreement, 
your Operating Principal and a Principal Owner satisfactorily 
completes any new/refresher training programs, sign our then-
current form of franchise agreement (which may contain materially 
different terms and conditions than your original Franchise 
Agreement), remodel, provide proof you will maintain possession of 
the Business premises, pay renewal fee, and sign a general release of 
claims.

d.  Termination by you Section 16 Franchise Agreement:  If you comply with the Franchise Agreement, 
and we fail to cure a material provision within 60 days after written 
notice. 

e.  Termination by us 
without cause

Not Applicable Not Applicable 

f.  Termination by us 
with cause

Section 15 We may terminate only if you default. 

g.  “Cause” defined – 
curable defaults 

Sections 15(A) and (B) Failure to conform to the material requirements of the System or the 
material standards of uniformity and quality for the Services and 
Products as described in the Operations Manual or as we have 
established under the System; failure to timely pay fees or any other 
obligations or liabilities due and owing to us or our affiliates, other 
Los Campeones businesses or suppliers, or any advertising 
cooperative obligations; failure to complete the initial training 
program or open and commence full operations of the Business 
within the required timeline; violation of any material provision or 
obligation of the Franchise Agreement; violation of any federal, state 
or local government health code in connection with the operation of 
the Business; or the result of an audit discloses an understatement of 
Gross Sales of 2% or more; etc. 

The cure period is generally 30 days, except you have only 10 days 
to cure a failure to pay amounts due, and you have only 72 hours to 
cure a health code violation (except as described in paragraph h 
below).

h.  “Cause” defined – 
non-curable defaults 

Sections 15(A) and (B) Any material misrepresentation or omission in the application for the 
franchise; any of your managers (including the Operating Principal), 
directors, officers or any Principal Owner is convicted of, or pleads 
guilty to or no contest to a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude, 
or any other crime or offense that we believe will injure the System, 
the Marks or associated goodwill, or if we have proof that such 
person has committed such a felony, crime or offense;  insolvency; 
any assignment for the benefit of creditors; abandonment of the 
Business; any act or conduct which materially impairs or otherwise 
is prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the name “Los 
Campeones” or any of the Marks or the System; an unauthorized 
assignment or transfer; threat or danger to the public health or safety; 
the lease for the Business premises expires or is terminated; 
falsification of any report, statement, or other written data furnished 
to us either during the franchise application process or after you are 
awarded a franchise; failure to comply with one or more material 
requirements of the Franchise Agreement on 3 separate occasions 
within any 12 month period; the nature of your breach makes it not 
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Provision
Section in Franchise 
Agreement or Other 

Agreement
Summary

curable; or you willfully and repeatedly deceive customers relative 
to the source, nature or quality of goods or services sold.

i.  Your obligations  on 
termination/nonrenewal 

Section 17 and 13(B) Cease operation of the Business and use of Marks, pay all amounts 
due us, stop using and return Operations Manual and other materials, 
assign to us the Business telephone number and telephone listing or 
(at our option) disconnect the telephone number, remove all signs 
and other materials containing any Marks, comply with obligations 
under any proprietary software license/access agreements, cancel all 
fictitious or assumed name filings, cease using Confidential 
Information, return all equipment leased and licensed from us or our 
affiliate in accordance with the terms of the Equipment Lease and 
License Agreement, and agree not to divert Business customers to 
any competing business for 2 years (also see paragraphs o and r 
below).

j.  Assignment of 
contract by us

Section 14(A) Assignee must fulfill our obligations under the Franchise 
Agreement.

k.  “Transfer” by you-
defined

Section 14(B) Includes transfer of Business or its assets, or your interest in the 
Franchise Agreement or any ownership change.

l.  Our approval of  
transfer by franchisee

Sections 14(B) and (C) We have the right to approve all transfers but will not unreasonably 
withhold approval.

m.  Conditions for our 
approval of transfer 

Section 14(B) New franchisee qualifies and completes training, all amounts owed 
us or our affiliates are paid, and you are in good standing, new 
franchisee assumes existing Franchise Agreement or (at our option) 
signs then-current agreement, we approve transfer agreement, 
transfer fee paid, lease assigned (if applicable), and you sign non-
compete agreement and general release.

n.  Our right of first 
refusal to acquire your 
business

Section 14(E) We can match any offer for your Business. 

o.  Our option to 
purchase your business 

Section 17(C) When the Franchise Agreement expires or terminates, we may 
purchase assets at fair market value, less the value of any goodwill 
associated with our Marks and other intangible assets.  We may also 
assume your lease for the Business.

p.  Your death or 
disability

Section 14(C) Franchise must be assigned by estate to an approved buyer within 
reasonable time not exceeding 12 months.

q.  Non-competition 
covenants during the 
term of the franchise 

Sections 13(C) and (E) No involvement in any business that offers or sells any fitness or 
exercise-related services, or any other offerings or items similar to 
the Services and Products, including any other business that may be 
confusingly similar to a Los Campeones business (a “Competing 
Business”), subject to applicable state law.

r.  Non-competition 
covenants after the 
franchise is terminated 
or expires 

Sections 13(D) and (E) 
and 17(A) 

Franchise Agreement: No involvement in any Competing Business 
at the former site of the Business, or within a 8-mile radius of the 
former site of the Business or any other then-existing Los 
Campeones business, for a period of 2 years following the 
termination or expiration of the Franchise Agreement.  

s.  Modification of the 
agreement 

Section 20(F)  No modifications generally, except in writing.  We may modify 
Operations Manual, Marks, System and goods/services to be offered 
to your Business.
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Provision
Section in Franchise 
Agreement or Other 

Agreement
Summary

t.  Integration/merger 
clause 

Section 20(N) Only the terms of the Franchise Agreement (is applicable) are 
binding (subject to applicable state law). Any representations or 
promises outside of this disclosure document and Franchise 
Agreement may not be enforceable. Nothing in the Franchise 
Agreement or any related agreement is intended to disclaim the 
representations made in this disclosure document.

u.  Dispute resolution 
by arbitration or 
mediation 

Section 19 Except for actions we bring for monies owed, injunctive or 
extraordinary relief, or actions involving real estate, we may require 
that all disputes first be subject to non-binding mediation in the 
county where our headquarters is located, subject to applicable state 
law.

v.  Choice of forum Section 20(D) Litigation (to the extent permitted) must be in state or federal court 
in the in the county where our headquarters is located at the time the 
suit is commenced (subject to applicable law). We also have the 
right to file suit where the Business is located. 

w.  Choice of law Section 20(E) Laws of the state of Minnesota, subject to applicable state law. 

ITEM 18 

PUBLIC FIGURES 

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchise. 

ITEM 19 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC’s Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or 
potential financial performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a 
reasonable basis for the information, and if the information is included in the disclosure document.  
Financial performance information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: 
(1) a franchisor provides the actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) 
a franchisor supplements the information provided in this Item 19, for example, by providing 
information about possible performance at a particular location or under particular circumstances. 

This Item 19 presents data for 10 Los Campeones businesses (7 company-owned 
businesses and 3 franchised business) (each, a “Gym”).  Gyms 1-7 were open and operating for all 
of the 2023 and 2024 calendar years.  Gyms 8-10 were opened during 2023 and were therefore not 
open and operating for the full 2023 calendar year but were open and operating for all of the 2024 
calendar year.  Gyms 1-10 are operated in a substantially similar manner to the Business offered in 
this disclosure document.   

Charts A-1, B-1 and C-1 below present data for Gyms 1-7 for the 2023 calendar year, and 
as described above, exclude data from Gym 8-10 because they were not open and operating during 
the full 2023 calendar year. 

Charts A-2, B-2 and C-2 below present data for Gyms 1-10 for the 2024 calendar year.  
Excluded from these charts is information from 4 Los Campeones businesses that were open and 
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operating as of December 31, 2024 (1 company-owned business, owned and operated by Affiliate 
in St. Paul, MN, 1 company-owned business, owned and operated by Los Campeones Unlimited in 
Brooklyn Center, MN, 1 franchised business, owned and operated by a franchisee in Bismarck, 
ND, and 1 franchised business, owned and operated by a franchisee in Sioux Falls, SD).  Of these 
4 Los Campeones businesses, 3 were excluded because they opened during 2024 and were therefore 
not open and operating for the full 2024 calendar year.   In addition, as further described in Note 3 
in Item 20, the company-owned Los Campeones business in St. Paul, MN also was excluded 
because of its unique nature, including not allowing personal trainers, being open 24-hours a day, 
7 days a week, and operating under a different membership fee structure.  No Los Campeones 
businesses were permanently closed during the 2023 and 2024 calendar years. 

Gyms 1-10 have the following characteristics:  

“Gym 1” is located in Minneapolis, MN, opened as a Los Campeones business in January 
2010, and has been owned and operated by Affiliate (Los Campeones Gym, LLC).  It contains a 
total of 15,000 square feet, which includes an outdoor area of 3,000 square feet where customers 
can exercise and use certain gym equipment. 

“Gym 2” is located in Minneapolis, MN, opened in October 2014, and has been owned and 
operated by Affiliate.  It contains a total of 11,000 square feet, which includes an outdoor area of 
800 square feet where customers can exercise and use certain gym equipment. 

“Gym 3” is located in Tempe, AZ and opened in November 2018.  It was owned and 
operated by a franchisee until we reacquired it from the franchisee in October 2022, and has been 
owned and operated by our affiliate Los Campeones NE since we repurchased it.  Gym 3 contains 
a total of 2,000 square feet, which includes an outdoor area of 500 square feet where customers can 
exercise and use certain gym equipment. 

“Gym 4” is located in Minneapolis, MN, opened in June 2019, and has been owned and 
operated by Los Campeones NE.  It contains a total of 12,000 square feet, which includes an 
outdoor area of 10,000 square feet where customers can exercise and use certain gym equipment.  

“Gym 5” is located in Saint Paul, MN, opened in September 2021, and has been owned 
and operated by Affiliate.  It contains a total of 28,000 square feet, which does not include an 
outdoor area where customers can exercise and use certain gym equipment.  

“Gym 6” is located in Austin, TX, opened in March 2022, and has been owned and operated 
by franchisee Los Campeones TX, LLC.  It contains a total of 16,000 square feet, which does not 
include an outdoor area. 

“Gym 7” is located in Eden Prairie, MN, opened in September 2022, and has been owned 
and operated by Affiliate.  It contains a total of 11,500 square feet, which does not include an 
outdoor area. 

“Gym 8” is located in Duluth, MN, opened in February 2023, and has been owned and 
operated by franchisee Los Campeones Duluth, LLC.  It contains a total of 6,500 square feet, which 
does not include an outdoor area. 

“Gym 9” is located in Hudson, WI, opened in December 2023, and has been owned and 
operated by Affiliate.  It contains a total of 15,000 square feet, which does not include an outdoor 
area.  



2025 Los Campeones® FDD 34 

“Gym 10” is located in Austin, TX, opened in December 2023, and has been owned and 
operated by franchisee Los Campeones TX, LLC.  It contains a total of 21,000 square feet, which 
does not include an outdoor area. 

Please carefully read all of the information in this Item 19, and all of the notes following 
the charts, in conjunction with your review of the historical data.   

Some outlets have earned this amount. Your individual results may differ. There is no 
assurance that you’ll earn as much. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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CHART A-1 TOTAL GROSS REVENUE DURING 2023 CALENDAR YEAR 

Gym 1 
Affiliate/ 

Company-
Owned

Gym 2 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 3 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 4 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned) 

Gym 5 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned) 

Gym 6 
(Franchised) 

Gym 7 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned) 

Total Gross 
Sales 
in 20231 

$932,237 $894,972 $114,160 $1,165,533 $1,225,486 $1,300,056 $677,557 

Membership 
Sales2 

$631,721 $635,353 $79,636 $876,576 $870,752 $897,551 $459,556 

Non-
Membership 
Sales3 

$163,981 $148,981 $17,006 $152,631 $145,077 $154,725 $132,711 

Products, 
Merchandise, 
and 
Accessories4 

$136,535 $110,638 $17,518 $136,326 $209,657 $247,780 $85,290 

CHART A-2 TOTAL GROSS REVENUE DURING 2024 CALENDAR YEAR 

Gym 1 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 2 
(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned)

Gym 3 
(Franchise

d and 
Affiliate/ 

Company-
Owned) 

Gym 4 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned) 

Gym 5 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned) 

Gym 6 
(Franchised)

Gym 7 
(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned) 

Gym 8 
(Franchised)

Gym 9 
(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned) 

Gym 10 
(Franchised)

Total Gross 
Sales 
in 20241 

$971,369 $856,177 $135,851 $1,324,003 $1,600,810 $1,548,906 $859,026 $354,990 $548,361 $1,368,475

Membership 
Sales2 $645,631 $398,737 $77,964 $939,756 $1,046,379 $1,067,089 $571,036 $276,101 $366,127 $987,617

Non-
Membership 
Sales3 

$201,198 $377,671 $30,514 $217,987 $280,800 $233,777 $189,900 $55,821 $75,095 $227,862

Products, 
Merchandise, 
and 
Accessories4 

$124,541 $79,770 $27,373 $166,260 $273,631 $248,041 $98,091 $23,067 $107,139 $152,996

Notes to Charts A-1 and A-2: 

1. “Total Gross Sales” means the aggregate amount of all sales of all Services and Products, 
all leasing or other fees paid by Trainers, and the sale of all other goods and services, 
whether for cash, on credit or otherwise, made or provided at or in connection with the 
Gym, including off-premises sales and monies derived at or away from the Business.  The 
term “Gross Sales” does not include: (1) any federal, state, municipal or other sales, value 
added or retailer’s excise taxes paid or accrued by you; or (2) adjustments for net returns 
on salable goods and discounts allowed to customers on sales.   

2. “Membership Sales” means the portion of Total Gross Sales that was derived from 
membership fees paid by members of that Gym, including auto pay and monthly paid in 
full memberships.  
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3. “Non-Membership Sales” means the portion of Total Gross Sales that was derived from 
non-members of the Gym that paid for daily or weekly passes to use the Gym, as well as 
the amount that Trainers paid the Gym.  

4. “Products, Merchandise, and Accessories” means the amount of Total Gross Sales that was 
derived from the sale of Products, including merchandise, food and beverage products, and 
general accessories sold at the Gym.  

5. All dollar amounts have been rounded to the nearest whole dollar. 

CHART B-1 AVERAGE AND MEDIAN NUMBER OF TRAINERS PER MONTH FROM 
JANUARY 2023 TO DECEMBER 2023 

Gym 12

(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 22

(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 3 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 42

(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 52

(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 6
(Franchised) 

Gym 72

(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Average 
Number of 
Trainers Per 
Month in 
20231

(Median 
Number of 
Trainers per 
Month in 
2023 – 
January to 
December)

16 
(15)

14 
(14)

3 
(3)

24 
(22)

24 
(22)

10 
(10)

15 
(17)

CHART B-2 AVERAGE AND MEDIAN NUMBER OF TRAINERS PER MONTH FROM 
JANUARY 2024 TO DECEMBER 2024 

Gym 12

(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned)

Gym 22

(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned)

Gym 3
(Franchise

d and 
Affiliate/ 

Company-
Owned) 

Gym 42

(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned)

Gym 52

(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned)

Gym 6 
(Franchise

d)

Gym 72

(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned) 

Gym 8 
(Franchise

d)

Gym 92

(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned) 

Gym 10 
(Franchise

d)

Average 
Number of 
Trainers 
Per Month 
in 20241

(Median 
Number of 
Trainers per  
Month in 
2024 – 
January to 
December)

23
(19)

12
(12)

4
(4)

23
(21)

15
(13)

18
(14)

14
(13)

1
(1)

3
(2)

10
(10)
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Notes to Charts B-1 and B-2: 

1. “Number of Trainers” means the number of Trainers that each Gym leased space to or 
otherwise authorized to offer services at the Gym at any point during a calendar month.   

2. Any Trainer that leases space at Gyms 1, 2, 4, 5, 7 and 9 is permitted to offer services at 
Gyms 1, 2, 4, 5, 7 and 9 without having to pay an additional fee.  For purposes of calculating 
the Number of Trainers for Gyms 1, 2, 4, 5, 7, and 9 each Trainer was only calculated once 
based upon the Gym that they frequented the most often in 2023 (Chart B-1) or 2024 (Chart 
B-2). 

CHART C-1 MONTHLY GROSS SALES IN JANUARY 2023 TO DECEMBER 2023 

Total Gross Sales1 by Month 

Month Gym 1 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-
Owned)

Gym 2 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-
Owned)

Gym 3 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-
Owned)

Gym 4 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-
Owned)

Gym 5 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-
Owned)

Gym 6 
(Franchised) 

Gym 7 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-
Owned)

January 2023 $103,403 $100,936 $10,118 $123,119 $115,835 $112,682 $63,447 

February 2023 $69,175 $68,777 $10,991 $84,924 $83,990 $85,953 $47,503

March 2023 $71,904 $68,685 $8,219 $89,187 $87,437 $94,299 $51,933 

April 2023 $70,384 $68,386 $9,193 $83,634 $91,609 $101,591 $50,543 

May 2023 $78,737 $77,055 $8,505 $94,642 $97,929 $103,942 $56,522 

June 2023 $78,321 $78,041 $8,927 $94,809 $102,551 $116,591 $57,931 

July 2023 $80,274 $76,221 $8,419 $101,715 $105,102 $117,062 $62,812 

August 2023 $79,721 $71,512 $10,430 $94,935 $105,047 $116,228 $61,110 

September 2023 $73,343 $70,110 $10,105 $95,807 $103,151 $108,232 $56,177 

October 2023 $73,379 $71,169 $10,948 $101,917 $107,985 $106,853 $54,648 

November 2023 $74,478 $73,681 $9,578 $98,231 $115,169 $102,709 $57,278 

December 2023 $79,118 $70,399 $8,727 $102,613 $109,681 $133,914 $57,653 

Total $932,237 $894,972 $114,160 $1,165,533 $1,225,486 $1,300,056 $677,557 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
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CHART C-2 MONTHLY GROSS SALES IN JANUARY 2024 TO DECEMBER 2024 

Total Gross Sales1 by Month 

Month Gym 1 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 2 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 3 
(Franchised 

and 
Affiliate/ 

Company-
Owned) 

Gym 4 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 5 
(Affiliate/ 
Company-

Owned)

Gym 6 
(Franchised)

Gym 7 
(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned) 

Gym 8 
(Franchise

d)

Gym 9 
(Affiliate/ 
Company
-Owned) 

Gym 10 
(Franchised)

January 
2024

$105,438 $94,654 $12,205 $134,546 $156,334 $59,782 $72,134 $26,104 $28,262 $112,234 

February 
2024

$79,296 $75,953 $11,353 $96,948 $120,379 $74,506 $60,319 $29,284 $36,021 $106,745 

March 
2024

$75,963 $67,055 $14,627 $95,871 $126,488 $86,356 $64,171 $24,785 $44,600 $106,775 

April  
2024

$74,747 $72,450 $5,070 $100,955 $122,677 $100,086 $61,591 $33,911 $42,928 $102,978 

May  
2024

$78,400 $70,228 $11,539 $100,123 $120,670 $115,249 $74,886 $31,299 $45,899 $116,053 

June  
2024

$78,900 $70,640 $11,141 $103,609 $128,382 $119,680 $77,035 $30,271 $44,186 $112,387 

July  
2024

$81,984 $72,171 $10,398 $111,239 $134,296 $124,300 $73,893 $29,734 $43,774 $114,659 

August 
2024

$78,384 $66,725 $12,365 $121,338 $139,550 $147,200 $76,534 $30,419 $45,762 $111,683 

September 
2024

$81,410 $68,889 $12,032 $120,404 $129,921 $148,011 $72,831 $25,412 $47,212 $101,808 

October 
2024

$80,485 $68,111 $11,569 $114,599 $135,164 $151,858 $73,818 $30,104 $50,925 $107,413 

November 
2024

$76,689 $66,065 $12,587 $111,841 $137,643 $233,001 $71,252 $36,925 $56,479 $141,324 

December 
2024

$79,672 $63,235 $10,965 $112,531 $149,307 $188,878 $80,560 $26,742 $62,313 $134,417 

Total $971,369 $856,177 $135,851 $1,324,003 $1,600,810 $1,548,906 $859,026 $354,990 $548,361 $1,368,475

Notes to Charts C-1 and C-2: 

1. “Total Gross Sales” has the same meaning as described in Charts A-1 and A-2. 

2. All dollar amounts have been rounded to the nearest whole dollar. 

The financial information we used in preparing the preceding financial performance 
representations was based entirely upon unaudited information reported to us by each affiliate or 
franchisee that operates the respective Gym.  Prospective franchisees or sellers of franchises should 
be advised that no certified public accountant has audited these figures or expressed an opinion 
with regard to their contents or form. 

Written substantiation of all financial performance information presented in this financial 
performance representation will be made available to you in our main office upon reasonable 
request.   
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Other than the preceding financial performance representation, we do not make any 
representations about a franchisee’s future financial performance or the past financial performance 
of company-owned or franchised outlets.  We also do not authorize our employees or 
representatives to make any such representations either orally or in writing.  If you are purchasing 
an existing outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet.  If you 
receive any other financial performance information or projections of your future income, you 
should report it to the franchisor’s management by contacting Benjamin Loehrer at Los Campeones 
Franchising LLC, 2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406, 612-850-0029, the 
Federal Trade Commission, and the appropriate state regulatory agencies.   

ITEM 20 

OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION 

TABLE NUMBER 1 
Systemwide Business Summary(1)(2) 

For Years 2022-2024 

Business Type Year 
Businesses at the Start 

of the Year 
Businesses at the 
End of the Year 

Net Change 

2022 1 1 0
Franchised(1) 2023 1 3 +2

2024 3 5 +2
2022 4 6 +2

Company-Owned(2) 2023 6 8 +2
2024 8 9 +1
2022 5 7 +2

Total Businesses 2023 7 11 +4
2024 11 14 +3

TABLE NUMBER 2 
Transfers of Businesses From Franchisee to New Owners (Other than the Franchisor) 

For Years 2022-2024 

State Year Number of Transfers 

2022 0

TOTAL 2023 0

2024 0
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TABLE NUMBER 3 
Status of Franchised Businesses(1) 

For Years 2022-2024 

State Year

Businesses 
at the 

Start of 
the Year 

Businesses 
Opened 

Terminations
Non- 

Renewals

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor

Ceased 
Operations / 

Other 
Reasons 

Stores at 
the End 
of the 
Year 

2022 1 0 0 0 1 0 0

Arizona(1) 2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2024 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Minnesota(3) 2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 0 1

North Dakota
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

South Dakota
2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

2024 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1

Texas 2023 1 1 0 0 0 0 2

2024 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

2022 1 1 0 0 1 0 1

TOTALS 2023 1 2 0 0 0 0 3

2024 3 2 0 0 0 0 5

TABLE NUMBER 4 
Status of Company-Owned Businesses(1)(2) 

For Years 2022-2024 

State Year

Businesses 
at the 

Start of 
the Year 

Businesses 
Opened 

Businesses 
Reacquired 

From 
Franchisees

Businesses 
Closed 

Businesses 
Sold to 

Franchisees

Businesses 
at the End 

of the 
Year 

2022 0 0 1 0 0 1

Arizona(1) 2023 1 0 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 4 1 0 0 0 5

Minnesota(2)(4) 2023 5 1 0 0 0 6

2024 6 1 0 0 0 7

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0
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State Year

Businesses 
at the 

Start of 
the Year 

Businesses 
Opened 

Businesses 
Reacquired 

From 
Franchisees

Businesses 
Closed 

Businesses 
Sold to 

Franchisees

Businesses 
at the End 

of the 
Year 

Wisconsin 2023 0 1 0 0 0 1

2024 1 0 0 0 0 1

2022 4 1 1 0 0 6

TOTALS 2023 6 2 0 0 0 8

2024 8 1 0 0 0 9

Notes to Tables 1 to 4 above 

(1) As further described in Item 1, this franchised Los Campeones business in Arizona was 
granted by Affiliate (Los Campeones Gym, LLC) as part of a “test” program and was 
assigned to us.  In addition, on October 1, 2022, we reacquired this franchised Los 
Campeones business from the franchisee, and our affiliate Los Campeones NE has owned 
and operated it as an additional company-owned location since this date. 

(2) As further described in Item 1, 5 of the company-owned Los Campeones businesses 
identified in this Item 20 in Minnesota are owned and operated by Affiliate, 1 of the 
company-owned Los Campeones businesses identified in this Item 20 in Minnesota is 
owned and operated by Los Campeones NE, and 1 of the company-owned Los Campeones 
businesses identified in this Item 20 is owned and operated by Los Campeones Unlimited. 

(3) The franchise agreement for the Los Campeones business opened in Duluth, MN during 
2023 was signed relying on the isolated sales exemption under Section 80C.03(e) of the 
Minnesota Franchise Act. 

(4) While the company-owned Los Campeones business that opened in Minnesota in 2023 
operates under the Marks, it is unique from the other Los Campeones businesses in that it 
is an extreme, hard-core gym, with excessively loud music, that does not allow for personal 
trainers, is open 24-hours a day, 7 days a week, and operates under a different membership 
fee structure. 

TABLE NUMBER 5 
Projected Openings 

As of December 31, 2024

State 
Franchise Agreements 
Signed But Business 

Not Opened 

Projected New 
Franchised Businesses 
in the Next Fiscal Year 

Projected New 
Company-Owned 

Businesses in the Next 
Fiscal Year 

California 0 0-1 0
Colorado 1 0 0
Iowa 1 0 0
Minnesota 0 0 1
Texas 0 0-1 0
Wisconsin 0 0-1 0
TOTAL 2 0-2 1
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Attached as Exhibit G is a list of all Los Campeones franchisees as of December 31, 2024.  
Also attached as Exhibit G is a list of the name, city, state and business telephone number (or, if 
unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every franchisee that had its franchise 
terminated, cancelled, not renewed or who otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do 
business under the franchise agreement for the period from January 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024, 
or who has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the issuance date of this disclosure 
document.  During the last three fiscal years, no current or former franchisees have signed 
confidentiality clauses that restrict them from discussing with you their experiences as a franchisee 
in our franchise system.  

If you buy a Los Campeones business franchise, your contact information may be disclosed 
to other buyers when you leave the franchise system. 

There is no trademark-specific franchisee association required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 21 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Attached as Exhibit A are our audited financial statements for the periods ended December 
31, 2022, December 31, 2023, and December 31, 2024.  We were organized on June 16, 2020, and 
our fiscal year end is December 31.   

ITEM 22

CONTRACTS 

The Franchise Agreement (including the Personal Guaranty) is attached as Exhibit B.  The 
State Addenda are attached as Exhibit E.  The General Release Form is attached as Exhibit F.  The 
Disclosure Acknowledgment Agreement is attached as Exhibit H. 

ITEM 23 

RECEIPTS 

Two copies of an acknowledgment of your receipt of this disclosure document are included 
at the end of this disclosure document (Exhibit I).  You should keep one copy as your file copy 
and return the second copy to us. 
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EXHIBIT A 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2024 



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING, LLC 
MINNEAPOLIS, MINNESOTA 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED 
DECEMBER 31, 2024, 2023 AND 2022 



Los Campeones Franchising, LLC 
Table of Contents 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

Page No. 

Independent Auditor’s Report 3 

Financial Statements 

Balance Sheets 6 

Statements of Operations and Changes in Member’s Deficit 7 

Statements of Cash Flows 8 

Notes to the Financial Statements  9 

2







FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5



Los Campeones Franchising, LLC
Balance Sheets

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 34,689$          54,131$          13,365$          

Royalties receivable 22,767 9,692 4,612

Total Current Assets 57,456 63,823 17,977

Total Assets 57,456$          63,823$          17,977$          

Liabilities and Member's Deficit
Current Liabilities

Accrued expenses 10,599$          2,063$            6,118$            

Due to related party - 8,740 5,688

Deferred franchise revenue 35,000 36,000 8,000

Total Current Liabilities 45,599 46,803 19,806

Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred franchise revenue, net of current portion 137,833 97,667 8,833

Total Liabilities 183,432 144,470 28,639

Member's Deficit (125,976) (80,647) (10,662)

Total Liabilities and Member's Deficit 57,456$          63,823$          17,977$          

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Los Campeones Franchising, LLC
Statements of Operations and Changes in Member's Deficit

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022

2024 2023 2022
Revenues:

Royalties 197,999$        91,079$          29,132$          

Franchise fees 60,834 13,166 8,019

Total Revenues 258,833 104,245 37,151

Other Income:
Interest income 625 393 -

General and Administrative Expenses 64,788 52,623 18,084

Net Income 194,670 52,015 19,067

Member's Deficit, Beginning of the Year (80,647) (10,662) (9,729)
Member distributions (239,999) (122,000) (20,000)

Member's Deficit, End of the Year (125,976)$     (80,647)$        (10,662)$        

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to the Financial Statements.

7



2024 2023 2022
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net income 194,670$        52,015$          19,067$          
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Change in operating assets and liabilities:

Royalties receivable (13,075) (5,080) (4,612)
Accrued expenses 8,536 (4,055) 6,118
Due to related party (8,740) 3,052 (3,052)
Deferred franchise revenue 39,166 116,834 7,000

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 220,557 162,766 24,521

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Member distributions (239,999) (122,000) (20,000)

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (239,999) (122,000) (20,000)

Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (19,442) 40,766 4,521

Beginning Cash and Cash Equivalents 54,131 13,365 8,844

Ending Cash and Cash Equivalents 34,689$          54,131$          13,365$          

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
Cash paid during the year for:

Interest -$                     -$                     -$                     

Income taxes -$                     -$                     -$                     

For the Years Ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022
Statements of Cash Flows

Los Campeones Franchising, LLC

See Independent Auditor's Report and Notes to the Financial Statements.
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Los Campeones Franchising, LLC 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Nature of Business 

Los Campeones Franchising, LLC (the Company) was incorporated in 2020 under the laws of the State of Minnesota. The 
Company is engaged in the business of developing and franchising a system of Los Campeones gyms. As of  
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, there were five, three, and one franchised gym locations, respectively, operating in 
Minnesota, Texas, South Dakota and North Dakota. 

2024 2023 2022

Franchised Gyms Open at the Beginning of the Period 3 1 1
New Franchised Gyms Opened During the Period 2 2 1
Franchised Gyms Closed or Reacquired During the Period - - (1)

Franchised Gyms Open at the End of the Period 5 3 1

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

The Company considers all short-term investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash 
equivalents.  

Royalties Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses 

Receivables, which are typically unsecured, are primarily the result of royalties from franchisees. Royalties receivable are 
stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances. At each balance sheet date, the 
company analyzes an expected allowance for credit losses and records an allowance if it is deemed to be material to the 
financial statements. In addition, at each reporting date, this estimate is updated to reflect any changes in credit risk since 
the receivables were initially recorded. 

The allowance estimate is derived from a review of the Company’s historical loss rates on royalties receivable. This
estimate is adjusted for management’s assessment of current conditions, reasonable and supportable forecasts
regarding future events, and any other factors deemed relevant by the Company. The Company believes historical loss 
information is a reasonable starting point in which to calculate the expected allowance for credit losses as the type and 
nature of the Company’s receivables have remained consistent since the Company’s inception. Based on the Company’s
current analysis of expected credit losses on their receivables, they have determined such amounts to be immaterial to 
the financial statements as a whole and have not recorded an allowance for credit losses as of December 31, 2024, 2023, 
and 2022. 
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Los Campeones Franchising, LLC 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Revenue Recognition 

As a franchisor, the Company’s revenue streams consist of franchise fees received from new and renewing franchisees 
and ongoing royalties from existing franchisees. 

When an individual franchise is sold, the Company agrees to provide certain services to the franchisee. Generally, these 
services include assistance in site selection and training personnel, implementation of an accounting system, and design 
of a quality control program. These services are considered pre-opening services. In addition, the Company, as franchisor, 
is obligated by the franchise agreement to provide franchisees with the right to utilize their brand, marks, and proprietary 
processes over the term of the franchise agreement. These rights are referred to as the franchise license. 

In recognizing revenue, the company has elected to apply the practical expedient to account for certain pre-opening 
services performed for franchisees as distinct from the franchise license itself and also has made an accounting policy 
election to account for all such services as a single performance obligation. 

Franchise fees are collected upfront upon signature of the franchise agreement and are recorded as deferred franchise 
revenue on the balance sheet. The portion of the initial franchise fee for new franchises pertaining to pre-opening services 
is recognized as revenue at the point-in-time when the franchisee’s gym opens, which is when the Company has
completed their performance obligation for these services. The portion of the initial franchise fee for new franchises 
pertaining to the franchise license is amortized into revenue over the life of the franchise agreement on a straight-line 
basis, as the performance obligation of the Company to provide such rights is satisfied over time. Franchise renewal fees 
pertain only to the continued use of the franchise license and are recognized in the same manner as franchise fees 
pertaining to the franchise license from new franchisees.  As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company had 
deferred franchise revenue, including both current and non-current portions, of $172,833, $133,667, and $16,833, 
respectively, on the balance sheets, which includes deferred amounts from franchise rights, territory purchases, and 
prepaid royalty deposits received from franchisees.  

The Company collects royalty payments from franchisees based upon the gyms’ previous months’ gross revenues.
Royalty revenue is recognized at the end of each month when billed. As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the 
Company had royalties receivable of $22,767, $9,692, and $4,612, respectively. Occasionally, the Company enters into a 
franchise agreement with a franchisee that calls for prepaid royalty deposits in lieu of an initial franchise fee, which is to 
be paid on the effective date of the franchise agreement. All prepaid royalty deposits are initially recorded as deferred 
revenue. As royalties are earned, deferred revenue is reduced and royalty revenue is recognized. 

Variable Interest Entities

The Company has evaluated the following entities that are under common control with the Company and has determined 
that they all meet the specific criteria under ASU No. 2018-17 and therefore consolidation is not required.  The entities and 
the related involvement in each are as follows: 

� Los Campeones Gym, LLC – This entity has the corporate owned gyms in five separate locations in Minnesota. 
The Company does not do any business with this entity, however they are the model gyms that the Company is 
looking to sell to franchisees. 

� Los Campeones NE, LLC - This entity has one corporate owned gym in Minnesota, and one corporate owned gym 
in Arizona. The Company does not do any business with this entity, however they are the model gyms that the 
Company is looking to sell to franchisees. 

� Loehrer Acquisitions, LLC – This entity holds the debt of Los Campeones Gym, LLC and does not do business 
with the Company. The debt is not guaranteed by the Company. 

� Quincy Holdings, LLC – This entity holds the debt of Los Campeones NE, LLC and does not do business with the 
Company. The debt is not guaranteed by the Company. 
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Los Campeones Franchising, LLC 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 

Note 1: Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Variable Interest Entities

� Beans and Juice, LLC – This entity hold real estate for existing operating gyms and does not do business with the 
Company. 

� Los Campeones Unlimited, LLC – This entity holds the debt for an existing gym and does not do business with the 
Company. The debt is not guaranteed by the Company. 

Income Taxes 

The Company is a limited liability company that is treated as a partnership for income tax purposes and is not subject to 
income taxes. The taxable income or loss of the Company is includible in the individual income tax return of its member 
based upon its percentage of ownership. Consequently, no provision for income taxes is required in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the State of Minnesota. With few exceptions, the 
Company is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, and local income tax examinations by tax authorities for years 
beginning before 2021. 

The Company has analyzed its filing positions with the Internal Revenue Service and the State of Minnesota. The 
Company does not anticipate any of its income tax filing positions would result in a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow as the Company believes its income tax filing positions
and deductions would be sustained on audit. No liability has been recorded for uncertain tax positions. 

The Company recognizes interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits, if any, as a component of general and 
administrative expenses. During the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company did not recognize any 
interest or penalties. 

Subsequent Events 

The Company has evaluated subsequent events occurring through March 31, 2025, the date on which the financial 
statements were available to be issued, for events requiring recognition or disclosure in the financial statements. 

Note 2: Member’s Interest

The Company’s LLC Agreement has established one class of member’s interest. Profits and losses are allocated based
upon each member’s ownership percentages in the Company, subject to the provisions of the LLC Agreement (one
member owns 100% of the Company’s membership interests).

Note 3: Related Party Transactions 

During the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, Los Campeones Gym LLC, a related party through common 
ownership was billed for legal services provided to the Company. As a result, the Company recorded an amount due to a 
related party on the balance sheet for the reimbursement of expenses paid on the Company’s behalf. As of
December 31, 2023 and 2022, the balance due to related a related party was $8,740, and $5,688, respectively. As of 
December 31, 2024, the Company repaid all amounts due to the related party. 

Note 4: Accrued Expenses 

Accrued expenses recorded on the balance sheets for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022 consisted 
primarily of accrued professional fees for legal and accounting services.
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LOS CAMPEONES® FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

THIS FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (“Agreement”) is made and entered into between Los 
Campeones Franchising LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company, with a principal place of business at 
2721 E. Franklin Ave. Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406 (“we” or “us”), and ________________________, 
a _______________________ formed and operating under the laws of the State of _________________, 
with a principal place of business at __________________________________________________ 
(“you”), and shall become effective on the “Effective Date,” as described in Section 20(N).   

INTRODUCTION 

A. We and our affiliate, Los Campeones Gym, LLC (“Affiliate”), as the result of the 
expenditure of considerable time, effort, skill and financial resources, have developed, and continue to 
develop, and own a “System” (as defined in Section 1(J)) relating to the development and operation of 
Los Campeones® gym businesses offering certain fitness services and related products (“Los Campeones 
businesses”).  

B. Affiliate owns the Marks (as defined in Section 1(D)), including the Los Campeones® 
trademark and other trademarks and service marks used in connection with the System. 

C. Affiliate has granted us the right to use and sublicense the right to use the Marks in 
connection with the development and operation of Los Campeones® businesses using the System.

D. We grant qualified entities the right to develop, own and operate a Los Campeones® 
business at a specific location. 

E. You desire to obtain the right to develop and operate a Los Campeones® business using 
the System at a specific location and we, in reliance on your representations, have approved your 
franchise application. 

AGREEMENTS 

In consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements stated below, the parties agree as 
follows: 

1. DEFINITIONS 

A. “Business” means the Los Campeones® business developed and operated under this 
Agreement which offers the Services and Products. 

B. “Confidential Information” means the methods, techniques, formats, marketing and 
promotional techniques and procedures, specifications, information, Customer Data (as defined in 
Section 6(D)), Operations Manual (as defined in Section 7(E)), systems, and knowledge of and 
experience in the operation and franchising of Los Campeones® businesses that we communicate to you 
or that you otherwise acquire in operating the Business under the System.  Confidential Information does 
not include information, processes or techniques that are generally known to the public, other than 
through disclosure (whether deliberate or inadvertent) by you. 

C. “Gross Sales” means the aggregate amount of all sales of all Services and Products, all 
leasing or other fees paid by Trainers (as defined in Section 9(E)) to you, and the sale of all other goods 
and services, whether for cash, on credit or otherwise, made or provided at or in connection with the 
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Business, including off-premises sales and monies derived at or away from the Business.  The term 
“Gross Sales” does not include:  (1) any federal, state, municipal or other sales, value added or retailer’s 
excise taxes paid or accrued by you; or (2) adjustments for net returns on salable goods and discounts 
allowed to customers on sales.  Gross Sales will not be adjusted for uncollected accounts.  For purposes 
of the Royalty Fee described in Section 4(B), the sale is made at the earlier of delivery of the service or 
product, or receipt of payment. 

D. “Marks” means the Los Campeones® trademark and service mark, the related design 
logo, and other trademarks, service marks, domain names, logos, slogans, and commercial symbols that 
we own, or have a license from Affiliate to use and sublicense the right to use, and that we have 
designated, or may in the future designate, for use in the System, with the understanding that we may, 
subject to the terms of this Agreement, at any time modify, discontinue, add to or substitute the Marks 
used in connection with the System.  

E. “Operating Principal” means the designated individual responsible for the day-to-day 
operation of the Business.  We must approve the Operating Principal and the Operating Principal must 
successfully complete our initial training program and all mandatory follow-up training programs. If you 
are an individual, you may be the Operating Principal. Your Operating Principal is identified on the 
Ownership and Management Addendum attached as Exhibit B. 

F. “Principal Owner” means any person or entity who directly or indirectly owns a ten 
percent (10%) or greater interest in you.  If any corporation or other entity other than a partnership is a 
Principal Owner, a “Principal Owner” also will mean a shareholder or owner of a ten percent (10%) or 
greater interest in such corporation or other entity.  If a partnership is a Principal Owner, a “Principal 
Owner” also will mean each general partner of such partnership and, if such general partner is an entity, 
each owner of a ten percent (10%) or greater interest in such general partner. Your Principal Owner(s) are 
identified on the Ownership and Management Addendum attached as Exhibit B.  As used in this 
Agreement, any reference to Principal Owner includes all Principal Owners. 

G. “Products” means retail products, accessories, vending items and other products that we 
periodically may modify or otherwise approve for sale at the Business.  

H. “Protected Territory” means the geographic area, identified in Exhibit A, which is an area 
surrounding the location of the Business that we determine. 

I.  “Services” means the fitness, training, and other related services authorized for Los 
Campeones® businesses, as we periodically may modify or otherwise approve for sale at the Business.

J. “System” means the Los Campeones® system which includes the sale of Services and 
Products for the individual consumer under the Marks at Los Campeones® businesses, using certain 
distinctive types of décor, products, equipment (including the Management System (as defined in Section 
6(D))), supplies, Confidential Information, business techniques, methods and procedures, and sales 
promotion programs, as we periodically may modify and further improve.   

2. GRANT OF FRANCHISE 

A. Grant of Franchise, Authorized Location and Protected Territory.  Subject to the 
provisions contained in this Agreement, we grant you a franchise (the “Franchise”) to own and operate a 
Los Campeones® business (the Business) at a site we approve (the “Authorized Location”) and to use the 
Marks and other aspects of the System in operating the Business.  The location of the Business and your 
Protected Territory are identified in Exhibit A, or alternatively, we and you will complete and sign 
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Exhibit C, in which we and you agree on a geographic area (“Area”) in which the location of the Business 
will be established, subject to our written consent.  If we and you sign Exhibit C, you will have six (6) 
months after the Effective Date of this Agreement to select and obtain our consent to a location for the 
Business within the Area, purchase or sign a lease and the Business Lease Addendum attached as 
Exhibit C for the premises of that Business location, and sign Exhibit A, which we will revise to identify 
the Authorized Location of the Office and the Protected Territory.  You do not receive any territorial 
rights upon designation of the Area on Exhibit C, and we and our affiliates reserve all territorial rights 
within the Area, including the right to directly operate, or grant to other parties or entities the right to 
operate, Los Campeones® businesses within the Area.  

B. Nature of Your Protected Territory.  During the term of this Agreement (as described in 
Section 3), if you are in compliance with the terms of this Agreement, we will not directly operate or 
franchise other persons to operate any other Los Campeones® business within the Protected Territory.  
The license granted to you under this Agreement is personal in nature, may not be used at any location 
other than at the Business, and does not include the right to sell any Services or Products identified by the 
Marks at any location other than at the Business.  This Agreement does not include the right to sell any 
Services or Products identified by the Marks through any other channels of distribution, including the 
Internet (or any other existing or future form of electronic commerce).  You will not open any other Los 
Campeones® business in the Protected Territory unless we permit you to do so under a separate franchise 
agreement. You will not have the right to subfranchise or sublicense any of your rights under this 
Agreement.  You will not use the Business for any purposes other than the operation of a Los 
Campeones® business.  

C. Rights Reserved to us.  We (for us and our affiliates) retain the right: 

1. To directly operate, or to grant other persons the right to operate, Los 
Campeones® businesses at locations outside the Protected Territory; 

2. To promote, sell and distribute anywhere the Services and the Products 
authorized for sale at Los Campeones® businesses under trademarks and service marks other 
than the Marks through similar or dissimilar channels of distribution; 

3. To promote, sell, distribute and license the Services and the Products authorized 
for sale at Los Campeones® businesses as well as ancillary services and products under the 
Marks through dissimilar channels of distribution (i.e., other than the operation of full-service Los 
Campeones® businesses), including direct mail, wholesale activities, and by electronic means 
such as the Internet, and pursuant to conditions we deem appropriate within and outside the 
Protected Territory; 

4. To acquire exercise or fitness-related businesses or systems and operate such 
businesses or systems regardless of whether such businesses are located within or outside the 
Protected Territory, and to be acquired by any third party which operates exercise or fitness-
related businesses or systems regardless of whether such businesses or systems are located within 
or outside the Protected Territory; and 

5. To promote the System and Los Campeones® businesses generally, including on 
the Internet (or any other existing or future form of one or more electronic commerce) and to 
create, operate, maintain and modify, or discontinue the use of websites using the Marks. 

D. Additional Reservation of Rights. We and our affiliates reserve any and all rights not 
expressly granted to you under this Agreement. 
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3. TERM OF FRANCHISE; RENEWAL RIGHTS 

A. Term.  The term of this Agreement will be for five (5) years commencing on the Effective 
Date of this Agreement.

B. Renewal Term.  You will have the right to enter into a successor agreement for the 
Franchise for one (1) additional renewal term of five (5) years, provided you satisfy the following conditions 
respecting the renewal term:  

1. You have given us written notice at least one hundred eighty (180) days but no 
more than three hundred and sixty (360) days before the end of the term of this Agreement of your 
intention to enter into a successor agreement; 

2. You have complied with all of the material provisions of this Agreement and all 
other agreements between you and us or any of our respective affiliates, including the payment of 
all monetary obligations you owe to us or our affiliates, and have complied with our material 
operating and quality standards and procedures; 

3. You provide documentation satisfactory to us that you have the right to maintain 
possession of the Business premises during the renewal term described in our then-current 
Franchise Agreement and have, at your expense, made such reasonable capital expenditures 
necessary to remodel, modernize and redecorate the Business premises and to replace and 
modernize the décor, supplies, fixtures, signs, and equipment used in operating the Business so that 
the Business reflects the then-current physical appearance of new Los Campeones® businesses, or 
can secure a new location within the Protected Territory to which we have consented (such consent 
not to be unreasonably withheld) and agree to make all required improvements to the Business 
premises and install all required fixtures and equipment in compliance with our then-current 
standards and specifications for new Los Campeones® businesses; 

4. Both a Principal Owner we approve and the Operating Principal complete, to our 
satisfaction, any new training and refresher programs as we may reasonably require.  You are 
responsible for travel, living and compensation costs of attendees; 

5. You have paid to us at least thirty (30) days before the term of this Agreement 
expires a Renewal Fee equal to Fifteen Thousand Dollars ($15,000);  

6. You sign our then-current standard Franchise Agreement which may differ 
materially from the provisions of this Agreement; provided that you will be required to pay the 
Renewal Fee in lieu of the Initial Franchise Fee stated in the then-current Franchise Agreement; and 

7. You and each Principal Owner sign a general release, in form acceptable to us, of 
all claims against us and our affiliates, officers, directors, employees, and agents. 

4. FRANCHISE AND OTHER FEES 

A. Initial Franchise Fee.  You will pay us an “Initial Franchise Fee” of Fifty Thousand 
Dollars ($50,000). The Initial Franchise Fee is payable when you sign this Agreement and is not 
refundable.   

B. Royalty Fee.  You will pay us a non-refundable monthly “Royalty Fee” equal to six 
percent (6%) of Gross Sales. The Royalty Fee is due and payable on or before the tenth (10th) day of each 
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calendar month based on Gross Sales for the immediately preceding calendar month, or as described in 
the Operations Manual.   

C. Technology Fee.  We reserve the right to establish and require that you pay to us a 
monthly technology fee (the “Technology Fee”) associated with maintaining, developing, and/or updating 
any technology used in connection with the System as we deem appropriate, upon thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice to you.  Once established, we reserve the right to increase the amount of the Technology 
Fee by up to ten percent (10%) each calendar year during the term of this Agreement upon written notice 
to you.  Any applicable monthly Technology Fee will be due each month and payable at the same time 
and in the same manner as the Royalty Fee, or as we otherwise specify in writing.  

D. Electronic Transfer of Funds.  We will require you to sign electronic transfer of funds 
authorization attached as Exhibit F, and other documents as we periodically designate to authorize your 
bank to transfer, either electronically or through some other method of payment we designate, directly to 
our account and to charge your account for all Royalty Fees and other amounts you owe us.  Your 
authorization will permit us to designate the amount to be transferred from your account.  You must 
maintain a balance in your accounts sufficient to allow us to collect the amounts owed to us when due.  
You will be responsible for any penalties, fines or similar expenses associated with the transfer of funds 
described herein.  Further, in addition to interest charges on late fee payments, you must pay to us a 
service charge of up to ten percent (10%) of the total amount owed for each delinquent payment that you 
owe to us under this Agreement. A payment is delinquent for any of the following reasons: (1) we do not 
receive the payment on or before the date due; or (2) there are insufficient funds in your bank account to 
collect the payment by a transfer of funds on or after the date due. 

E. Interest on Late Payments.  All Royalty Fees and other amounts which you owe to us or 
our affiliates will bear interest after the due date at the lesser of:  (1) eighteen percent (18%) per year; or 
(2) the maximum contract rate of interest permitted by law in the state in which the Business is located.   

F. Application of Payments.  We have discretion to apply amounts due to us or any of our 
affiliates any payments received from you or any amount we owe you. 

G. Withholding Payments Unlawful.  You agree that you will not withhold payment of any 
Royalty Fees or any other amount due us, and that the alleged non-performance or breach of any of our 
obligations under this Agreement or any related agreement does not establish a right at law or in equity to 
withhold payments due us for Royalty Fees or any other amounts due. 

H. Tax Indemnification.  You will indemnify us and reimburse us for all income, capital, 
gross receipts, sales, and other taxes that the state in which the Business is located imposes as a result of 
your operation of the Business or the license of any of our intangible property in the jurisdiction in which 
the Business is located.  If more than one Los Campeones® business is located in such jurisdiction, they 
will share the liability in proportion to their Gross Sales from the franchised business, except in the case 
of sales taxes and gross receipts taxes, which will be divided in proportion to taxable sales to you.  If 
applicable, this payment is in addition to the Royalty Fee payments described above. 

5. ADVERTISING 

A. Approved Advertising, Media Plans and Business Promotion Materials.  All advertising 
and promotion by you in any medium must be conducted in a professional manner and shall conform to 
our standards and requirements as set forth in the Operations Manuals or otherwise.  We may develop, and 
make available to you, local media planning assistance.  If we do so, you must use our recommended media 
plan in promoting the Business or otherwise develop, and obtain our advance written approval to, an 
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alternative media/promotion plan. In addition, you will use only approved advertising and promotional 
materials in promoting the Business.  If you desire to use any advertising or promotional materials in 
promoting the Business which we previously have not approved, you must submit all materials to us for our 
approval before using any such materials, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld.  If we do not 
disapprove those advertising or promotional materials within five (5) days after you submit those materials 
to us, then you may use the materials, although we reserve the right to disapprove those materials at any 
later time.   

B. Participation in Certain Programs and Promotions.  You must use your best efforts to 
promote and advertise your Business and must participate in all advertising and promotional programs we 
establish in the manner we direct.  You must, at your expense, participate in, and honor all provisions of any 
gift card and/or loyalty program that we have established or may establish and as we may modify, as further 
described in the Operations Manual.  You also must honor all coupons, discounts and gift certificates as we 
may reasonably specify in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing.  You must also participate in any 
mystery shopper program or compliance assessments we require.   

6. DEVELOPMENT AND OPENING OF THE BUSINESS 

A. Site Selection; Lease for Business Premises.  You are solely responsible for securing a 
site for the Business that we have approved.  We will provide you with reasonable assistance in 
connection with the selection and evaluation of proposed Business sites, as we deem appropriate. We 
recommend that you use a site location specialist to assist you in finding potential sites for your Business. 
You must submit to us a complete site evaluation form (containing any information that we may require) 
for the proposed Business location.  We will notify you in writing within thirty (30) days after we receive 
your complete site evaluation form and other materials we request whether we accept or reject the 
proposed Business location.  If you enter into a letter of intent and/or lease for the Business premises, you 
must provide the proposed lease and, if applicable, the proposed letter of intent to us and receive our prior 
written approval of the proposed lease and proposed letter of intent (which will not be unreasonably 
withheld) before you sign it.  We recommend that you hire an attorney to review and negotiate any letter 
of intent or lease.  In addition, you and the landlord of the Business premises (“Landlord”) must sign a 
“Lease Addendum” in the form attached hereto as Exhibit D. 

B. Your Development of the Business.  Promptly after you sign a lease or acquire the 
premises for the Business, you will:  

1. prepare and submit to us for approval any proposed plans and specifications of 
the construction, design and layout of the premises for the Business; 

2. obtain all required building, utility, sign, health, sanitation and business permits 
and licenses, and any other required permits and licenses; 

3. construct all required improvements to the Business premises, purchase and 
install all required fixtures and equipment and decorate the premises in compliance with the plans 
and specifications we approve and in compliance with all applicable ordinances, building codes, 
permit requirements and lease or deed requirements and restrictions; 

4. establish filing, accounting and inventory control systems complying with our 
requirements; and  

5. follow any required inspection and approval timelines and procedures as 
established in the Operations Manual. 
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You will contract with a qualified, licensed, insured and bonded general contractor and a 
qualified construction project manager (if those services are not handled by the general contractor) to 
supervise the planning, permitting and construction of the Business. 

C. Fixtures, Equipment, Furniture and Signs.  You will use in constructing and operating the 
Business only those types of construction and decorating materials, fixtures, equipment (including 
computer hardware and software and fitness equipment), furniture, and signs that we have designated or 
approved for Los Campeones® businesses as meeting our specifications and standards for appearance, 
function and performance.  You must purchase designated or approved types of construction and 
decorating materials, fixtures, equipment, furniture and signs from supplier we designate or approve 
(which may include us and/or our affiliates).  If you propose to purchase any material, fixture, equipment, 
furniture or sign we have not then approved, or any items from any supplier we have not then approved, 
you must first notify us in writing and will provide to us (upon our request) sufficient specifications, 
photographs, drawings and other information or samples for us to determine whether the material, fixture, 
equipment, furniture or sign complies with our specifications and standards, or the supplier meets our 
approved supplier criteria, which determination we will make and communicate in writing to you within a 
reasonable time.  Notwithstanding the above, for designated material, fixtures, equipment, furniture or 
signs, or for items for which we have designated the supplier or suppliers you must use, you may not 
request an alternative item or an alternative supplier for that item. 

D. Membership Management System.  You will use in the Business the membership 
management and reporting system, including all existing or future communication or data storage systems, 
components thereof and associated service, which we have developed or selected for the System, which 
among other things will assist you with membership billing and credit card processing (the “Management 
System”).  The Management System may include one or more proprietary or other software programs 
developed or customized for us or designated by us (the “Proprietary Software”).  You must purchase any 
Proprietary Software from our designated third party supplier.  The Proprietary Software will remain the 
confidential property of our third party supplier.  You may be required to enter into our designee’s standard 
form software license agreement in connection with your use of any Proprietary Software.  You will pay the 
then-current initial and/or ongoing fee (if any) for the Proprietary Software, and in the manner and 
frequency as determined by us or our third-party vendor.  We reserve the right to replace any Proprietary 
Software.  In such event, you may be required to enter into a separate computer software license agreement 
specified by the third party supplier of the Proprietary Software and pay any separate fees imposed under 
that agreement. You must participate in our designated Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) compliance 
program if we establish such a program and pay the then-current fee associated with such program.  If we do 
not designate a separate PCI compliance program, you must take all necessary steps to comply with all 
applicable PCI data security standards.  We also may access financial information and customer data—
including names, contact information, membership information and history, and any other information 
concerning members and customers—that you collect, obtain, or is produced by or otherwise located on 
your Management System (collectively the “Customer Data”).  You agree and acknowledge that all 
information on the Management System, including Customer Data (except for any credit card numbers, 
bank information or certain other customer financial data), is our sole and exclusive property.  You will be 
responsible for obtaining all customer consents necessary to allow us to use the Customer Data for various 
purposes as we may identify. You must also make such Customer Data available for our inspection at any 
time upon our request. We will periodically establish policies respecting the Customer Data. You must 
comply with all laws and regulations relating to privacy and data protection, and must comply with any 
privacy policies or data protection and breach response policies we periodically may establish. You must 
notify us immediately of any suspected data breach at or in connection with the Business. You will have at 
the Business Internet access with a form of high-speed connection as we require.  You will use an email 
address we designate for communication with us.  The computer hardware component of the Management 
System must comply with specifications we develop.  We reserve the right to require the Management 
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System to be configured as a package unit.  We have the right to designate a single source from which you 
must purchase the Management System, any software or hardware components thereof or associated 
service, and we or our affiliates may be that single source.  You will be required to use and, at our 
discretion, pay for all future updates, supplements and modifications to the Management System.  It is your 
responsibility to protect yourself from disruptions, Internet access failures, Internet content failures, and 
attacks by hackers and other unauthorized intruders and you waive any and all claims you may have against 
us as the direct or indirect result of such disruptions, failures and attacks.   

E. Business Opening.  You must comply with any Business opening requirements we 
periodically describe in the Operations Manual.  You will not open the Business for business without our 
prior written approval.  You agree to complete the development and open the Business for business within 
six (6) months after the effective date of Exhibit A to this Agreement, which identifies the Authorized 
Location of the Business and the Protected Territory.   

F. Relocation of Business.  You will not relocate the Business from the Authorized Location 
without our prior written consent.  If you relocate the Business under this Section, the “new” franchised 
location of the Business to which we consent (the “new” Authorized Location), including the real estate 
and building, must comply with all applicable provisions of this Agreement and with our then-current 
specifications and standards for Los Campeones® businesses.  We will not unreasonably withhold our 
consent to the proposed relocation, provided we have received at least ninety (90) days’ written notice 
prior to the closing of the Business at the existing Authorized Location, you have obtained a site to which 
we have consented, and you agree to open the new Authorized Location for the Business within five (5) 
days after you close the Business at the prior Authorized Location and comply with any other conditions 
that we may require.  If you must relocate the Business because the Business was destroyed, condemned 
or otherwise became untenantable by fire, flood or other casualty, you must reopen the Business at the 
new Authorized Location in the Protected Territory within twelve (12) months after you discontinue 
operation at the existing Authorized Location.  In addition, we will require you to pay us a fee equal to 
Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000) for services we will provide in connection with any relocation of the 
Business before we will review a proposed new Authorized Location.  There is no guarantee that an 
acceptable location will be available for relocation, and if you cannot relocate your Business within the 
Protected Territory and reopen your Business within the time periods described in this Section 6(F), this 
Agreement will terminate. 

G. Minimum Capital Requirements.  We reserve the right, as periodically described in the 
Operations Manual, to require you to directly invest (i.e., assets belonging to you or the Principal 
Owner(s) of a corporate entity) a minimum amount of capital in operating the Business.  

7. TRAINING AND OPERATING ASSISTANCE 

A. Development of Business.  We may, but are under no obligation to, provide you with 
prototype drawings and specifications for the Business, reflecting our requirements for dimensions, 
interior design and layout, image, building materials, fixtures, equipment, furniture, signs and decor.  We 
may, but are under no obligation to, provide you with reasonable consulting services in connection with 
the selection and evaluation of the proposed Business site and development of the Business.  You 
acknowledge that our assistance in site location and consent to the premises does not represent a 
representation or guaranty by us that the location will be a successful location for your Business.   

B. Training.  Before the opening of the Business, we will provide to the Operating Principal 
and your general manager an initial training program on the operation of a Los Campeones® business, 
provided at a place and time we designate. Your Operating Principal and at least one general manager 
must attend and successfully complete the initial training program to our satisfaction.  The Operating 
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Principal may also be a general manager.  Additional general managers of the Business and other 
employees you designate may, but are not required, to attend our initial training program, provided that 
they attend the initial training program at the same time as the Operating Principal.

We have the right to determine the length of our initial training program, but we anticipate it will 
be a minimum of forty (40) hours and take place over a period of several days. The initial training 
program may include online tutorials, classroom instruction and on-site training relating to Business 
operations, understanding the equipment usage and maintenance, customer service, marketing and sales 
programs and methods of controlling operating costs. If, during the initial training program, we determine 
that your Operating Principal or one of your general managers is not qualified to manage the Business, we 
will notify you and you must select and enroll in the initial training program a substitute Operating 
Principal or a substitute general manager, as applicable, if no other general manager attended and 
successfully completed the initial training program to our satisfaction.  

In addition, we have the right to require all new Operating Principals and general managers to 
successfully complete to our satisfaction our initial training program, at our request.  We may charge you 
a reasonable fee for these new or additional individuals who attend the initial training program. 

We have the right to require that the Operating Principal and any general managers attend all 
supplemental and refresher training programs that we designate for up to three (3) days each calendar 
year. We may charge you a reasonable fee for these supplemental and refresher training programs.  

You are solely responsible for the compensation, travel, lodging and living expenses your 
employees incur in attending the initial training program, as well as any supplemental or refresher training 
programs. You also are solely responsible for paying your employees and providing all necessary 
insurance, including worker’s compensation insurance, for your employees while they attend training. 

C. Opening Assistance.  We may, but are under no obligation to, provide you with the 
services of one of our representatives to assist you in the opening and initial operations of the Business.  
If we elect to provide such assistance, we have the right to determine the duration, time, and method (in 
person or through electronic means) at which our representative is available to you.   

D. Operating Assistance.  We will advise you on operational issues and provide assistance in 
operating the Business as we deem appropriate.  Operating assistance may include advice regarding the 
following: 

1. additional Services and Products authorized for sale at Los Campeones® 
businesses; 

2. selecting, purchasing and marketing products, equipment, and other approved 
materials and supplies;  

3. marketing assistance and sales promotion programs; and 

4. establishing and operating administrative, bookkeeping, accounting, inventory 
control, designated software, sales and general operating procedures for the proper operation of a 
Los Campeones® business. 

We may provide such guidance, in our discretion, through our Operations Manual, bulletins or 
other written materials, telephone or electronic conversations, and/or meetings at our office or at the 
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Business in conjunction with an inspection of the Business.  We will provide additional assistance for a 
fee. 

E. Operations Manual.  We will provide on loan to you, during the term of this Agreement, 
electronic (Internet) access to an Operations Manual, which may include other handbooks, manuals and 
written materials (collectively, the “Operations Manual”) for Los Campeones® businesses.  The 
Operations Manual may contain mandatory and suggested specifications, standards and operating 
procedures that we develop for Los Campeones® businesses and information relating to your other 
obligations.  Any required specifications, standards and operating procedures exist to protect our interests 
in the System and the Marks and to create a uniform customer experience, and not for the purpose of 
establishing any control or duty to take control over those matters that are reserved to you. We may add 
to, and otherwise modify, the Operations Manual to reflect changes in authorized Services and Products, 
and specifications, standards and operating procedures of a Los Campeones® business at any time upon 
written notice to you.  The master copy of the Operations Manual that we maintain at our principal office 
or on our website, and make available to you by hard copy or electronic access, will control if there is a 
dispute involving the contents of the Operations Manual.  

8. MARKS 

A. Ownership and Goodwill of Marks. You acknowledge and agree that the Marks are 
Affiliate’s valuable property and that Affiliate has licensed the use of the Marks to us with the right to 
sublicense to others.  You further acknowledge that the Marks, System, Operations Manual, and all other 
information and items delivered to you by us pursuant to this Agreement or in furtherance of the System, 
including video and audio tapes or disks, information communicated by electronic means, and intellectual 
property, is our or Affiliate’s sole and exclusive property, and your right to use the same are contingent 
upon your continued full and timely performance under this Agreement. You acknowledge that you 
acquire no rights, interests, or claims to any of said property, except for your rights to use the same under 
this Agreement for the term hereof and strictly in the manner prescribed. You agree that the use of the 
Marks and any goodwill established exclusively benefits us and Affiliate, and that you receive no interest 
in any goodwill related to your use of the Marks or the System.  You must not, at any time during the 
term of this Agreement or after your termination or expiration, contest or assist any other person in 
contesting the validity or ownership of any of the Marks.  

B. Limitations on Your Use of Marks.  You agree to use the Marks as the sole identification 
of the Business, but you must identify yourself as the independent owner in the manner we direct.  You 
must not use any Mark as part of any corporate or trade name or in any modified form, nor may you use 
any Mark in selling any unauthorized product or service or in any other manner we do not expressly 
authorize in writing.  You agree to display the Marks prominently and in the manner we direct on all signs 
and forms.  Subject to our rights described in this Agreement, you agree to obtain fictitious or assumed 
name registrations as may be required under applicable law. 

C. Restrictions on Internet and Website Use. Except as otherwise described in this 
Agreement, we and Affiliate retain the sole right to advertise the System on the Internet and to create, 
operate, maintain and modify, or discontinue the use of, a website using the Marks.  We may, but are not 
obligated to, grant you the right to access and participate in our website or other online presence as further 
described in Section 9(N).  We may, but are not obligated to, create interior pages on our website(s) that 
contain information about your Business and other franchised businesses. If we do create such pages, we 
may require you to prepare all or a portion of the page for your Business, at your expense, using a 
template that we provide and/or by paying our designated supplier. Furthermore, any updates or 
modifications to such pages, whether required by us or requested by you, will be at your sole expense. All 
such information, updates, or modifications will be subject to our approval prior to posting.  Other than 
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these pages, you shall not establish or maintain, or have established or maintained on your behalf, either 
alone or in concert with others, any other digital or electronic medium or method of communication, 
including a website, home page, HTML document, Internet site, web page, online directory or online 
business profile, review and opinion web pages or sites, or social media or social networking site, 
business networking site, hashtag, profile, avatar, account or username, whether web-based or otherwise, 
relating to or making reference to us or the Business (each, a “Social Media Presence”), unless otherwise 
approved by us in writing.

You may not use all or part of any of the Marks, or any similar name, word, symbol, or variant 
thereof, in a domain name, email address, account name, username, profile, or URL (each, an “Online 
Identifier”).  We reserve the right at any time, in our sole discretion, to require you to remove, delete, or 
modify any Online Identifier or Social Media Presence, or any information, content, or post thereon or 
created therewith.  We will retain sole ownership of any Online Identifier and Social Media Presence, as 
well as any domain name related thereto and all content thereon or created therewith, which includes all 
or a portion of any of the Marks, or any word, phrase, or symbol confusingly similar thereto or variant 
thereof, as part of the Online Identifier.  You must provide us with all passwords and access to any such 
Social Media Presence or Online Identifier. 

Further, you acknowledge that we, Affiliate, and/or any other affiliate of ours are the lawful, 
rightful and sole owner of the Internet domain name loscampeonesgym.com, as well as any other Internet 
domain names registered by us, Affiliate, or any other affiliate of ours, and you unconditionally disclaim 
any ownership interest in such domain names and any Internet domain names colorably similar thereto.  
You agree not to register any Internet domain names in any class or category that contains words used in 
or similar to any brand name owned by us or our affiliates or any abbreviation, acronym, phonetic 
variation or visual variation of those words. 

You may not offer, promote or sell any products or services or make use of any of the Marks, the 
Business or the System, via any Social Media Presence or Online Identifier without our prior written 
approval, which we have the right to deny. You shall not establish or maintain, or have established or 
maintained on your behalf, a mobile application making use of any of our Marks or otherwise related to 
the Business or the System. You acknowledge and agree that we also may impose prohibitions on your 
posting or blogging of comments about us, the Business or the System.  The foregoing prohibition 
includes personal blogs, personal email addresses, common social networks like Facebook, Instagram, 
TikTok, X (formerly known as Twitter), Snapchat and Pinterest; professional networks, business profiles 
or online review or opinion sites like LinkedIn, Google Business Profile or Yelp; live-blogging tools like 
X (formerly known as Twitter) and Snapchat; virtual worlds, metaverses, file, audio and video-sharing 
sites, and other similar social networking or media sites or tools. You shall not use of any of our Marks in 
any keyword advertising, pay-per-click advertising or other search engine marketing, unless otherwise 
approved by us.  If we grant our prior written approval of a requested Social Media Presence or Online 
Identifier, you must: (i) provide us with each applicable domain name and/or social media profile; (ii) 
establish and operate such profile, site or presence in accordance with our mandatory System standards 
and any other mandatory policies we designate in the Operations Manual or otherwise in writing from 
time to time; and (iii) utilize any templates that we may provide to you to create and/or modify any such 
profiles, sites or presences. 

Except as otherwise specified herein or the Operations Manual, you may not, without our prior 
written consent, (1) link or frame our website; (2) conduct any business or offer to sell or advertise any 
Products or Services or similar products or services on the Internet (or any other existing or future form of 
electronic communication); or (3) use additional email addresses in operating the Business beyond those 
we have authorized.  
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D. Notification of Infringements and Claims.  You must notify us immediately in writing of 
any apparent infringement of or challenge to your use of any Mark, or any claim by any person of any 
rights in any Mark or any similar trade name, trademark or service mark of which you become aware.  
You must not communicate with any person other than us and our counsel regarding any infringement, 
challenge or claim.  We and Affiliate may take any action we and Affiliate deem appropriate and have the 
right to exclusively control any litigation or other proceeding arising out of any infringement, challenge or 
claim relating to any Mark.  You will sign all documents, provide assistance and take all action as we may 
reasonably request to protect and maintain our and Affiliate’s interests in any litigation or other 
proceeding or to otherwise protect and maintain our interests in the Marks. 

E. Litigation.  You will have no obligation to and will not, without our prior written consent, 
defend or enforce any of the Marks in any court or other proceedings for or against imitation, infringement, 
any claim of prior use, or for any other allegation.  You will, however, immediately notify us of any claims 
or complaints made against you respecting the Marks and will, at your expense, cooperate in all respects 
with us and Affiliate in any court or other proceedings involving the Marks.  Subject to our right of 
indemnification (as described in Section 18(B)), we will pay the cost and expense of all litigation we incur, 
including attorneys’ fees, specifically relating to the Marks.  We and Affiliate, and our respective legal 
counsel, will have the right to control and conduct any litigation relating to the Marks. 

F. Changes.  You cannot make any changes or substitutions to the Marks unless we so direct 
in writing.  If in our or Affiliate’s reasonable determination, the use of Marks in connection with the 
System will infringe or potentially infringe upon the rights of any third party, weakens or impairs our 
rights in the Marks, or it otherwise becomes advisable at any time in our sole judgment for us to modify, 
discontinue, or to use one (1) or more additional or substitute trademark or service marks, then upon 
notice from us, you will terminate or modify, within a reasonable period of time, such use in the manner 
prescribed by us.  If we change the Marks in any manner, we will not reimburse you for any out-of-pocket 
expenses that you incur to implement such modifications or substitutions.  In addition, we are not 
obligated to reimburse you for any loss of goodwill or revenue associated with any modified or 
discontinued Mark, nor are we responsible for reimbursing you for any other costs or damages. 

9. BUSINESS IMAGE AND OPERATING STANDARDS 

A. Condition and Appearance of Business/Remodeling of Business.  You agree to maintain 
the condition and appearance of the Business (including adjacent parking areas and grounds), and 
refurbish and modify its layout, decor and general theme, as we may require to maintain the condition, 
appearance, efficient operation, ambience and overall image of Los Campeones® businesses, as we may 
modify.  You will replace worn out or obsolete fixtures, equipment, furniture, or signs, repair the interior 
and exterior of the Business, adjacent parking areas and grounds, and periodically clean and redecorate 
the Business.  If at any time in our reasonable judgment, the general state of repair, appearance or 
cleanliness of the Business premises (including parking areas and grounds) or its fixtures, equipment, 
furniture or signs do not meet our then-current standards, we will so notify you, specifying the action you 
must take to correct the deficiency.  If you fail, within ten (10) days after receipt of notice, to commence 
action and continue in good faith and with due diligence, to undertake and complete any required 
maintenance or refurbishing, we may (in addition to our rights under Section 15) enter the Business 
premises and correct the deficiencies on your behalf, and at your expense.  

You will, at your expense, make such reasonable capital expenditures necessary to remodel, 
modernize and redecorate the Business premises and to replace and modernize the supplies, fixtures, signs, 
and equipment used in your Business so that your Business reflects the then-current physical appearance of 
new Los Campeones® businesses.  We may require you to take such action:  (i) as a condition to the 
transfer of any interest as further described in Section 14(B); (ii) as a condition of renewal; and 
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(iii) otherwise during the term of the Agreement as further described in the Operations Manual.  You 
acknowledge and agree that the requirements of this Section 9(A) are both reasonable and necessary to 
ensure continued public acceptance and patronage of Los Campeones® businesses and to avoid 
deterioration or obsolescence in connection with the operation of the Business. 

If the Business is damaged or destroyed by fire or any other casualty, you will, within thirty (30) 
days, initiate repairs or reconstruction, and thereafter in good faith and with due diligence continue (until 
completion) repairs or reconstruction, to restore the Business premises to its original condition before the 
casualty.  If, in our reasonable judgment, the damage or destruction is of a nature or to an extent that you 
can repair or reconstruct the premises of the Business consistent with the then-current decor and 
specifications of a new Los Campeones® business without incurring substantial additional costs, we may 
require, by giving written notice, that you repair or reconstruct the Business premises in compliance with 
the then-current decor and specifications. 

B. Business Alterations.  You cannot alter the premises or appearance of the Business, or 
make any unapproved replacements of or alterations to the fixtures, equipment, furniture or signs of the 
Business without our prior written approval.  We have the right to correct any alterations to the Business 
that we have not previously approved, at your sole expense. 

C. Restriction on Use of Premises.  You agree that you will not, without our prior written 
approval, offer at the Business any services or products we have not then authorized for use or sale for 
Los Campeones® businesses, nor will the Business or the premises which it occupies be used for any 
purpose other than the operation of a Los Campeones® business in compliance with this Agreement. 

D. Your Hiring and Training of Employees.  You will hire all employees of the Business, 
and be exclusively responsible for the terms of their employment, scheduling, benefits, disciplining, 
compensation, and all other personnel decisions.  You will maintain at all times a staff of trained 
employees sufficient to operate the Business in compliance with our standards.  You must ensure that all 
Business employees comply with all licenses and certifications respecting the Business and the services 
they provide to customers of the Business as we may require or as federal, state and/or local authorities 
may require.  At all times, the Business must be under the direct, on-site supervision of the Operating 
Principal or a general manager.   

E. Trainer Certifications and Insurance Coverage. We recommend that you have a written 
agreement with each trainer (each, a “Trainer”) that you lease space to or otherwise authorize to offer and 
provide exercise and fitness sessions to members and/or non-members within the Business. We may, but 
are not obligated to, provide a sample or template agreement in our Operations Manual. Regardless, you 
must ensure that each Trainer: (i) has all necessary and proper certifications in accordance with our 
mandatory System standards and specifications, and all applicable state and local laws and regulations; 
(ii) has personal injury, property damage, and general liability insurance coverage; and (iii) names you 
and us, and our respective affiliates, and any other person or entity you or we designate as an additional 
insured;  as additional insured; and (iv) provides documentation evidencing current certifications and 
insurance coverages.

F. Authorized Products, Services, Supplies and Equipment.  You agree to offer and sell at 
the Business all and only the Services and Products which we have designated or approved as being 
suitable for sale and meeting the standards of quality and uniformity for the System.  In addition, you 
agree to use in the operation of the Business only such products, services, including bookkeeping 
services, supplies, equipment and other items which we have designated or approved as being suitable for 
use and meeting the standards of quality and uniformity for the System and are purchased from suppliers 
we have designated or approved (which may include us and/or our affiliates).  We periodically may 
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modify the lists of designated and approved products, supplies, equipment, brands and suppliers.  If you 
propose to offer for sale or use in operating the Business any products, supplies or equipment which we 
have not approved, you must first notify us in writing and provide sufficient information, specifications 
and samples concerning the brand and/or supplier to permit us to determine whether the brand complies 
with our specifications and standards and/or the supplier meets our approved supplier criteria.  We reserve 
the right to charge you for the reasonable cost of the inspection and evaluation and the actual cost of the 
test we conduct.  We will notify you within a reasonable time whether the proposed brand and/or supplier 
is approved.  We may develop procedures for the submission of a request for approved brands or 
suppliers and obligations that approved suppliers must assume (which may be incorporated in a written 
agreement to be signed by the approved supplier).  We may impose limits on the number of suppliers 
and/or brands for any products, supplies or equipment sold or used in the Business or otherwise related to 
the Franchise, and we may require that you use only one supplier for any products, supplies or equipment.  
You agree that certain products, materials, and other items and supplies may only be available from one 
source, and we or our affiliates may be that source.  Notwithstanding the above, for designated products, 
services, supplies, equipment and other items, or for items for which we have designated the supplier or 
suppliers you must use, you may not request an alternative item or an alternative supplier for that item.  
WE AND OUR AFFILIATES MAKE NO WARRANTY AND EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ALL 
WARRANTIES, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, RESPECTING PRODUCTS, EQUIPMENT (INCLUDING ANY REQUIRED 
POINT-OF-SALE SYSTEMS), SERVICES (INCLUDING ANY REQUIRED BOOKKEEPING 
SERVICES), SUPPLIES, FIXTURES, FURNISHINGS OR OTHER ITEMS THAT ARE 
MANUFACTURED OR DISTRIBUTED BY THIRD PARTIES AND THAT WE DESIGNATE OR 
APPROVE FOR USE IN THE SYSTEM. 

G. Health Standards.  You must comply with all applicable governmental health and sanitary 
standards in operating and maintaining your Business.  You also must comply with any higher standards 
that we prescribe.  In addition to complying with such standards, if the Business will be subject to any 
governmental sanitary or health inspection under which it may be rated in one or more than one 
classification, the Business will be maintained and operated so as to be rated in the highest available 
health and sanitary classification respecting each such inspection.  If you fail to be rated in the highest 
classification or receive any notice that you are not in compliance with all applicable health and sanitary 
standards, you will immediately notify us of such failure or noncompliance.   

H. Business Operation.  We will approve the days and hours of operation for the Business 
and you may not modify those hours of operation without our prior written consent. 

I. Standards of Service.  You must at all times give prompt, courteous and efficient service 
to your customers.  You must ensure that you and all those working at the Business adhere to the highest 
standards of honesty, integrity and fair dealing, and provide courteous and professional services in all 
dealings with customers, suppliers, and the general public. You must handle all customer complaints and 
requests for returns and adjustments in a manner consistent with our standards and specifications, and in a 
manner that will not detract from the name and goodwill enjoyed by us. 

J. Specifications, Standards and Procedures.  You acknowledge that each and every detail 
of the appearance and operation of the Business is important to us and other Los Campeones® businesses.  
You agree to maintain the highest standards of quality and service in the Business and agree to comply 
with all mandatory specifications, standards and operating procedures (whether contained in the 
Operations Manual or any other written or oral communication to you) relating to the appearance or 
operation of a Los Campeones® business, which now, or in the future may, include without limitation: 

1. type and quality of Services and Products and Product procurement; 
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2. methods and procedures relating to marketing and customer service; 

3. the safety, maintenance, cleanliness, function and appearance of the Business 
premises, and its fixtures, equipment, furniture, décor and signs;  

4. qualifications, dress, general appearance and demeanor of Business employees;   

5. the style, make and/or type of equipment (including computer equipment) used in 
operating the Business; 

6. use and illumination of exterior and interior signs, posters, displays, standard 
formats and similar items; and 

7. Business advertising and promotion. 

K. Compliance with Laws and Good Business Practices.  You must secure and maintain in 
force all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to the operation of the Business, and must 
operate the Business in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations, including all 
labor and employment laws.  You must notify us in writing within five (5) days of the commencement of 
any action, suit, proceeding or investigation, and of the issuance of any order, injunction, or award of 
decree, by any court, agency, or other governmental instrumentality that may adversely affect the 
operation or financial condition of you or the Business.  You will not conduct any business or advertising 
practice which injures our business, the System or the goodwill associated with the Marks and other Los 
Campeones® businesses.  

L. Management of the Business/Conflicting Interests.  The Business must at all times be 
under the direct supervision of the Operating Principal or a general manager. The person who is 
responsible for the day-to-day supervision of the Business (i.e., the Operating Principal or a general 
manager) must at all times faithfully, honestly and diligently perform his or her obligations and 
continuously use best efforts to promote and enhance the business of the Business.  The person who is 
responsible for the day-to-day supervision of the Business must assume his or her responsibilities on a 
full-time basis and must not engage in any other business or other activity, directly or indirectly, that 
requires any significant management responsibility, time commitments, or otherwise may conflict with 
your obligations.   

If at any time the Operating Principal or a general manger is not managing the Business, we 
immediately may appoint a manager to maintain Business operations on your behalf.  Our appointment of 
a manager of the Business does not relieve you of your obligations or constitute a waiver of our right to 
terminate the Franchise under Section 15.  We are not liable for any debts, losses, costs or expenses you 
incur in operating the Business or to any of your creditors for any products, materials, supplies or services 
purchased by the Business while it is managed by our appointed manager.  We may charge a reasonable 
fee for management services and cease to provide management services at any time. 

M. Insurance.  You agree to purchase and maintain in force, at your expense, insurance at a 
minimum in the types of coverage and amounts we specify in the Operations Manual or otherwise in 
writing.  All insurance policies will:  (1) be issued by an insurance carrier(s) acceptable to us and that 
have an A.M. Best rating of A or higher; (2) will name us and our affiliates, and their respective officers, 
directors and employees, and any other person or entity we designate as an additional insured; (3) contain 
a waiver of the insurance company’s right of subrogation against us and our affiliates, and any other 
person or entity we designate as an additional insured; (4) require your insurance to be “primary” and 
“non-contributory” with any insurance carried by us or our affiliates, or any other person or entity we 
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designate as an additional insured; (5) contain the above-mentioned insurance coverage for each Los 
Campeones® business that you operate; and (6) provide that we will receive thirty (30) days’ prior 
written notice of a material change in or termination, expiration or cancellation of any policy (or such 
shorter period as the insurance carrier may require and approved by us).  We periodically may, with prior 
written notice to you, increase the minimum liability protection requirements, and require different or 
additional kinds of insurance to reflect inflation or changes in standards of liability.  If at any time you fail 
to maintain in effect any insurance coverage we require, or to furnish satisfactory evidence thereof, we, at 
our option, may obtain insurance coverage for you.  You agree to promptly sign any applications or other 
forms or instruments required to obtain any insurance and pay to us, on demand, any costs and premiums 
we incur, together with an administrative fee equal to five percent (5%) of the insurance premium.  You 
will provide us with copies of the certificate of insurance, insurance policy endorsements and other 
evidence of compliance with these requirements as we periodically require at least two (2) weeks before 
you take possession and commence development of the Business premises and at such other times as we 
may require.  In addition, you will provide to us a copy of the evidence of the renewal or extension of 
each insurance policy in a form we require.  Your obligation to obtain and maintain these insurance 
policies in the amounts specified will not be limited in any way by reason of any insurance that we may 
maintain, nor does your procurement of required insurance relieve you of liability under the indemnity 
obligations described in Section 18.  Your insurance procurement obligations under this Section are 
separate and independent of your indemnity obligations.  We do not represent or warrant that any 
insurance that you are required to purchase will provide you with adequate coverage.  The insurance 
requirements specified in this Agreement are for our protection.  You should consult with your own 
insurance agents, attorneys and other insurance advisors to determine the level of insurance protection 
you need and desire, in addition to the coverage and limits we require. 

N. Participation in Internet Website. We will, in our sole judgment, determine the content 
and use of a Los Campeones® website and intranet system and will establish rules under which you may 
or will participate. As further described in Section 8(C), you must participate in any interior pages or 
other presence we create on our website that contain information about your Business. In addition, we 
require you to participate in any intranet system we control. We and Affiliate will retain all rights relating 
to the Los Campeones® website and intranet system and may alter or terminate the website or intranet 
system, and any pages or presence on our website relating to your Business upon thirty (30) days’ notice 
to you.  Your general conduct on the Internet and the Los Campeones® intranet system, and specifically 
your use of the Marks or any advertising on the Internet (including the domain name and any other Marks 
we or Affiliate may develop as a result of participation in the Internet), will be subject to the provisions of 
this Agreement.  You acknowledge that certain information obtained through your online participation in 
the website or intranet system is considered Confidential Information, including access codes and 
identification codes. We reserve the right to suspend or terminate your right to participate in or have 
interior pages on the Los Campeones® website or intranet system or otherwise use the Marks or the 
System on the Internet if you breach this Agreement or any other agreement with us, or otherwise violate 
our System standards and specifications. In any event, these rights will terminate when this Agreement 
expires or terminates. 

O. Pricing Policies.  We may periodically make suggestions to you with regard to your 
pricing policies.  You may decide whether or not to follow these suggestions.  We also have the right to 
establish maximum prices and/or minimum prices to be charged by you for the Products and Services you 
offer at the Business, but any exercise of that right will be specifically set forth in writing.  You must 
honor all maximum prices and minimum prices we establish in accordance with this Section 9(O), subject 
to applicable state laws.  

P. Reciprocity of Members and Memberships. Your Business will honor any customer’s 
valid membership to any other Los Campeones® business in accordance with our System standards and 
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specifications. We reserve the right, upon written notice to you, to establish, modify, or discontinue any 
policies or guidelines relating to reciprocity of members, memberships, or membership payments, and 
you agree to comply with such changes upon your receipt of our written notice to you.  

10. RECORDS AND REPORTS 

A. Accounting and Records.  During the term of this Agreement, you will, at your expense, 
establish and maintain at the Business premises and retain for a minimum of five (5) years from the date 
of their preparation, an accounting and record keeping system we designate that will generate complete 
and accurate books, records, and accounts relating to the Business (the “Records”).  The accounting and 
record keeping system will include accounting and reporting software that we reserve the right to 
periodically direct.  The Records must be prepared in the form and manner we direct in the Operations 
Manual or otherwise in writing, and must include the following:  (1) daily cash reports; (2) cash receipts 
journal and general ledger; (3) cash disbursements journal and weekly payroll register; (4) monthly bank 
statements and daily deposit slips; (5) all payments to each of its Principal Owners; (6) suppliers’ invoices 
(paid and unpaid); (7) dated Management System reports (detailed and summary); (8) monthly balance 
sheets and profit and loss statements; (9) any notices of delinquent bill or loan payments; (10) documents 
kept in the normal course of business; and (11) such other records and information as we periodically may 
request. You must preserve the Records, and submit reports electronically, consistent with our 
requirements described in Section 10(B) below.  You will ensure that we have electronic access at all 
times to the Records and related reports.  If at any time you fail to fully comply with your obligations 
under this Section 10, we may require that you engage, at your expense, a third party accounting firm or 
other service provider that we designate to satisfy the requirements of this Section 10.   

B. Reports and Tax Returns.  You will deliver or allow us access to the following:  (1) daily 
statements relating to Gross Sales accompanying your payment of monthly Royalty Fees; (2) at our 
request, monthly income statements in a format we require; (3) at our request, profit and loss statements 
for the Business at such intervals as we periodically may require; (4) at our request, an annual profit and 
loss statement and source and use of funds statement for the Business for the year and a balance sheet for 
the Business as of the end of the year, reviewed by an independent certified public accountant; and (5) at 
our request, all tax returns relating to the Business and each of its Principal Owners. You are required to 
provide us copies of the Records that we specify in, and in accordance with, our Operations Manual or as 
we otherwise set forth in writing, and we reserve the right to require you to provide any or all other 
Records, information, or supporting documents as we may prescribe from time to time. All financial 
statements, reports and information must be on forms we approve and that you have signed and verified.  

C. Our Use of Your Records and Reports.  We have the right to share any Records, reports, 
financial statements and other information you provide to us with other Los Campeones® franchisees and 
to include your financial information in our franchise disclosure document (“FDD”).  Except for this 
right, we will keep this information confidential, unless the information is:  (1) requested by tax 
authorities; (2) used as part of a legal proceeding; or (3) included in a financial performance 
representation in Item 19 of our FDD.   

11. INSPECTION AND AUDITS 

A. Our Right to Inspect the Business.  To determine whether you are complying with this 
Agreement, we may, at any time during business hours and without prior notice to you, inspect the 
Business, observe the provision of the Services, and test, sample, inspect and evaluate your supplies, 
equipment and Products as well as the storage of those items.  You will fully cooperate with our 
representatives making any inspection and will permit our representatives to take photographs or 
videotapes of the Business and to interview and otherwise communicate with employees and customers of 
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the Business.  If we establish a mystery shopper or compliance assessment program, we may require you 
to pay for the reasonable expense of mystery shopper visits or the completion of any compliance 
assessments at your Business.  

B. Our Right to Examine Books and Records.  We may, at all reasonable times and without 
prior notice to you, examine, audit, or request copies of the Records, including the books, records, 
Management System, and state and/or federal income tax records and returns of the Business and/or any 
Principal Owner.  You must maintain all Records and supporting documents at all times at the Business 
premises.  You will make financial and other information available at a location we reasonably request, 
and will allow us (and our agents) full and free access to any such information at the Business.  You 
otherwise will fully cooperate with our representative and independent accountants hired to conduct any 
examination or audit. 

C. Our Right to Access Your Computer System. We may require that the Management 
System, any designated software, and/or the computer system that you use in connection with the 
Business be programmed to automatically transmit data and reports about the operation of the Business to 
us. We shall also have the right to, at any time without notice, electronically connect with the 
Management System, designated software, and/or the computer system that you use in connection with 
the Business to monitor or retrieve any data stored thereon, including Customer Data, financial 
information related to the operation of the Business, and/or for any other purpose we deem necessary. 
There are no contractual limitations on our right to access the information and data. You shall deliver to 
us all access codes, static internet protocol (“IP”) addresses and other information to facilitate our access 
to the data described in this Section within thirty (30) days of opening the Business.  

D. Result of Audit; Unreported Gross Sales.  If any examination or audit discloses an 
understatement of Gross Sales, you will pay to us, within fifteen (15) days after receipt of the examination 
or audit report, the Royalty Fees due on the amount of the understatement, plus interest (at the rate 
provided in Section 4(E)) from the date originally due until the date of payment.  You must reimburse us 
for the cost of the audit or examination, including the charges of any independent accountants and the 
travel expenses, room and board and compensation of our employees, if:  (1) an examination or audit is 
necessary because you failed to timely provide required information; or (2) any examination or audit 
results in a determination that Gross Sales for any month are understated by greater than two percent 
(2%). The foregoing remedies are in addition to all of our other remedies and rights under applicable law. 

12. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION/IMPROVEMENTS  

A. Confidential Information.  You acknowledge and agree that you do not acquire any 
interest in the Confidential Information, other than the right to use it in developing and operating the 
Business pursuant to this Agreement, and that the use or duplication of the Confidential Information in 
any other business constitutes an unfair method of competition.  You acknowledge and agree that the 
Confidential Information, and any goodwill associated therewith, is our and Affiliate’s sole and exclusive 
property and trade secret, and is disclosed to you solely on the condition that you:  (1) will not use the 
Confidential Information in any other business or capacity; (2) will maintain the absolute confidentiality 
of the Confidential Information during and after the term of this Agreement; (3) will not at any time 
without our prior written consent make copies of, distribute, or disseminate any Confidential Information 
disclosed in written, electronic, or any other form; (4) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures 
we direct to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information, including restrictions 
on disclosure to Business employees; and (5) will require the Operating Principal, general managers and 
others with access to Confidential Information to sign a Confidentiality Agreement in a form we approve.  
For the avoidance of doubt, you may not use Confidential Information for the purpose of machine 
learning, augmented human intelligence development, training any artificial intelligence (“AI”) model, 
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algorithm improvement, or similar data aggregation activities without our express written consent.  Such 
uses shall not be deemed related to the performance of this Agreement and are expressly prohibited.  You 
shall not, without our prior written consent, input any Confidential Information into any generative AI 
platform, or disclose such information to any provider or source of generative AI services.  You shall opt 
out of allowing any provider or source of generative AI to utilize Confidential Information for training of 
any AI model or for other purposes. 

The restrictions on your disclosure and use of the Confidential Information will not apply to 
disclosure of Confidential Information in judicial or administrative proceedings to the extent you are 
legally compelled to disclose this information, if you use your best efforts to maintain the confidential 
treatment of the Confidential Information, and provide us the opportunity to obtain an appropriate 
protective order or other assurance satisfactory to us of confidential treatment for the information required 
to be so disclosed. 

B. Improvements.  You must fully and promptly disclose to us all ideas, concepts, products, 
process methods, techniques, improvements, additions and Customer Data relating to the development 
and/or operation of a Los Campeones® business or the System, or any new trade names, service marks or 
other commercial symbols, or associated logos relating to the operation of the Business, or any 
advertising or promotion ideas related to the Business (collectively, the “Improvements”) that you, the 
Principal Owners or your employees or agents conceive or develop during the term of this Agreement.  
You and your Principal Owners, agents and employees acknowledge and agree that:  (1) all Customer 
Data (except for any credit card numbers, bank information or certain other customer financial data) is our 
sole and exclusive property as further described in Section 6(D); and (2) any other Improvement 
immediately becomes our property without any liability to you or obligation to pay any compensation.  
Whenever we request you to do so, you and your Principal Owners, agents or employees must execute all 
documents necessary to evidence the assignment of each Improvement to us without any liability to you 
or obligation to pay any compensation.  These obligations shall continue beyond the termination or 
expiration of this Agreement.  We may use the Improvement and disclose and/or license the Improvement 
for use by others without any liability to you or obligation to pay any compensation.  You must not 
introduce any Improvement or any additions or modifications of or to the System into the Business 
without our prior written consent.  If a court should determine that we cannot automatically own certain 
of the Improvements that may be developed, then you hereby agree to grant us an irrevocable, perpetual, 
fully-paid-up, royalty-free, worldwide license to use and sublicense others to use such Improvements. 

C. Feedback.  You may provide suggestions, comments or other feedback (collectively, 
“Feedback”) to us with respect to the System.  Feedback is voluntary.  You agree that we may use 
Feedback for any purpose without liability to you or obligation to pay any compensation, and hereby 
grant us an irrevocable, non-exclusive, perpetual, fully-paid-up, royalty-free, worldwide license to use 
and sublicense others to use the Feedback in connection with any business activities conducted by us or 
our affiliates. 

13. COVENANTS 

A. Organization.  You and each Principal Owner covenants that:  

1. You are organized and validly exist under the laws of the state where you were 
formed and are qualified and authorized to do business in the jurisdiction where the Protected 
Territory and Business is located; 
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2. Your articles of incorporation, bylaws, operating agreement or other 
organizational documents (“Authorizing Documents”) at all times will provide that your business 
activities will be limited exclusively to the ownership and operation of the Business, unless you 
otherwise obtain our written consent; 

3. You have the power under the Authorizing Documents to sign this Agreement 
and comply with the provisions of this Agreement; 

4. You must provide us copies of all Authorizing Documents and any other 
documents, agreements or resolutions we request in writing; 

5. The names of all Principal Owners are accurately stated on the Guaranty attached 
hereto as Exhibit E; and 

6. You will maintain a current schedule of the Principal Owners and their 
ownership interests (including the Principal Owners’ names, address and telephone numbers) at 
all times and will immediately provide us with an updated ownership schedule if there is any 
change in ownership. 

B. Non-Solicitation of Customers.  You covenant that, during the term of this Agreement, 
and for a period of two (2) years thereafter, you will not, directly or indirectly divert or attempt to divert 
any business, account or customer of the Business or any other Los Campeones® businesses or the 
System to any “Competing Business” (as defined below).  

C. Covenant Not to Compete During Term.  You (and the Operating Principal and each 
other Principal Owner) will not, during the term of this Agreement, directly or as an employee, agent, 
consultant, partner, officer, director or shareholder of any other person, firm, entity, partnership or 
business:  (i) divert or attempt to divert any business or customers of the Business to any Competing 
Business or perform any act that would damage the goodwill associated with the Marks or the System; or 
(ii) own, operate, lease, franchise, conduct, engage in, be connected with, have any interest in, or assist 
any person or entity engaged in any Competing Business (including any e-commerce or Internet-based 
business), except:  (1) with our prior written consent; (2) the ownership of securities listed on a stock 
exchange or traded on the over-the-counter market that represent one percent (1%) or less of that class of 
securities; or (3) under a separate agreement between you and us. 

D. Post-Term Covenant Not to Compete.  You (and the Operating Principal and each other 
Principal Owner) will not, for a period of two (2) years after this Agreement expires or is terminated or 
the date on which you cease to operate the Business, whichever is later, directly or as an employee, agent, 
consultant, partner, officer, director or shareholder of any other person, firm, entity, partnership or 
corporation:  (1) divert or attempt to divert any business or customers of the Business to any Competing 
Business or perform any act that would damage the goodwill associated with the Marks or the System;  
(2) own, operate, lease, franchise, conduct, engage in, be connected with, having any interest in, or assist 
any person or entity engaged in any Competing Business which is located at the former site of the 
Business; or (3) own, operate, lease, franchise, conduct, engage in, be connected with, having any interest 
in, or assist any person or entity engaged in any Competing Business that is located within a five (5) mile 
radius of the former site of the Business, or at or within a eight (8) mile radius of any other then-existing 
Los Campeones® business; provided, however, that this Section 13(D) will not apply to:  (i) other Los 
Campeones® businesses that you operate under separate Los Campeones® franchise agreements; or 
(ii) the ownership of securities listed on a stock exchange or traded on the over-the-counter market that 
represent one percent (1%) or less of that class of securities.
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E. Competing Business.  “Competing Business” means any business that offers or sells any 
fitness or exercise-related services, or any other offerings or items similar to the Services and Products, 
including any other business that may be confusingly similar to a Los Campeones® business.   

F. Injunctive Relief.  You agree that damages alone cannot adequately compensate us if 
there is a violation of any covenant in this Section 13 in that injunctive relief is essential for our 
protection.  You therefore agree that we may seek injunctive relief without posting any bond or security, 
in addition to the remedies that may be available to us at equity or law, if you or anyone acting on your 
behalf violates any covenant in this Section 13.  The covenants stated in this Section 13 will survive the 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

14. ASSIGNMENT 

A. By Us.  This Agreement is fully assignable by us and benefits our successors and assigns.  
Any such assignment will require the assignee to fulfill our obligations under this Agreement.  You 
acknowledge and agree that, following the effective date of any such assignment, you will look solely to 
the transferee or assignee, and not to us, for the performance of all obligations under this Agreement.  
Separately, we may assign or delegate to an affiliate or other third party certain of our obligations under 
this Agreement without assigning our interest in this Agreement.  In such instance, we will remain the 
party ultimately responsible for the performance of such obligation(s).  

B. Your Assignment or Sale of Substantially all of Your Assets.  You understand that we 
have granted the Franchise under this Agreement in reliance upon the individual or collective character, 
aptitude, attitude, business ability and financial capacity of your Principal Owners.   

1. Controlling Interest. You (and your Principal Owners) will not transfer (whether 
voluntary or involuntary), assign or otherwise dispose of, in one or more transactions, your 
business, the Business, substantially all or all of the assets of the Business, this Agreement or any 
controlling interest in you (“controlling interest” to include a proposed transfer of fifty percent 
(50%) or more of the common (voting) stock in a corporation or of the ownership interest in a 
limited liability company or partnership) unless you obtain our prior written consent.  We will not 
unreasonably withhold our consent to an assignment of this Agreement, provided you comply 
with any or all of the following conditions which we may, in our discretion, deem necessary:  

a. All of your accrued monetary obligations to us and our affiliates have 
been satisfied, and you otherwise are in good standing under this Agreement and 
any other agreement between you and us; 

b. The transferee (or the Operating Principal, if applicable) is approved by 
us and demonstrates to our satisfaction that he/she meets our managerial, 
financial and business standards for new Los Campeones® businesses, possesses 
a good business reputation and credit rating, and has the aptitude and ability to 
operate the Business.  You understand that we may communicate directly with 
the transferee during the transfer process to respond to inquiries, as well as to 
ensure that the transferee meets our qualifications; 

c. The transferee enters into a written agreement, in form satisfactory to us, 
assuming and agreeing to discharge all of your obligations and covenants under 
this Agreement for the remainder of your term or, at our option, signs our then-
current standard form of franchise agreement (which may contain materially 
different terms and conditions than this Agreement); 



22
Los Campeones® FA 

d. The transferee, the new Operating Principal and the new general 
manager (if applicable) successfully complete the initial training program 
required of new Los Campeones® businesses; 

e. If required, the lessor of the Business premises consents to your 
assignment or sublease of the premises to the transferee; 

f. You pay us a transfer fee equal to Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000);  

g. You (and each Principal Owner, if applicable) sign a general release, in a 
form and substance satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our 
affiliates, officers, directors, employees and agents, except to the extent limited 
or prohibited by applicable law; 

h. We approve the material provisions of the assignment or sale of assets 
which assignment or sale cannot permit you to retain a security interest in this 
Agreement or any other intangible asset;  

i. You (and each Principal Owners, if applicable) sign an agreement, in 
form satisfactory to us, in which you and each Principal Owner covenant to 
observe the post-termination covenant not to compete and all other applicable 
post-termination obligations; and 

j. You or the transferee remodel, modernize and redecorate the Business 
premises and replace and modernize the décor, supplies, fixtures, signs, and 
equipment used in operating the Business so that the Business reflects the 
then-current physical appearance and standards and specifications of new Los 
Campeones® businesses.  

2. Less Than Controlling Interest.  If the transfer involves less than a “controlling 
interest” in you (taking into account any prior changes of ownership or transfers), you are not 
required to obtain our prior written consent, provided you and the transferee comply with and 
satisfy any or all of the following conditions which we may deem necessary: 

a. You provide us with thirty (30) days advance written notice of the 
transfer; 

b. Any new Principal Owner signs a personal guaranty in the form we 
designate; and 

c. You provide us with such other information relating to the transfer as we 
request. 

We may expand upon, and provide more details related to, the conditions for transfer and our 
consent as described in this Section 14(B), and may do so in the Operations Manual or otherwise in 
writing. 

C. Death or Disability.  If the Operating Principal dies or is permanently disabled, the 
remaining Principal Owners must appoint (if necessary) a competent Operating Principal acceptable to us 
within a reasonable time, not to exceed thirty (30) days, from the date of death or permanent disability.  
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The appointed Operating Principal must satisfactorily complete our designated training program.  If an 
approved Operating Principal is not appointed within thirty (30) days after the Operating Principal’s death 
or permanent disability, we may, but are not required to, immediately appoint an Operating Principal to 
maintain Business operations on your behalf until an approved assignee can assume the management and 
operation of the Business.  Our appointment of an Operating Principal does not relieve you of your 
obligations, and we will not be liable for any debts, losses, costs or expenses you incur in operating the 
Business or to any creditor of yours for any products, materials, supplies or services purchased by the 
Business while it is managed by our appointed manager.  We may charge a reasonable fee for 
management services and may cease to provide management services at any time. 

If the Operating Principal dies or is permanently disabled, his/her executor, administrator, or 
other personal representative must transfer his/her interest within a reasonable time, not to exceed twelve 
(12) months from the date of death or permanent disability, to a person we approve.  Such transfers, 
including transfers by devise or inheritance, will be subject to conditions contained in Section 14(B). 

D. Public or Private Offerings.  Subject to Section 14(B), if you (or any of your Principal 
Owners) desire to raise or secure funds by the sale of securities (including common or preferred stock, 
bonds, debentures or general or limited partnership interests) in you or any affiliate of you, you agree to 
submit any written information to us before your inclusion of that information in any registration 
statement, prospectus or similar offering circular or memorandum and must obtain our written consent to 
the method of financing before any offering or sale of securities.  Our written consent will not imply or 
represent our approval respecting the method of financing, the offering literature submitted to us or any 
other aspect of the offering.  No information respecting us or any of our affiliates will be included in any 
securities disclosure document, unless we furnish the information in writing in response to your written 
request, which request will state the specific purpose for which the information is to be used.  Should we, 
in our discretion, object to any reference to us or any of our affiliates in the offering literature or 
prospectus, the literature or prospectus will not be used unless and until our objections are withdrawn.  
We assume no responsibility for the offering. 

The prospectus or other literature used in any offering must contain the following language in 
boldface type on the first textual page: 

“NEITHER LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING LLC NOR ANY OF ITS 
AFFILIATES:  (A) IS DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY THE ISSUER OF THE 
SECURITIES OFFERED, (B) ASSUMES ANY RESPONSIBILITY RESPECTING 
THIS OFFERING AND/OR THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THE 
INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, OR (C) ENDORSES OR MAKES ANY 
RECOMMENDATION RESPECTING THE INVESTMENT CONTEMPLATED BY 
THIS OFFERING.”  

E. Our Right of First Refusal.  If you or your Principal Owners at any time desire to sell or 
assign for consideration the Franchise, the Business, an ownership interest representing (in the aggregate) 
fifty percent (50%) or more of the ownership in you or all or substantially all of your assets, you or your 
Principal Owners must obtain a bona fide, executed written offer from a responsible and fully disclosed 
purchaser and must deliver a copy of the offer to us.  We have the right, exercisable by written notice 
delivered to you or your Principal Owners within thirty (30) days following receipt of the proposed offer, 
to purchase the interest in the Business or ownership interest in you for the price and on terms contained 
in the offer.  We may substitute cash for any non-cash form of payment proposed in the offer and will 
have a minimum of sixty (60) days to prepare for closing.  If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, 
you or your Principal Owners may complete the sale to the proposed purchaser under the terms of the 
offer, provided you and the Principal Owners otherwise comply with this Section 14.  If the sale to the 
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proposed purchaser is not completed within one hundred twenty (120) days after delivery of the offer to 
us, or if there is a material change in the terms of the sale, we again will have the right of first refusal.  

F. Guaranty.  All of your Principal Owners will sign the Guaranty and Assumption of 
Obligations (“Guaranty Agreement”) attached to this Agreement as Exhibit E.  We may also require the 
spouse of any Principal Owner to sign the Guaranty Agreement.  Any person or entity that at any time 
after the date of this Agreement becomes a Principal Owner of yours under the provisions of this 
Section 14 or otherwise will, as a condition of becoming a Principal Owner, sign the Guaranty 
Agreement. 

15. OUR TERMINATION RIGHTS 

A. Termination of Franchise Agreement - Grounds.  You will be in default, and we may, at our 
option, terminate this Agreement, as provided herein, if:  (1) your Operating Principal or at least one general 
manager fails to successfully complete the initial training program to our satisfaction, or you fail to open and 
commence full operations of the Business at such time as provided in this Agreement; (2) you violate any 
material provision or obligation of this Agreement; (3) you or any of your managers, directors, officers or 
any Principal Owner makes a material misrepresentation or omission in the application for the Franchise; 
(4) any of your managers (including the Operating Principal), directors, officers or any Principal Owner is 
convicted of, or pleads guilty to or no contest to a felony, a crime involving moral turpitude, or any other 
crime or offense that we believe will injure the System, the Marks or the goodwill associated therewith, or if 
we have proof that such person has committed such a felony, crime or offense; (5) you fail to conform to the 
material requirements of the System or the material standards of uniformity and quality for the Services and 
Products as described in the Operations Manual or as we have established under the System; (6) you fail to 
timely pay Royalty Fees or any other obligations or liabilities due and owing to us or our affiliates, other 
Los Campeones® businesses or suppliers we approve as a source for required items; (7) you are insolvent 
within the meaning of any applicable state or federal law; (8) you make an assignment for the benefit of 
creditors or enter into any similar arrangement for the disposition of your assets for the benefit of creditors; 
(9) you voluntarily or otherwise “abandon” (as defined below) the Business; (10) you are involved in any 
act or conduct which materially impairs or otherwise is prejudicial to the goodwill associated with the name 
“Los Campeones” or any of the Marks or the System; (11) you or a Principal Owner makes an 
unauthorized assignment or transfer of this Agreement, the Business or an ownership interest in you; 
(12) the operation, maintenance or construction of the Business results in a threat or danger to the public 
health or safety; (13) you violate any federal, state or local government health code in connection with the 
operation of the Business; (14) your lease for the Business premises expires or is terminated for any reason 
(unless, through no fault of you, the lessor of the premises in which the Business is located refuses to renew 
your lease and you relocate within the Protected Territory to a site we approve within ninety (90) days 
thereafter); (15) the result of an audit discloses an understatement of Gross Sales of two percent (2%) or 
more; (16) you willfully and materially falsify any report, statement, or other written data furnished to us 
either during the franchise application process or after you are awarded a franchise; or (17) you fail to 
provide us with access, or you otherwise block our access, to your Management System, any designated 
software, and/or the computer system that you use in connection with the Business, as required under this 
Agreement.  Any report submitted under Section 10(A) will be conclusively deemed to be materially false if 
it understates Gross Sales by more than five percent (5%).  The term “abandon” means your failure to 
operate the Business during regular business hours for a period of three (3) consecutive days or ten (10) or 
more days in a twelve-month period without our prior written consent unless such failure is due to an event 
of “force majeure” as further described in Section 20(J).  

B. Procedure.  Except as described below, you will have thirty (30) days, or such longer period 
as applicable law may require, after your receipt from us of a written Notice of Termination within which to 
remedy any default hereunder, and to provide evidence thereof to us.  If you fail to correct the alleged 
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default within that time, this Agreement will terminate without further notice to you effective immediately 
when the thirty (30) day period, or such longer period as applicable law may require, expires.  You will have 
ten (10) days after your receipt from us of a written Notice of Termination, or such longer period as 
applicable law may require, to remedy any default under item (6) in Section 15(A) and to provide evidence 
thereof to us.  If you fail to correct the alleged default within that time, this Agreement will terminate 
without further notice to you, effective immediately when the ten (10) day period expires, or such longer 
period as applicable law may require.  You will have seventy-two (72) hours, or such longer period as 
applicable law may require, after you receive from us a written Notice of Termination to remedy any default 
under item (13) in Section 15(A) and to provide evidence thereof to us.  If you fail to correct the alleged 
default within that time, this Agreement will terminate without further notice to you, effective immediately 
when the seventy-two (72) hour period expires, or such longer period as applicable law may require. You 
will have forty-eight (48) hours, or such longer period as applicable law may require, after you receive from 
us a written Notice of Termination to remedy any default under item (17) in Section 15(A) and to provide 
evidence thereof to us.  If you fail to correct the alleged default within that time, this Agreement will 
terminate without further notice to you, effective immediately when the forty-eight (48) hour period expires, 
or such longer period as applicable law may require  We may terminate this Agreement immediately upon 
delivery of written notice to you, with no opportunity to cure, if the termination results from any of the 
following:  (1) you fail to comply with one or more material requirements of this Agreement on three (3) 
separate occasions within any twelve (12) month period; (2) the nature of your breach makes it not curable; 
(3) you willfully and repeatedly deceive customers relative to the source, nature or quality of goods or 
services sold; or (4) any default under items (3), (4), (7), (8), (9), (10), (11), (12), (14), or (16) in 
Section 15(A).   

C. Management of Business While You are in Default.  In addition to our termination rights 
described in Sections 15(A) and 15(B), while you are in default of this Agreement, we may, but are not 
required to, manage, or designate a third party to manage, the Business on your behalf.  Our, or our 
designee’s, management of the Business does not relieve you of your obligations and neither we nor our 
designee will be liable for any debts, losses, costs or expenses incurred in operating the Business or to any 
of your creditors for any materials, supplies or services purchased by the Business while we, or our 
designee, manage it.  We, or our designee, may charge you a fee for management services and may cease 
providing management services at any time.   

D. Applicable Law.  If the provisions of this Section 15 are inconsistent with applicable law, 
the applicable law will apply.   

16. YOUR TERMINATION RIGHTS  

You may terminate this Agreement if we violate any material obligation of us to you and fail to 
cure such violation within sixty (60) days after our receipt of written notice from you; provided, however, 
that you are in substantial compliance with the Agreement at the time of giving such notice of 
termination.  Your written notice will identify the violation and demand that it be cured.  

17. YOUR OBLIGATIONS UPON TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION 

A. Post-Term Duties.  If this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason, you will: 

1. immediately cease operation of the Business and using the Marks as well as any 
confusingly similar trademarks or service marks; 

2. within thirty (30) days after termination, pay all amounts due and owing to us or 
our affiliates, including all Royalty Fees and accrued interest due under this Agreement; 
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3. discontinue using, and return to us by priority United States mail with a tracking 
number, any hard copies of, the Operations Manuals and any other manuals, advertising materials, 
and all other printed materials relating to the operation of the Franchise; 

4. assign to us or, at our discretion, disconnect the telephone number for the Business.  
You acknowledge that we have the sole right to and interest in all telephone numbers and 
directory listings associated with the Marks, and you authorize us, and appoint us as your 
attorney-in-fact, to direct the telephone company and all listing agencies to transfer such numbers 
and listings to us; 

5. remove from the Business premises all signs, posters, fixtures, decals, wall 
coverings and other materials that are distinctive of a Los Campeones® business or bear the name 
“Los Campeones” or other Marks; 

6. comply with all post-termination obligations under any software license agreement, 
including the return of all materials relating to any Proprietary Software; 

7. take all necessary action to cancel all fictitious or assumed name or equivalent 
registrations relating to your use of any of the Marks; 

8. immediately cease using Confidential Information (including all Customer Data) 
and return to us all documents in your possession that contain Confidential Information; and 

9. comply with all other applicable provisions of this Agreement, including the 
non-compete provisions. 

Upon termination or expiration of this Franchise Agreement for any reason, your right to use the 
name “Los Campeones” and the other Marks and the System will immediately terminate and you (and the 
Principal Owners) will not in any way associate yourself/themselves as being associated with us.  If you fail 
to immediately remove all signs and other materials bearing the Marks, we may do so at your expense. 

B. Redecoration.  If this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason, and you either 
remain in possession of the premises of the former Business to operate a separate business not in violation of 
Section 13 or enter into an agreement with a third party to allow such third party to directly operate a 
business at the premises of the former Business, you will, at your expense, modify both the exterior and 
interior appearance of the business premises so that they will be easily distinguished from the standard 
appearance of Los Campeones® businesses.  At a minimum, such changes and modifications to the 
premises will include:  (1) repainting the premises with totally different colors; (2) removing all signs and 
other materials bearing the name “Los Campeones” and other Marks; (3) removing from the premises all 
fixtures which are indicative of Los Campeones® businesses; (4) discontinuing use of the approved 
employee uniforms and refraining from using any uniforms which are confusingly similar; (5) discontinuing 
use of all packaging and Confidential Information regarding the operation of the Business; and (6) taking 
such other action, at your expense, as we may reasonably require.  If you fail to immediately initiate 
modifications to the premises of the former Business or complete such modifications with any period of 
time we deem appropriate, you agree that we or our designated agents may enter the premises of the 
former Business to make such modifications, at your risk and expense, without responsibility for any 
actual or consequential damages to your property or others, and without liability for trespass or other tort 
or criminal act. 

C. Our Option to Purchase Business.  If this Agreement expires or is terminated for any 
reason (other than our fault), we have the option, upon sixty (60) days’ written notice from the date of 
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expiration or termination, to purchase from you all the tangible and intangible assets relating to the 
Business, including the Business premises if you own the Business premises (excluding any unsalable 
inventory, cash, short-term investments and accounts receivable) (collectively, the “Purchased Assets”) 
and to an assignment of your lease for (1) the Business premises (or, if an assignment is prohibited, a 
sublease for the full remaining term under the same provisions as your lease) and (2) any other tangible 
leased assets used in operating the Business.  If the landlord respecting the lease for the Business premises 
is an affiliate of you (controlling, controlled by or under common control with you) we will have the right 
to assume the lease on terms generally consistent with then-current market rates for space in the 
immediate area surrounding the Business location.  We may assign to a third party this option to purchase 
and assignment of leases separate and apart from the remainder of this Agreement. 

The purchase price for the Business will be the fair market value of the Purchased Assets; 
provided that: (1) we may exclude from the Purchased Assets any products or other items that were not 
acquired in compliance with this Agreement; and (2) we may exclude from fair market value any 
provision for goodwill or similar value attributable to intangible property (such as the Marks, any 
Proprietary Software and Confidential Information).  If the parties cannot agree on fair market value 
within a reasonable time, we will designate an independent appraiser to determine the fair market value of 
the Purchased Assets.  The determination of such appraiser will be binding on the parties hereto, and the 
costs of such appraisal will be divided equally between you and us.  The purchase price, as determined 
above, will be paid in cash at the closing of the purchase, which will occur within a reasonable time, not 
to exceed sixty (60) days, after the fair market value is determined.  At the closing, you will deliver 
documents transferring good and merchantable title to the assets purchased, free and clear of all liens, 
encumbrances and liabilities to us or our designee and such other documents we may reasonably request 
to permit us to operate the Business without interruption.  We may set off against and reduce the purchase 
price by all amounts you owe to us or any of our affiliates.  If we exercise our option to purchase the 
Business, we may, pending the closing, appoint a manager to maintain Business operations.   

If we assume the lease for the Business under this Section, you will pay, remove or satisfy any 
liens or other encumbrances on your leasehold interest and will pay in full all amounts due the lessor 
under the lease existing at or prior to assumption.  We are not liable for any obligation you incur before 
the date we assume the lease. 

D. Continuing Obligations.  All obligations of us and you which expressly or by their nature 
survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement will continue in full force and effect following its 
expiration or termination and until they are satisfied or expire. 

18. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES/INDEMNIFICATION 

A. Relationship of the Parties.  We and you are independent contractors.  Neither party is the 
agent, legal representative, partner, subsidiary, joint venture or employee of the other.  Neither party will 
independently obligate the other to any third parties or represent any right to do so.  Neither this 
Agreement nor our course of conduct is intended, nor may anything in this Agreement (nor our course of 
conduct) be construed to state or imply that we are the employer of your employees and/or independent 
contractors. This Agreement does not reflect or create a fiduciary relationship or a relationship of special 
trust or confidence.  You must conspicuously identify yourself at the premises of the Business and in all 
dealings with customers, lessors, contractors, suppliers, public officials and others as the owner of the 
Business under a franchise agreement from us, and must place other notices of independent ownership on 
signs, forms, stationery, advertising and other materials as we require. 

B. Your Indemnification Obligations.  You agree to indemnify and hold us and our 
subsidiaries and affiliates, and our and their respective stockholders, members, directors, officers, 
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employees, agents and assignees (collectively, the “Franchisor Indemnified Parties” and each a 
“Franchisor Indemnified Party”) harmless against, and to reimburse the Franchisor Indemnified Parties 
for, any loss, liability or damages arising out of or relating to your development, ownership or operation 
of the Business, and all reasonable costs of defending any related claim brought against any of the 
Franchisor Indemnified Parties or any action in which a Franchisor Indemnified Party is named as a party 
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and interest) unless the loss, liability, damage or cost is solely due to 
our material breach of this Agreement, gross negligence or willful misconduct.  You must pay all losses, 
liability, damages and reasonable costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and interest) a Franchisor 
Indemnified Party incurs pursuant to your obligations of indemnity under this Section 18(B) regardless of 
any settlement, actions or defense a Franchisor Indemnified Party undertakes or the subsequent success or 
failure of any settlement, actions or defense.  Further, you agree to give us immediate notice of any 
action, proceeding, demand or investigation brought against you or the Business.  Any of the Franchisor 
Indemnified Parties may, using its own counsel, by notice to you, control any matter in which the 
Franchisor Indemnified Party is named or directly affected, but this will not affect your liability to pay all 
reasonable costs (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and interest) incurred by the Franchisor 
Indemnified Party in defending itself, which obligation is part of your indemnification obligation.   

C. Our Indemnification Obligations.  We agree to indemnify, defend, and hold you and your 
officers, directors and agents (collectively, the “Franchisee Indemnified Parties” and each a “Franchisee 
Indemnified Party”) harmless against, and to reimburse the Franchisee Indemnified Parties for, any loss, 
liability or damage solely arising from or relating to our material breach of this Agreement, your 
authorized use of the Marks in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, our gross negligence, or our 
willful misconduct, and all reasonable costs of defending any related claim brought against the Franchisee 
Indemnified Parties or any action in which a Franchisee Indemnified Parties is named as a party 
(including reasonable attorneys’ fees and interest).   

D. Survival.  The indemnities and assumptions of liabilities and obligations continue in full 
force and effect after the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

19. DISPUTE RESOLUTION  

A. Mediation.  Except as otherwise stated in this Section 19(A), at our option, all claims, 
controversies or disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement (and attachments) or the relationship 
created by this Agreement shall be submitted to non-binding mediation before you may bring such claim, 
controversy or dispute to a court.  The mediation will be conducted either through an individual mediator 
or a mediator appointed by a mediation services organization, experienced in the mediation of disputes 
between you and us, agreed upon by the parties.  If the parties do not agree upon a mediator or mediation 
services organization within fifteen (15) days after either party has notified the other of its desire to seek 
mediation, the dispute will be mediated by the American Arbitration Association pursuant to its rules 
governing mediation, in the county where our headquarters is located.  The costs and expenses of 
mediation, including compensation of the mediator, will be borne equally by the parties.  If the parties 
cannot resolve the claim, controversy or dispute within sixty (60) days after conferring with the mediator, 
either party may submit such claim, controversy or dispute to the appropriate court as described in 
Section 19(B).  This agreement to mediate will survive any termination or expiration of this Agreement.  
The parties may bring an action under the applicable provisions of this Section 19 without first submitting 
the action to mediation under this Section 19(A) if such controversy, dispute, claim concerns an allegation 
that a party has violated (or threatens to violate, or poses an imminent risk of violating):  (1) any federally 
protected intellectual property rights in the Marks, the System, or in any Confidential Information; (2) any 
restrictive covenants contained in this Agreement; (3) any clause that would entitle the other to seek 
injunctive relief; (4) or involves the possession or disposition of, or other relief relating to, real property; 
or (5) any of your payment obligations under this Agreement. 
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B. Venue.  Except to the extent we elect to enforce the provisions of this Agreement by 
injunction as provided in Section 19(C), any cause of action, claim, suit or demand allegedly arising from 
or related to this Agreement or the relationship of the parties that has not been settled by or is not 
otherwise subject to mediation as described in Section 19(A) must be brought exclusively in any state or 
federal court of competent jurisdiction in the county where our headquarters is located, which as of the 
Effective Date of this Agreement, is Hennepin County, Minnesota.  We also have the right to file any 
such suit against you in the federal or state court where the Business is located.  Any such action shall be 
conducted on an individual basis, and not as part of a consolidated, common, or class action, and you and 
your owners waive any and all rights to proceed on a consolidated, common, or class basis.  Each of us 
and you irrevocably consents to the jurisdiction of such courts and waive all rights to challenge personal 
jurisdiction and venue.   

C. Injunctive Relief.  Notwithstanding Sections 19(A) and (B), you recognize that a single 
franchisee’s failure to comply with the terms of its agreement could cause irreparable damage to us and/or 
to some or all other Los Campeones® businesses.  Therefore, if you breach or threaten to breach any of 
the terms of this Agreement, we will be entitled to an injunction restraining such breach and/or a decree 
of specific performance, without showing or proving any actual damage, together with recovery of 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs incurred in obtaining such equitable relief, until such time as a 
final and binding determination is made by the arbitrators.

D. Attorneys’ Fees.  The nonprevailing party will pay all costs, expenses, and interest 
including reasonable attorneys’ fees, the prevailing party incurs in any action brought to enforce any 
provision of this Agreement, to enjoin any violation of this Agreement, or a claim related to the offering 
of a franchise or the franchise relationship.  

20. ENFORCEMENT 

A. Severability.  All provisions of this Agreement are severable and this Agreement will be 
interpreted and enforced as if all completely invalid or unenforceable provisions were not contained 
herein and partially valid and enforceable provisions will be enforced to the extent valid and enforceable.  
If any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdiction requires a greater prior notice of the 
termination of or non-renewal of this Agreement than is required, or the taking of some other action not 
required, or if under any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdiction, any provision of this 
Agreement or any specification, standard or operating procedure prescribed by us are invalid or 
unenforceable, the prior notice and/or other action required by law or rule will be substituted for the 
comparable provisions. 

B. Waiver of Obligations.  No delay, waiver, omission, or forbearance on our part to 
exercise any right, option, duty, or power arising out of any breach or default by you or any other 
franchisee under any of the terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement, and no custom 
or practice by the parties at variance with the terms of this Agreement, shall constitute a waiver by us to 
enforce any such right, option, duty, or power as against you, or as to subsequent breach or default by 
you.  Our subsequent acceptance of any payments due to us hereunder shall not be deemed to be a waiver 
by us of any preceding or succeeding breach by you of any terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of 
this Agreement. 

C. Rights of Parties are Cumulative.  The rights of us and you are cumulative and no 
exercise or enforcement by either party of any right or remedy precludes the exercise or enforcement by 
such party of any other right or remedy to which such party is entitled by law or equity to enforce. 
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D. Governing Law.  Subject to our rights under federal trademark laws and the parties’ 
rights under the Federal Arbitration Act, this Agreement will be governed by and construed under the 
laws of the state of Minnesota, without regard to any conflict of laws principles of such state.  You waive, 
to the fullest extent permitted by law, the rights and protections that might be provided through any state 
franchise or business opportunity laws, other than those of the state in which the Business is located.   

E. Binding Effect.  This Agreement is binding upon the parties and their respective 
executors, administrators, heirs, assigns, and successors in interest, and will not be modified except by 
written agreement signed by both you and us.  Except as provided above, this Agreement is not intended, 
and will not be deemed, to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or legal entity not a party to this 
Agreement. 

F. References.  If you consist of two or more individuals, such individuals will be jointly 
and severally liable, and references to you in this Agreement will include all such individuals.   

G. Interpretation of Rights and Obligations.  The following provisions will apply to and 
govern the interpretation of this Agreement, the parties’ rights under this Agreement and the relationship 
between the parties: 

1. Our Rights.  Whenever this Agreement provides that we have or reserve (retain) 
a certain right, that right is absolute and the parties intend that our exercise of that right will not 
be subject to any limitation or review.  We have the right to operate, administrate, develop and 
change the System in any manner that is not specifically precluded by the provisions of this 
Agreement.

2. Our Reasonable Business Judgment.  Whenever we reserve discretion in a 
particular area or where we agree or are required to exercise our rights reasonably or in good 
faith, we will satisfy our obligations whenever we exercise “reasonable business judgment” in 
making our decision or exercising our rights.  A decision or action by us will be deemed to be the 
result of “reasonable business judgment,” even if other reasonable or even arguably preferable 
alternatives are available, if our decision or action is intended to promote or benefit the System 
generally even if the decision or action also promotes a financial or other individual interest of 
ours.  Examples of items that will promote or benefit the System include enhancing the value of 
the Marks, improving customer service and satisfaction, improving product quality, improving 
uniformity, enhancing or encouraging modernization, and improving the competitive position of 
the System.  Neither you nor any third party (including a trier of fact) will substitute their 
judgment for our reasonable business judgment.

H. WAIVER OF PUNITIVE DAMAGES.  YOU AND WE AND OUR AFFILIATES 
AGREE TO WAIVE, TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW, THE RIGHT TO 
OR A CLAIM FOR ANY PUNITIVE OR EXEMPLARY DAMAGES AGAINST THE OTHER 
AND AGREE THAT IN THE EVENT OF ANY DISPUTE BETWEEN US, EACH WILL BE 
LIMITED TO THE RECOVERY OF ACTUAL DAMAGES SUSTAINED BY US. 

I. WAIVER OF JURY TRIAL.  YOU AND WE IRREVOCABLY WAIVE TRIAL 
BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING, OR COUNTERCLAIM, WHETHER AT LAW OR 
IN EQUITY, BROUGHT BY EITHER OF THEM AGAINST THE OTHER, WHETHER OR 
NOT THERE ARE OTHER PARTIES IN SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDING.

J. Force Majeure.  If any party fails to perform any obligation under this Agreement due to 
a cause beyond the control of and without the negligence of such party, such failure will not be deemed a 
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breach of this Agreement, provided such party uses reasonable best efforts to perform such obligations as 
soon as possible under the circumstances.  Such causes include strikes, wars, riots, civil commotion, and 
acts of government, except as may be specifically provided for elsewhere in this Agreement.

K. Notice of Potential Profit.  We advise you that we and/or our affiliates periodically may 
make available to you goods, products and/or services for use in the Business on the sale of which we 
and/or our affiliates may make a profit.  We further advise you that we and our affiliates periodically may 
receive consideration from suppliers and manufacturers respecting sales of goods, products or services to 
you or in consideration for services provided or rights license to such persons.  You agree that we and our 
affiliates will be entitled to such profits and consideration.  

L. Limitation of Actions.  Subject to any applicable statute of limitations, you and we agree 
that neither party will have the right to bring any claim or action against the other party unless the action 
or claim is commenced within one (1) year after the offended party has knowledge of the facts giving rise 
to the action or claim.

M. Entire Agreement.  The “Introduction” section, the exhibit(s) and any addenda to this 
Agreement are a part of this Agreement, which represents the entire agreement of the parties, and there 
are no other oral or written understandings or agreements between us and you relating to the subject 
matter of this Agreement.   

N. Effective Date.  We will designate the “Effective Date” of this Agreement in the space 
provided on the cover page.  If no Effective Date is designated on the cover page, the Effective Date is the 
date when we sign this Agreement.  However, as described in Section 6(E), you do not have the right to, 
and may not, open the Business for business until you receive our prior written approval. 

O. Headings; Interpretation; Counterparts.  The headings in this Agreement are for 
convenience only, do not constitute a part of this Agreement, and will not be deemed to limit or affect any of 
the provisions of this Agreement.  The use of the term “including” in this Agreement shall mean “including 
without limitation.”  This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one (1) and the same 
instrument. 

21. NOTICES 

All written notices and reports permitted or required to be delivered pursuant to this Agreement 
shall be deemed so delivered:  (i) when delivered by hand; (ii) three (3) days after placed in the United 
States mail by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, or one (1) business 
day after placed in the hands of an overnight courier, for next day delivery, and in either case addressed to 
the party to be notified at its most current principal business address of which the notifying party has been 
notified (which, in the case of you, includes the address of the Franchised Business); or (iii) one (1) 
business day after being sent via email to the party to be notified as follows:  if to us, to 
benjamin@loscampeonesgym.com, and if to you, either the email address for the Franchised Business we 
designate for communication with us or such other email address to provide to us.  

22. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

A. Success of Franchised Business.  The success of the business venture you intend to 
undertake under this Agreement is speculative and depends, to a large extent, upon your (or the Principal 
Owner’s) ability as an independent businessman, and your active participation in the daily affairs of the 
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Business as well as other factors.  We do not make any representation or warranty, express or implied, as 
to the potential success of the business venture. 

B. Independent Investigation.  You acknowledge that you have entered into this Agreement 
after making an independent investigation of our operations and not upon any representation as to gross 
revenues, volume, potential earnings or profits which you might be expected to realize, nor has anyone 
made any other representation, which is not expressly stated herein, to induce you to accept this Franchise 
and sign this Agreement. 

C. Review of this Agreement.  You represent that you have read this Agreement in its 
entirety and that you have been given the opportunity to clarify any provisions that you did not 
understand and to consult with any attorney or other professional advisor.  You further represent that you 
understand the provisions of this Agreement and agree to be bound. 

D. Other Franchises.  You acknowledge that other Los Campeones® businesses have or will 
be granted franchises at different times and in different situations, and further acknowledge that the 
provisions of such franchises may vary substantially from those contained in this Agreement. 

The parties have signed this Agreement on the date stated in the first paragraph. 

WE: 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC  

By 
 Benjamin Loehrer 

Its President  

YOU: 

Name of corporation or limited liability company 

By 

 Its 



A-1 
Los Campeones® FA 

EXHIBIT A 
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

BUSINESS LOCATION AND PROTECTED TERRITORY 

This Exhibit A is attached to and is an integral part of the Los Campeones® Franchise Agreement 
dated _______________, 20____ (the “Franchise Agreement”), between us and you. 

1. Business Location.  We and you agree that the Business will be located at the following 
premises:  

You acknowledge that our consent to a proposed location does not represent a warranty or 
representation of any kind as to the suitability of the proposed location for a Los Campeones® business. 

2. Protected Territory.  The Protected Territory will consist of a 8-mile radius from the 
Authorized Location.   

3. Business Opening.  You agree to complete the development and open the Business for 
business within six (6) months after the effective date of this Exhibit A date first stated above.  

4. Defined Terms.  All capitalized terms contained in this Exhibit A not defined herein will 
have the same meaning as provided in the Franchise Agreement. 

5. Effective Date.  This Exhibit A is effective as of this ______ day of 
___________________, 20___. 

WE: 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC  

By 
 Benjamin Loehrer 

Its President  

YOU: 

Name of corporation or limited liability company 

By 

 Its 
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EXHIBIT B 
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

OWNERSHIP AND MANAGEMENT ADDENDUM

1. Principal Owner(s).  You represent and warrant to us that the following person(s) or 
entity, and only the following person(s) or entity, will be your Principal Owner(s): 

PERCENTAGE 
NAME HOME ADDRESS OF INTEREST 

2. Operating Principal.  You represent and warrant to us that the following person, and only 
the following person, is your Operating Principal: 

NAME TITLE ADDRESS 

3. General Manager(s).  You represent and warrant to us that the following person(s), and 
only the following person(s), is/are your general manager(s): 

NAME TITLE ADDRESS 

4. Change.  You must immediately notify us in writing of any change in the information 
contained in this Addendum and, at our request, prepare and sign a new Addendum containing the correct 
information.  Upon notification, we will issue to you another addendum for you to execute.   

5. Effective Date.  This Exhibit B is effective as of this ______ day of 
___________________, 20___. 

Your Initials Our Initials 
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EXHIBIT C 
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

BUSINESS LOCATION GENERAL AREA 

This Exhibit C is attached to and is an integral part of the Los Campeones® Franchise Agreement 
dated _______________, 20____ (the “Franchise Agreement”), between us and you. 

1. Area for Business Location.  Within six (6) months after the Effective Date of the 
Franchise Agreement, you will select and obtain our consent to a location for the Business within the 
geographical area described below (the “Area”), and purchase or sign a lease and the Lease Addendum 
for the premises of that Business location, all in accordance with the provisions of this Exhibit C:   

2. Consent to Location and Business Opening.  To obtain our consent to the proposed 
Business premises, you must deliver to us a complete site report (containing information we require) for 
the location within the Area at which you propose to establish and operate the Business and which you 
reasonably believe will satisfy the standardized site selection criteria we have established.  The proposed 
location is subject to our prior written consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld.  In evaluating 
the proposed location, we will consider matters we deem material, including without limitation 
demographic characteristics of the proposed location, traffic patterns, parking, the predominant character 
of the neighborhood, the proximity to other businesses, including without limitation other Los 
Campeones® businesses, and other commercial characteristics, the purchase price or rental obligations 
and other lease terms for the proposed location, and the size of premises, appearance and other physical 
characteristics.  Within thirty (30) days following our receipt of the complete site report and other 
materials we request, we will consent to or reject (in writing) the location you propose for the Business. 

YOU ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT OUR CONSENT TO A PROPOSED 
LOCATION DOES NOT REPRESENT A WARRANTY OR REPRESENTATION OF ANY KIND, 
EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, AS TO THE SUITABILITY OF THE PROPOSED LOCATION FOR A 
LOS CAMPEONES® BUSINESS. 

3. Purchase or Lease of Business Location.  Once you have obtained our consent to a 
proposed Business location within the Area, you must purchase or sign a lease and the Lease Addendum 
for the premises of that location, and sign Exhibit A, which we will revise to identify the Authorized 
Location of the Business and the Protected Territory. 

4. Termination of Franchise Agreement.  We have the right to terminate the Franchise 
Agreement, effective upon delivery of notice of termination to you, if you fail to (i) obtain our consent to 
a location for the Business within the Area, (ii) purchase or sign a lease and the Lease Addendum for the 
premises of that location or (iii) sign a revised Exhibit A for that location within six (6) months after the 
Effective Date of the Franchise Agreement. 
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5. Defined Terms.  All capitalized terms contained in this Exhibit A and not defined herein 
will have the same meaning as provided in the Franchise Agreement. 

WE: 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC  

By 
 Benjamin Loehrer 

Its President  

YOU: 

Name of corporation or limited liability company 

By 

 Its 
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EXHIBIT D 
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

BUSINESS LEASE ADDENDUM 
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LEASE ADDENDUM 

This Lease Addendum is entered into as of the date of the Lease Agreement by and between 
________________________________ (“Landlord”) and _______________________________ 
(“Tenant”). 

Landlord and Tenant are parties to that certain Lease of even date (the “Lease”) covering the 
premises located at ______________________________________________________________ (the 
“Leased Premises”), which Tenant will use to operate a Los Campeones® business under a Franchise 
Agreement (the “Franchise Agreement”) between Tenant and Los Campeones Franchising LLC 
(“Franchisor”).  Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Lease to protect the various interests of 
Franchisor. 

In consideration of the foregoing and the promises contained in the Lease, the parties agree as 
follows:   

1. Permitted Use.  Landlord and Tenant agree that so long as the Franchise Agreement 
remains in effect, Tenant may use the Leased Premises only for a Los Campeones® business and Tenant 
may offer for sale and sell at the Leased Premises only those services and products which Franchisor 
approves.  Landlord further agrees that so long as the Lease is in effect, it will not permit any tenant 
within the same multi-tenant mall or building to operate any fitness center or exercise facility, or any 
other business that is competitive with a Los Campeones® business, other than businesses in existence in 
the mall or building as of the effective date of the Lease or upon the written consent of Franchisor and 
Tenant.  

2. Notice of Default.  Landlord will provide Franchisor, by certified US mail or a 
recognized overnight delivery service at the address provided in Section 8, a minimum thirty (30) day 
notice of any default under the Lease before Landlord initiates any action to terminate the Lease or 
exercise any remedy for such default. 

3. Cure.  Either Tenant or Franchisor may cure defaults under the Lease and Landlord will 
accept performance of obligations due under the Lease, as specified in the Lease, by either Franchisor or 
Tenant.  Franchisor will not, however, be under any obligation to cure any default and nothing herein will 
require Franchisor at any time to comply with or take any action under the provisions of the Lease. 

4. Rights of Franchisor After Cure.  If Franchisor commences cure of any default under the 
Lease within the thirty (30) day notice period described in Section 2, and if Franchisor thereafter 
diligently completes cure, Franchisor may, but will not be obligated to, give notice to Landlord and 
become Tenant under the Lease, in which event Landlord will not be entitled to terminate the Lease. 

5. Assignment and Renewal.  Landlord consents to an assignment or transfer of Tenant’s 
rights under the Lease to Franchisor at any time during the term of the Lease; provided that such 
assignment or transfer is subject to Franchisor’s written agreement to accept such assignment or transfer.  
Landlord will give Franchisor notice of expiration of the term of the Lease at least three (3) months in 
advance thereof and grant Franchisor the right, but not the obligation, to exercise any then-existing 
renewal rights under the Lease. 

6. Right of Entry and Subordination.  Landlord will give Franchisor access to the Leased 
Premises at reasonable times on not less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice (or such shorter notice as 
may be reasonable when circumstances dictate) either to inspect the Leased Premises for compliance with 
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Franchisor’s requirements, to remove from the Leased Premises any items bearing Franchisor’s marks or 
logos or to take other action permissible under the Agreements between Tenant and Franchisor.  Landlord 
specifically subordinates any lien it may have in such items to Franchisor’s rights as licensor of the marks 
or logos displayed on items. 

7. Vacating Premises.  Upon vacating the Leased Premises, or termination of the Franchise 
Agreement or Lease (whichever occurs first), Tenant must remove all signs and materials bearing any of 
Franchisor’s marks or logos. 

8. Notices.  Any notices to Franchisor hereunder will be sent to: 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC  
2721 E Franklin Ave 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406  

9. Benefit.  Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that they enter into this Agreement for the 
express benefit of Franchisor and that Franchisor is an intended beneficiary hereof. 

10. Supremacy.  This Addendum shall control and supersede any inconsistent provision of 
the Lease. 

The parties have signed this Agreement the day and year first above written.      

LANDLORD: 
____________________________ 

TENANT: 
______________________________ 

By: _____________________________________ 
Title: ____________________________________

By: _____________________________________ 
Title: ____________________________________
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EXHIBIT E 
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS 

In consideration of the execution of that certain Franchise Agreement of even date (the 
“Agreement”) by Los Campeones Franchising LLC ( “we” or “us”), each of the undersigned (a 
“Guarantor”) personally and unconditionally guarantees to us, and our successors and assigns, for the 
term of the Agreement and thereafter as provided in the Agreement that   

 (“you”) will timely pay and perform each and 
every undertaking, agreement and covenant stated in the Agreement; and agrees to be personally bound 
by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and every provision in the Agreement.

Each of the undersigned waives:  (1) acceptance and notice of acceptance by us of the foregoing 
undertaking; (2) notice of demand for payment of any indebtedness; (3) protest and notice of default to 
any party respecting the indebtedness; (4) any right he may have to require that an action be brought 
against you or any other person as a condition of liability. 

Each Guarantor consents and agrees that: 

(1) Guarantor’s liability under this undertaking will be direct and independent of the liability 
of, and will be joint and several with, you and the other Guarantors of you; 

(2) Guarantor will make any payment or perform any obligation required under the Franchise 
Agreement upon demand if you fail to do so; 

(3) Guarantor’s liability hereunder will not be diminished or relieved by bankruptcy, 
insolvency or reorganization of you or any assignee or successor; 

(4) Guarantor’s liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any 
extension of time or credit which we may grant to you, including without limitation the acceptance of any 
partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of any claims; 

(5) We may proceed against Guarantor and you jointly and severally, or we may, at our 
option, proceed against Guarantor, without having commenced any action, or having obtained any 
judgment against you or any other Guarantor; and 

(6) Guarantor will pay all reasonable attorneys’ fees and all costs and other expenses we 
incur in enforcing this Guaranty against Guarantor or any negotiations relative to the obligations hereby 
guaranteed. 

Each of the undersigned has signed this Guaranty as of the same day and year as the Agreement 
was executed. 

GUARANTOR(S) PERCENTAGE OWNERSHIP IN YOU 
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EXHIBIT F 
TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

EFT AUTHORIZATION FORM 

Name of Depositor (Franchisee) 

Social Security Number or Federal Tax Identification Number 

The undersigned Depositor (“Depositor”) hereby authorizes Los Campeones Franchising LLC 
(“Franchisor”) to initiate electronic transfer debit entries and/or credit correction entries to Depositor’s 
checking and/or savings account(s) indicated below with the Depository designated below 
(“Depository”) (“Bank”) to debit or credit such account(s) pursuant to Franchisor’s instructions. 
Depositor understands that it is solely responsible for the accuracy of the information submitted on this 
form and for all future information submitted to Franchisor for the purposes of initiating required 
electronic transfers pursuant to that certain Franchise Agreement to which this Exhibit F is attached. It is 
Depositor’s responsibility to notify Franchisor of any changes or corrections to its bank account 
information. This authorization is to remain in full force and effect until sixty (60) days after Franchisor 
has received written notification from Depositor of its termination. 

Depository Branch 

City State Zip Code 

Bank Transit/ABA Routing Number Account Number 

Depositor 

By: 

Name: 

Title: 

Date: 

4938-4720-1075, v. 4
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STATE ADMINISTRATORS AND 
AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

STATE STATE ADMINISTRATOR/AGENT ADDRESS 

California Commissioner of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 
California Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation 

2101 Arena Boulevard 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
1-866-275-2677 

Ask.DFPI@dfpi.ca.gov (email) 

Hawaii Commissioner of Securities 
Dept. of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 

335 Merchant Street 
Room 205 
Honolulu, HI 96813 
(808) 586-2744  

Illinois Illinois Attorney General 500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62706 
(217) 782-4465 

Indiana 
(State Administrator) 

Indiana Secretary of State  
Securities Division 

302 West Washington Street, Room E111 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 232-6681 

Indiana 
(Agent) 

Indiana Secretary of State 201 State House 
200 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 232-6531 

Maryland Office of the Attorney General 
Division of Securities 

200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 

Michigan Michigan Department of Attorney General 
Consumer Protection Division 

G. Mennen Williams Building, 1st Floor 
525 West Ottawa Street 
Lansing, MI 48909 
(517) 373-7117 

Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce 
Minnesota Department of Commerce 

85 7th Place East, Suite 280 
St. Paul, MN 55101-2198 
(651) 539-1638 

New York 
(State Administrator) 

NYS Department of Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 

28 Liberty Street, 21st Floor 
New York, NY 10005 
(212) 416-8285 

New York 
(Agent) 

New York Secretary of State One Commerce Plaza 
99 Washington Avenue, 6th Floor 
Albany, NY 12231-0001 
(518) 416-8236 

North Dakota Securities Commissioner 
North Dakota Securities Department 

600 East Boulevard Avenue 
State Capitol, Fourteenth Floor, Dept. 414 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 
(701) 328-2910 

Rhode Island Director, Department of Business Regulation, 
Securities Division 

1511 Pontiac Avenue– Building 68-2 
Cranston, RI 02920 
(401) 462-9527 

South Dakota Department of Labor and Regulation 
Division of Insurance – Securities Regulation

124 S. Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, SD 57501
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(605) 773-3563
Virginia 

(State Administrator) 
State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities and Retail Franchising 

1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 
804-371-9051 

Virginia 
(Agent) 

Clerk of the State Corporation Commission 1300 East Main Street 
Richmond, VA 23219-3630 
(804) 371-9733 

Washington 
(State Administrator) 

Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 

PO Box 41200 
Olympia, WA 98504-1200 
360-902-8760

Washington 
(Agent) 

Department of Financial Institutions 
Securities Division 

150 Israel Road SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 
(360) 902-8700 

Wisconsin Department of Financial Institutions 
Division of Securities 4822 Madison Yards Way, North Tower 

Madison, WI 53705 
(608) 266-9555
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones Franchising LLC Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all 
Los Campeones franchises offered and sold or operated in the State of California: 

Registration of this franchise does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the 
Commissioner of the Department of Financial Protection and Innovation.

1. THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL 
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE 
DELIVERED TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT.  

2. OUR WEBSITE HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION.  ANY COMPLAINTS 
CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF THIS WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT 
WWW.DFPI.CA.GOV. 

3. California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1) states that 
any provision of a Franchise Agreement or related document requiring the franchisee to waive 
specific provisions of the law is contrary to public policy and is void and unenforceable. The law 
also prohibits a franchisor from disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees, or its 
agents make to you, (ii) your ability to rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any 
violations of the law. 

4. Section 31125 of the California Corporations Code requires the Franchisor to give you a disclosure 
document approved by the Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation before the 
Franchisor can ask you to consider a material modification of the Franchise Agreement. We have 
or will comply with all of the requirements under California Corporations Code, Section 31109.1, 
with respect to negotiated sales.  

5. Item 3 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is supplemented by the following paragraph: 

Neither Los Campeones Franchising LLC, nor any person described in Item 2 of the Disclosure 
Document, is subject to any currently effective order of any national securities association or 
national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a 
et seq. suspending or expelling such persons from membership in such association or exchange.  

6. Item 17 of the Franchise Disclosure Document is amended by the insertion of the following:  

“The California Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Section 20000 through 
20043), provides franchisees with additional rights concerning transfer, termination and non-
renewal of the Franchise Agreement and certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement relating to 
transfer, termination and non-renewal may be superseded by the Act.  There may also be court 
decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement and your relationship with us, including 
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the areas of transfer, termination and renewal of your franchise.  If the Franchise Agreement is 
inconsistent with the law, the law will control.” 

7. The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.  

8. The Franchise Agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur at (indicate sites) 
with the costs being borne by (explanation). Prospective franchisees are encouraged to consult 
private legal counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as Business 
and Professions Code section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure section 1281, and the Federal 
Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the 
State of California.  

9. The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws of Minnesota. This provision may not 
be enforceable under California law.  

10. The Franchise Agreement contains a waiver of punitive damages and jury trial provisions. These 
waivers may not be enforceable in California. 

11. The highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% annually. 

12. You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations 
Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California 
Corporations Code §§31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code §20010 voids a 
waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code §§20000 
through 20043).   

13. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf 
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection 
with the franchise.   
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ADDENDUM TO 
LOS CAMPEONES® 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE  

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones® Franchise Agreement, the 
following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all Los Campeones franchises 
offered and sold or operated in the State of California.   

1. California’s Franchise Investment Law (Corporations Code sections 31512 and 31512.1) states that 
any provision of a Franchise Agreement or related document requiring the franchisee to waive 
specific provisions of the law is contrary to public policy and is void and unenforceable. The law 
also prohibits a franchisor from disclaiming or denying (i) representations it, its employees, or its 
agents make to you, (ii) your ability to rely on any representations it makes to you, or (iii) any 
violations of the law. 

2. The California Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code Section 20000 through 
20043), provides franchisees with additional rights concerning transfer, termination and non-
renewal of the Franchise Agreement and certain provisions of the Franchise Agreement relating to 
transfer, termination and non-renewal may be superseded by the Act.  There may also be court 
decisions which may supersede the Franchise Agreement and your relationship with Franchisor, 
including the areas of transfer, termination and renewal of Franchisee’s franchise.  If the Franchise 
Agreement is inconsistent with the law, the law will control. 

3. The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of the franchise. This provision may not be enforceable under California law.  

4. The Franchise Agreement requires binding arbitration. Prospective franchisees are encouraged to 
consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws (such as 
Business and Professions Code section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure section 1281, and the 
Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a Franchise Agreement restricting venue to a forum 
outside the State of California.  

5. The Franchise Agreement requires application of the laws and forum of Minnesota.  This provision 
may not be enforceable under California law. 

6. The Franchise Agreement contains a waiver of punitive damages and jury trial provisions. These 
waivers may not be enforceable in California.  

7. The highest interest rate allowed by law in California is 10% annually. 

8. You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations 
Code §31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California 
Corporations Code §§31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code §20010 voids a 
waiver of your rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code §§20000 
through 20043).   

9.  The Franchise Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of the franchise.  A contract that restrains a former franchisee from engaging in a lawful 
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trade or business is to that extent void under California Business and Professions Code Section 
16600, to the extent such law applies. 

10. For franchisees operating outlets located in California, the California Franchise Investment Law 
and the California Franchise Relations Act will apply regardless of the choice of law or dispute 
resolution venue stated elsewhere. Any language in the Franchise Agreement or any amendment 
thereto or any agreement to the contrary is superseded by this condition. 

11. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf 
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection 
with the franchise. 

12. Section 22, entitled “Acknowledgements” of the Franchise Agreement is hereby deleted in its 
entirety and replaced with the following: “INTENTIONALLY OMITTED”. 

Each provision of this Addendum to the shall be effective only to the extent that with respect to such 
provision,  the  jurisdictional  requirements  of  the  California Franchise Investment Law are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date the 
Franchise Agreement was executed. 

IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP:
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE: 
LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING LLC

By:  By:  
Name:  Name:  
Title:  Title:  

IF INDIVIDUAL:
FRANCHISEE: 

Name:  
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE MINNESOTA FRANCHISE ACT 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones Franchising LLC 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all Los Campeones franchises 
offered and sold in the state of Minnesota:  

The Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Minnesota or if your business 
will be located in Minnesota. 

1. In Item 17 it is disclosed that litigation must be in state or federal court in the in the county 
where our headquarters is located at the time the suit is commenced (subject to applicable law), and that we 
also have the right to file suit where the Business is located.  However, Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 
and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside 
Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, 
termination penalties or judgment notes.  In addition, nothing in the Franchise Disclosure Document or 
agreement(s) can abrogate or reduce any of franchisee’s rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, 
Chapter 80C, or franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the 
jurisdiction. 

2. We will comply with Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14, subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, except 
in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) 
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the Agreement, and that consent to the transfer of the franchise 
will not be unreasonably withheld. 

3. Item 13 is revised to include the following language: 

To the extent required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, we will protect 
your rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logo types 
or other commercial symbols related to the trademarks or indemnify you 
from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand 
regarding the use of the trademarks, provided you are using the names and 
marks in accordance with the Franchise Agreement. 

4. Item 17(C) and 17(M) are revised to provide that we cannot require you to sign a release 
of claims under the Minnesota Franchise Act as a condition to renewal or assignment. 

5. We are prohibited from requiring you to assent to a release, assignment, novation or waiver 
that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22, 
provided that the foregoing shall not bar the voluntary settlement of disputes. 

6. We will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.17 Subd. 5 with respect to limitation 
of claims.   

7. NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute Section 604.113, which puts a limit of $30 
on service charges. 

8. You cannot consent to us obtaining injunctive relief.  We may seek injunctive relief.  A 
court will determine if a bond is required. 
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9. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 

10. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that, with respect to 
such provision, the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act are met independently 
without reference to this Addendum. 
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ADDENDUM TO 
LOS CAMPEONES® 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE  

STATE OF MINNESOTA  

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones Franchising LLC 
Franchise Agreement, the following provisions shall supersede and apply to all Los Campeones franchises 
offered and sold in the state of Minnesota:  

The Minnesota Addendum is only applicable if you are a resident of Minnesota or if your business 
will be located in Minnesota. 

1. Minnesota Statutes, Section 80C.21 and Minnesota Rule 2860.4400(J) prohibit the 
franchisor from requiring litigation to be conducted outside Minnesota, requiring waiver of a jury trial, or 
requiring the franchisee to consent to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes.  In 
addition, nothing in the Franchise Agreement can abrogate or reduce any of franchisee’s rights as provided 
for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or franchisee’s rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies 
provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

2. We will comply with Minn. Stat. Section 80C.14, subds. 3, 4 and 5, which require, except 
in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) 
and 180 days’ notice for non-renewal of the Agreement, and that consent to the transfer of the franchise 
will not be unreasonably withheld. 

3. Section 8 is revised to include the following language: 

To the extent required by the Minnesota Franchise Act, we will protect 
your rights to use the trademarks, service marks, trade names, logo types 
or other commercial symbols related to the trademarks or indemnify you 
from any loss, costs or expenses arising out of any claim, suit or demand 
regarding the use of the trademarks, provided you are using the names and 
marks in accordance with the Franchise Agreement. 

4. Section 3 is revised to provide that we cannot require you to sign a release of claims under 
the Minnesota Franchise Act as a condition to renewal or assignment. 

11. We are prohibited from requiring you to assent to a release, assignment, novation or waiver 
that would relieve any person from liability imposed by Minnesota Statutes, Sections 80C.01 to 80C.22, 
provided that the foregoing shall not bar the voluntary settlement of disputes. 

12. We will comply with Minnesota Statute Section 80C.17 Subd. 5 with respect to limitation 
of claims.   

13. NSF checks are governed by Minnesota Statute Section 604.113, which puts a limit of $30 
on service charges. 

14. You cannot consent to us obtaining injunctive relief.  We may seek injunctive relief.  A 
court will determine if a bond is required. 
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15. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 

16. Each provision of this Addendum shall be effective only to the extent that, with respect to 
such provision, the jurisdictional requirements of the Minnesota Franchise Act are met independently 
without reference to this Addendum. 

IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP:
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE: 
LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING LLC

By:  By:  
Name:  Name:  
Title:  Title:  

IF INDIVIDUAL:
FRANCHISEE: 

Name:  
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE NORTH DAKOTA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones Franchising LLC Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all 
Los Campeones franchises offered and sold or operated in the State of North Dakota: 

1.  Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the North Dakota Securities Commissioner has 
required a financial assurance. Therefore, if the franchisee is a North Dakota resident, 100% of the 
Initial Franchise Fee the franchisee pays to the franchisor must be placed into escrow until the 
obligations of the franchisor to assist the franchisee to establish and open his, her or its business 
are fulfilled.  

2. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has determined that it is unfair and unequitable under 
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law for the franchisor to require the franchisee to sign a 
general release upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement. Therefore, the requirement that the 
franchisee signs a release upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement is deleted from Item 17(c) and 
from any other place it appears in the Disclosure Document. 

3.  Item 17(r) is revised to provide that covenants not to compete, such as those mentioned in Item 
17(r) of the Disclosure Document, are generally considered unenforceable in the state of North 
Dakota. 

4.  The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has determined that it is unfair and unequitable under 
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law for the franchisor to require the franchisee to consent 
to the jurisdiction of courts located outside of North Dakota. Therefore, any references in the 
Disclosure Document to any requirement that the franchisee consents to the jurisdiction of courts 
located outside of North Dakota are deleted. 

5. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has determined that it is unfair and unequitable under 
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law for the franchisor to require the franchisee to agree to 
arbitration or mediation of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee’s 
business. Therefore, any references in the Disclosure Document to any requirement that the 
franchisee consents to arbitration or mediation located outside of North Dakota are amended to 
include the following: 

“Pursuant to the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, the site of 
arbitration or mediation shall be agreeable to all parties and may not be 
remote from your place of business.” 

6.  Any references in the Disclosure Document to any requirement to consent to a waiver of exemplary 
and punitive damages are deleted. 

7.  Any references in the Disclosure Document to any requirement to consent to a waiver of trial by 
jury are deleted. 

8.  Any claims arising under the North Dakota franchise law will be governed by the laws of the State 
of North Dakota. 
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9.  Any references in the Disclosure Document that require the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses 
incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement are deleted.  The prevailing party in any 
enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees. 

10.  Any references in the Disclosure Document requiring franchisee to consent to termination penalties 
or liquidated damages are deleted.   

11.  Any references in the Disclosure Document requiring the franchisee to consent to a limitation of 
claims are deleted.  The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies. 

12. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf 
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection 
with the franchise. 
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ADDENDUM TO 
LOS CAMPEONES® 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE  

STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones® Franchise Agreement, the 
following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all Los Campeones franchises 
offered and sold or operated in the State of North Dakota.   

1.  Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the North Dakota Securities Commissioner has 
required a financial assurance. Therefore, if the franchisee is a North Dakota resident, 100% of the 
Initial Franchise Fee the franchisee pays to the franchisor must be placed into escrow until the 
obligations of the franchisor to assist the franchisee to establish and open his, her or its business 
are fulfilled. 

2. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has determined that it is unfair and unequitable under 
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law for the franchisor to require the franchisee to sign a 
general release upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement. Therefore, the requirement that the 
franchisee signs a release upon renewal of the Franchise Agreement is deleted. 

3.  Section 13 of the Franchise Agreement is revised to provide that covenants not to compete are 
generally considered unenforceable in the state of North Dakota. 

4.  The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has determined that it is unfair and unequitable under 
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law for the franchisor to require the franchisee to consent 
to the jurisdiction of courts located outside of North Dakota. Therefore, any references in the 
Franchise Agreement to any requirement that the franchisee consents to the jurisdiction of courts 
located outside of North Dakota are deleted. 

5. The North Dakota Securities Commissioner has determined that it is unfair and unequitable under 
the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law for the franchisor to require the franchisee to agree to 
arbitration or mediation of disputes at a location that is remote from the site of the franchisee’s 
business. Therefore, any references in the Franchise Agreement to any requirement that the 
franchisee consents to arbitration or mediation located outside of North Dakota are amended to 
include the following: 

“Pursuant to the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, the site of 
arbitration or mediation shall be agreeable to all parties and may not be 
remote from your place of business.” 

6.  Any references in the Franchise Agreement to any requirement to consent to a waiver of exemplary 
and punitive damages are deleted. 

7.  Any references in the Franchise Agreement to any requirement to consent to a waiver of trial by 
jury are deleted. 

8.  Any claims arising under the North Dakota franchise law will be governed by the laws of the State 
of North Dakota. 
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9.  Any references in the Franchise Agreement that require the franchisee to pay all costs and expenses 
incurred by the franchisor in enforcing the agreement are deleted. The prevailing party in any 
enforcement action is entitled to recover all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees. 

10.  Any references in the Franchise Agreement requiring franchisee to consent to termination penalties 
or liquidated damages are deleted.   

11.  Any references in the Franchise Agreement requiring the franchisee to consent to a limitation of 
claims are deleted. The statute of limitations under North Dakota law applies. 

12. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgement signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by a franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf 
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection 
with the franchise. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date the 
Franchise Agreement was executed. 

IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP:
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE: 
LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING LLC

By:  By:  
Name:  Name:  
Title:  Title:  

IF INDIVIDUAL:
FRANCHISEE: 

Name:  
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE SOUTH DAKOTA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones Franchising LLC Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all 
Los Campeones franchises offered and sold or operated in the State of South Dakota: 

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Director of the Division of Insurance has required a 
financial assurance. Therefore, all fees paid by the franchisee to the franchisor or its affiliate shall be held 
in escrow until the franchisor performs its initial obligations and the franchisee has commenced operations.
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ADDENDUM TO 
LOS CAMPEONES® 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE  

STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones® Franchise Agreement, the 
following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all Los Campeones franchises 
offered and sold or operated in the State of South Dakota.   

Based upon the franchisor’s financial condition, the Director of the Division of Insurance has required a 
financial assurance. Therefore, all fees paid by the franchisee to the franchisor or its affiliate shall be held 
in escrow until the franchisor performs its initial obligations and the franchisee has commenced operations.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date the Franchise 
Agreement was executed. 

IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP:
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE: 
LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING LLC

By:  By:  
Name:  Name:  
Title:  Title:  

IF INDIVIDUAL:
FRANCHISEE: 

Name:  
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STATE SPECIFIC ADDENDUM 
AS REQUIRED BY 

THE WISCONSIN FAIR DEALERSHIP LAW 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones Franchising LLC Franchise 
Disclosure Document, the following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all 
Los Campeones franchises offered and sold to residents of the State of Wisconsin or if the Los Campeones 
franchise will be located in Wisconsin: 

Item 17, Additional Disclosures 

For all franchisees residing in the State of Wisconsin, we will provide you with at least 90 
days’ prior written notice of termination, cancellation or substantial change in competitive 
circumstances.  The notice will state all the reasons for termination, cancellation or 
substantial change in competitive circumstances and will provide that you have 60 days in 
which to cure any claimed deficiency.  If this deficiency is cured within 60 days, the notice 
will be void.  If the reason for termination, cancellation or substantial change in competitive 
circumstances is nonpayment of sums due under the franchise, you will have 10 days to 
cure the deficiency. 

For Wisconsin franchises, Ch. 135, Stats., the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, supersedes 
any provisions of the Franchise Agreement or a related contract which is inconsistent with 
the law.
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ADDENDUM TO 
LOS CAMPEONES® 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
FOR THE  

STATE OF WISCONSIN 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Los Campeones® Franchise Agreement, the 
following provisions shall supersede any inconsistent provisions and apply to all Los Campeones franchises 
offered and sold to residents of the State of Wisconsin or if the Los Campeones franchise will be located in 
Wisconsin: 

1. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Franchise Agreement, to the 
extent that the Franchise Agreement contains provisions that are inconsistent with the following, such 
provisions are hereby amended: 

To the extent any of the provisions regarding notice of termination or change in dealership 
are in conflict with Section 135.04 of the Wisconsin Fair Dealership Law, the Wisconsin 
law shall apply. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have executed this Addendum as of the date the Franchise 
Agreement was executed. 

IF CORPORATION, LLC, OR PARTNERSHIP:
FRANCHISOR: FRANCHISEE: 
LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING LLC

By:  By:  
Name:  Name:  
Title:  Title:  

IF INDIVIDUAL:
FRANCHISEE: 

Name:  
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EXHIBIT F 

GENERAL RELEASE FORM 



2025 Los Campeones® FDD 

FORM RELEASE OF CLAIMS

THIS IS A CURRENT RELEASE FORM THAT GENERALLY WILL  
BE USED WITH OR INCORPORATED INTO A SEPARATE AGREEMENT.   

THIS FORM IS SUBJECT TO CHANGE OVER TIME. 

For and in consideration of the Agreements and covenants described below, Los Campeones 
Franchising LLC (“we” or “us”), ___________________ (“you”) and ______________________ 
(“Guarantors”) enter into this Release of Claims (“Agreement”). 

RECITALS 

A. We and you entered into a Los Campeones Franchise Agreement dated 
_________________, ____ (the “Franchise Agreement”). 

B. [NOTE:  Describe the circumstances relating to the release.] 

AGREEMENTS 

1. Consideration.  [NOTE:  Describe the consideration paid.] 

2-3. [NOTE:  Detail other terms and conditions of the release.] 

4. Release of Claims. 

A. Definitions. 

1. Franchisor Parties:  We and each of our subsidiaries, corporate parents and 
affiliates, and their respective officers, directors, owners, stockholders, members, 
employees, insurers, attorneys, agents, successors, predecessors, assigns, heirs and 
personal representatives. 

2. Franchisee Parties:  You and each of the Guarantors and all persons or 
entities acting on their behalf or claiming under them including each of their respective past 
and present corporate parents, subsidiaries, affiliates, owners, heirs, executors, 
administrators, managers, directors, officers, employees, trustees, agents, partners, business 
entities, attorneys, insurers, successors and assigns. 

B. The Franchisee Parties irrevocably and unconditionally waive, release and forever 
discharge, and covenant not to sue, the Franchisor Parties of and from any and all claims, suits, 
debts, liabilities, causes of action, demands, contracts, promises, obligations, losses, rights, 
controversies, damages, costs, expenses (including actual attorneys’ fees and costs incurred), 
actions and causes of action of every nature, whether known or unknown, direct or indirect, vested 
or contingent, at law or in equity, whether arising by statute, common law, or otherwise, including 
claims for negligence (collectively, “Claims”), that they may now have, or at any time heretofore 
had, or hereafter may have, against each or any of the Franchisor Parties arising out of or relating 
to any conduct, transaction, occurrence, act or omission at any time before the [Effective Date] 
relating to the Franchise Agreement(s), the development or operation of the Business(s), the 
franchise relationship between the parties, the offer or sale of any franchise, or any agreement 
between any of the Franchisee Parties and any of the Franchisor Parties. 
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C.  The Franchisee Parties specifically and expressly acknowledge and agree that the 
consideration accepted under this Agreement is accepted in full satisfaction of any and all injuries 
and/or damages that have previously arisen and which may hereafter arise respecting any of the 
claims being released.   

D. The Franchisee Parties acknowledge that they have had a reasonable opportunity 
to consult with an attorney prior to signing this release and they have executed this release 
voluntarily. Also, the Franchisee Parties represent that they have not assigned or transferred to 
anyone any claims released by them under Section 4(B) above. 

5. General.  No amendment to this Agreement or waiver of the rights or obligations of either 
party shall be effective unless in writing signed by the parties.  This Agreement is governed by the laws of 
the State of    without regard to conflicts of laws principles.  If any provision of this 
Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, the other provisions of 
this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and 
understanding of the parties concerning the subject matter of this Agreement.  [NOTE: Detail other 
miscellaneous provisions.]  

YOU:  WE: 

LOS CAMPEONES FRANCHISING 
LLC 

BY:  BY:  

ITS:  ITS:  

DATE:  DATE:  

PERSONAL GUARANTORS: 
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EXHIBIT G 

LIST OF FRANCHISEES 
as of December 31, 2024 

1. List of franchisees that have signed a franchise agreement and opened their Los Campeones 
business as of December 31, 2024 

Name Address City State Zip Code Telephone 
Number 

Los Campeones Duluth LLC 
Owner: Carl Sievert

5009 Matterhorn Drive Duluth MN 55811 (218) 340-3562 

Los Campeones ND, LLC 
Owner: Jason Locken

931 S. 9th St. 
Unit 104

Bismarck ND 58504 (701) 426-4510 

SD Los Campeones LLC 
Owner: Casey Raaen

5605 S. Chuck Drive Sioux 
Falls

SD 57108 (605) 261-9986 

Los Campeones TX, LLC 
Owner: Tim Mantel

9811 Vikki Terrace Austin TX 78736 (512) 436-8000 

Los Campeones TX, LLC 
Owner: Tim Mantel

THE LINC, 6406 N I‐35 Austin TX 78752 (512) 436-8000 

2. List of franchisees that have signed a franchise agreement, but not opened their Los Campeones 
business as of December 31, 2024 

Name Address City State Zip Code Telephone 
Number 

Los Campeones Denver LLC 
Owner:  Travis Carroll

275 South Sheridan Blvd 
Unit 245

Lakewood CO 80226 (763) 516-5718 

Los Campeones Iowa, LLC 
Owners: William Petersen, 

Jesse Harris, Jordan 
Moorhead

PO Box 13263 Des 
Moines 

IA 50310 (515) 344-2668 

3. List of former franchisees that left the franchise system between the period from January 1, 2024 
to December 31, 2024 

Name City State Telephone Number 
Reason franchisee left 
the franchise system 

None N/A N/A N/A N/A

If you buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave the 
franchise system. 
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EXHIBIT H 

DISCLOSURE ACKNOWLEDGMENT AGREEMENT 
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DISCLOSURE 
ACKNOWLEDGMENT AGREEMENT

If you are resident of the State of California or your franchise is located in California you should not 
complete this Disclosure Acknowledgment Agreement. If any California franchisee completes this 
Disclosure Acknowledgment Agreement, it is against California public policy and will be void and 
unenforceable, and we will destroy, disregard, and will not rely on such Disclosure Acknowledgment 
Agreement. 

As you know, Los Campeones Franchising LLC (“we” or “Franchisor) and you are entering into a Franchise 
Agreement for the operation of a Los Campeones franchised business (“Business”). The purpose of this 
Acknowledgment Agreement is to determine whether any statements or promises were made to you that we 
have not authorized or that may be untrue, inaccurate or misleading, and to be certain that you understand the 
limitations on claims that may be made by you by reason of the offer and sale of the franchise and operation 
of your business.  Please review each of the following questions carefully and provide honest responses to 
each question.   

Acknowledgments and Representations. 

1. Did you receive a copy of our franchise disclosure document (“FDD”) (and all exhibits and attachments) 
at least 14 calendar days prior to signing the Franchise Agreement?  Yes _____  No _____ 

2. Did you sign a receipt for the FDD indicating the date you received it? Yes _____ No _____ 

3. If we materially altered the provisions of the Franchise Agreement (except as a result of negotiations 
you initiated), did you receive a copy of the Franchise Agreement at least 7 calendar days before signing 
it.? Yes _____ No _____ 

4. Have you personally reviewed our FDD, Franchise Agreement and related exhibits attached to them?  
Yes _____  No _____ 

5. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement contains a number of provisions that may affect your 
legal rights, including those with respect to the Business for any judicial proceedings, a waiver of a jury 
trial, a waiver of punitive or exemplary damages, limitations on when claims may be filed, and other 
waivers and limitations? Yes _____ No _____ 

6. Have you reviewed the FDD and Franchise Agreement with an attorney, accountant, or other 
professional advisor and discussed the benefits and risks of establishing and operating the Business 
with these professional advisors?  Yes _____ No _____ 

If No, do you wish to have more time to do so? Yes _____ No _____ 

7. Do you understand that the success or failure of your Business will depend in large part upon your skills 
and abilities, competition from other businesses, interest rates, inflation, labor and supply costs, lease 
terms and other economic and business factors? Yes _____ No _____ 

8. Has anyone speaking on the Franchisor’s behalf made any statement or promise to you concerning the 
revenues, profits or operating costs of a Los Campeones Gym business operated by the franchisor (or 
its affiliates) or its franchisees that is different from the information contained in the FDD? Yes _____  
No _____ 

9. Has anyone speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise to you about the amount of money 
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you may earn in operating the Business that is different from the information contained in the FDD? 
Yes _____ No _____ 

10. Has anyone speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise concerning the total amount of 
revenue your Business will or may generate that is different from the information contained in the 
FDD? Yes _____ No _____ 

11. Has anyone speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise regarding the costs you may incur 
in operating your Business that is different from the information contained in the FDD? Yes _____  
No _____ 

12. Has anyone speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise concerning the likelihood of success 
that you should or might expect to achieve from operating Business? Yes _____ No _____ 

13. Has anyone speaking on our behalf made any statement or promise, or made an agreement with you, 
concerning how much service and assistance the Franchisor will provide to you (for example, 
concerning advertising, marketing, training, and support) that is different from the information 
contained in the FDD? Yes _____ No _____ 

14. Have you entered into any binding agreement with us concerning the purchase of this franchise before 
today? Yes _____ No _____ 

15. Have you paid any money to us concerning the purchase of this franchise before today? Yes _____    
No _____ 

16. If you have answered “Yes” to any of questions 8-15, please provide a full explanation of each “yes” 
answer in the following blank lines.  (Attach additional pages, as needed, and refer to them below.)  If 
you have answered “no” to each of questions 8-15, then please leave the following lines blank. 

17. Do you understand that the territorial rights you have been granted are subject to limitations and 
exceptions?  Yes _____ No _____ 

18. Do you understand that the Franchise Agreement contains the entire agreement between you and us 
concerning the franchise rights for the Business, meaning that any prior oral or written statements not 
set out in the Franchise Agreement will not be binding? Yes _____ No _____ 

19. Do you acknowledge and represent to Franchisor that (a) you or the entity that you form to be a 
franchisee will be the employer of all of your employees and will have sole discretion and authority to 
hire, fire, discipline, compensate and schedule working hours for, all of your employees; and (b) us and 
our affiliates will have no control, or right to control, any of the employment actions or decisions in 
your business?  We recommend that you retain employment law counsel to advise you with your 
employment issues and questions. Yes _____ No _____ 

20. Do you understand that:  
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a. this Business may be impacted by other risks, including those outside your or our control 
such as local, national or global economic, political or social disruption, such as the 
COVID-19 outbreak?  Yes _____ No _____ 

b. that such disruptions, and any preventative, protective, or remedial actions that federal, 
state, and local governments may take in response to a disruption may result in a period of 
business disruption, reduced customer demand, and reduced operations for Los Campeones 
Gym businesses, and may require that we take actions that might not be contemplated under 
the Franchise Agreement?  Yes _____ No _____ 

c. the extent to which any such disruption impacts the Los Campeones Gym system, and your 
Business, will depend on future developments which are highly uncertain and which we 
cannot predict?  Yes _____ No _____ 

If no, please comment:   

21. I signed the Franchise Agreement and Addenda (if any) on ____________, 20______, and 
acknowledge that no Agreement or Addendum is effective until signed and dated by the Franchisor. 

YOU UNDERSTAND THAT YOUR ANSWERS ARE IMPORTANT TO US AND THAT WE 

WILL RELY ON THEM.  BY SIGNING THIS QUESTIONNAIRE, YOU ARE REPRESENTING 

THAT YOU HAVE CONSIDERED EACH QUESTION CAREFULLY AND RESPONDED 

TRUTHFULLY TO THE ABOVE QUESTIONS.

Signed:  Signed:   

Print Name:  Print Name:   

Date:   Date:   

Signed:  Signed:   

Print Name:  Print Name:   

Date:   Date:   
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EXHIBIT I 

STATE EFFECTIVE DATES & RECEIPT PAGES 
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State Effective Dates 

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure 
Document be registered or filed with the state, or be exempt from registration: California, 
Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, 
Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and Wisconsin. 

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the 
document is filed, registered or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated 
below: 

State Effective Date 
California Pending 
Minnesota Pending  
North Dakota Pending  
South Dakota Pending 
Wisconsin April 18, 2025 

Other states may require registration, filing, or exemption of a franchise under other 
laws, such as those that regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-
assisted marketing plans. 
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RECEIPT 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain 
language.  Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.   

If Los Campeones Franchising LLC offers you a franchise, Los Campeones Franchising LLC must provide this disclosure 
document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, Los Campeones 
Franchising LLC or its affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires that we give you this 
disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise 
or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.  Iowa requires that we 
give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 calendar days before the execution of 
the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.  Michigan 
requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise 
or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.    

If Los Campeones Franchising LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or 
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be 
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and those state administrators listed on Exhibit D.  

Issuance Date:  April 18, 2025 

The franchisor is Los Campeones Franchising LLC, located at 2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406.  
Its telephone number is 612-850-0029. 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC’s franchise seller involved in offering and selling the franchise is Benjamin Loehrer, 
2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406; 612-850-0029, or is listed below (with address and telephone 
number), or will be provided to you separately before you sign a franchise agreement: 

. 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit D to receive service of 
process for Los Campeones Franchising LLC in the particular state. 

I have received a disclosure document with an issuance date of April 18, 2025, that included the following Exhibits:  

A. Financial Statements 
B. Franchise Agreement (and Exhibits) 
C. Operations Manual Table of Contents 
D. List of State Administrators, Agents for 

Service of Process 

E. State Addenda 
F. General Release Form 
G. List of Franchisees 
H. Disclosure Acknowledgment Agreement 
I. State Effective Dates & Receipt Pages 

Date:  
(Do not leave blank) (Print Name of Prospective Franchisee (For Entity)) 

 By: 
 Its: 

 Signature 

(Print Name of Prospective Franchisee (For Individuals)) 

Signature 

Copy for Franchisee 
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RECEIPT 

This disclosure document summarizes certain provisions of the franchise agreement and other information in plain 
language.  Read this disclosure document and all agreements carefully.   

If Los Campeones Franchising LLC offers you a franchise, Los Campeones Franchising LLC must provide this disclosure 
document to you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, Los Campeones 
Franchising LLC or its affiliate in connection with the proposed franchise sale. New York requires that we give you this 
disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 10 business days before the execution of the franchise 
or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.  Iowa requires that we 
give you this disclosure document at the earlier of the first personal meeting or 14 calendar days before the execution of 
the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship.  Michigan 
requires that we give you this disclosure document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise 
or other agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first.    

If Los Campeones Franchising LLC does not deliver this disclosure document on time or if it contains a false or 
misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have occurred and should be 
reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580 and those state administrators listed on Exhibit D.  

Issuance Date:  April 18, 2025 

The franchisor is Los Campeones Franchising LLC, located at 2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406.  
Its telephone number is 612-850-0029. 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC’s franchise seller involved in offering and selling the franchise Benjamin Loehrer, 
2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406; 612-850-0029, or is listed below (with address and telephone 
number), or will be provided to you separately before you sign a franchise agreement: 

. 

Los Campeones Franchising LLC authorizes the respective state agencies identified on Exhibit D to receive service of 
process for Los Campeones Franchising LLC in the particular state. 

I have received a disclosure document with an issuance date of April 18, 2025, that included the following Exhibits:  

A. Financial Statements 
B. Franchise Agreement (and Exhibits) 
C. Operations Manual Table of Contents 
D. List of State Administrators, Agents for 

Service of Process 

E. State Addenda 
F. General Release Form 
G. List of Franchisees 
H. Disclosure Acknowledgment Agreement 
I. State Effective Dates & Receipt Pages 

Date:  
(Do not leave blank) (Print Name of Prospective Franchisee (For Entity)) 

 Its: 

 Signature 

(Print Name of Prospective Franchisee (For Individuals)) 

Signature 

Please sign and date both copies of this receipt, keep one copy (the previous page) for your records, and mail one 
copy (this page) to the address listed on the front page of this disclosure document or send to Benjamin Loehrer 
at 2721 E. Franklin Ave., Minneapolis, Minnesota 55406, or bestgym612@gmail.com. 

Copy for Los Campeones Franchising LLC 
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